Form 603

Corporations Act 2001
Section 671B

Notice of initial substantial holder

To Company Name/Scheme

Mayfield Childcare Ltd

ACN/ARSN

604 970 390

1. Details of substantial holder (1)

Name

Genius Education Holdings Pty Ltd ACN 653 363 636
Genius Education Group Pty Ltd ACN 654 583 221

ACN/ARSN (if applicable)

The holder became a substantial holder on

2. Details of voting power

The total number of votes attached to all the voting shares in the company or voting interests in the scheme that the substantial holder or an associate (2) had a

10/12/2021

relevant interest (3) in on the date the substantial holder became a substantial holder are as follows:

Class of securities (4)

Number of securities

Person’s votes (5)

Voting power (6)

Fully paid ordinary shares

21,704,347

21,704,347

34.23%

3. Details of relevant interests

The nature of the relevant interest the substantial holder or an associate had in the following voting securities on the date the substantial holder became a

substantial holder are as follows:

Holder of relevant interest

Nature of relevant interest (7)

Class and number of securities

Genius Education Holdings Pty Ltd

Holder of securities: s 608(1)(a)

21,704,347 fully paid ordinary shares

Genius Education Group Pty Ltd

\/oting power in Genius Education
Holdings Pty Ltd exceeds 20%: s
608(3)(a)

21,704,347 fully paid ordinary shares

4. Details of present registered holders
The persons registered as holders of the securities referred to in paragraph 3 above are as follows:

Holder of relevant
interest

Registered holder of
securities

Person entitled to be
registered as holder (8)

Class and number
of securities

Genius Education Holdings Pty
Ltd

Genius Education Group Pty Ltd

Genius Education Holdings Pty

Ltd

Ltd

Genius Education Holdings Pty

21,704,347 fully paid
ordinary shares

5. Consideration

The consideration paid for each relevant interest referred to in paragraph 3 above, and acquired in the four months prior to the day that the substantial holder

became a substantial holder is as follows:

Holder of relevant
interest

Date of acquisition

Consideration (9)

Class and number
of securities

Cash

| Non-cash

Genius Education Holdings Pty
Ltd

Genius Education Group Pty Ltd

10 December 2021

Part of the consideration for the
sale of 100% of the shares in
Genius Education Pty Ltd ACN
653 437 935 under the share sale
agreement dated 31 October
2021 between Genius Education
Holdings Pty Ltd and Mayfield
Childcare Ltd (see Annexure

A). The value attributed to this
consideration was $24,960,000
(i.e. $1.15 per Mayfield share).

21,704,347 fully paid
ordinary shares




6. Associates

The reasons the persons named in paragraph 3 above are associates of the substantial holder are as follows:

Name and ACN/ARSN (if applicable) Nature of association

7. Addresses
The addresses of persons named in this form are as follows:

Name Address
Genius Education Holdings Pty Ltd c/o Level 1, 60 Toorak Road, South Yarra, Victoria, 3141
Genius Education Group Pty Ltd c/o Level 1, 60 Toorak Road, South Yarra, Victoria, 3141

Signature
. . N . Sole director and sole company secretary of Genius Education
printname  Darren Michael Misquitta capacity Holdings Pty Ltd and Genius Education Group Pty Ltd
sign here date 15/12/2021
DIRECTIONS
1) If there are a number of substantial holders with similar or related relevant interests (e.g. a corporation and its related corporations, or the manager and

@

©)

©)

®)

(6)

@)

®

©

trustee of an equity trust), the names could be included in an annexure to the form. If the relevant interests of a group of persons are essentially similar,
they may be referred to throughout the form as a specifically named group if the membership of each group, with the names and addresses of members
is clearly set out in paragraph 7 of the form.

See the definition of "associate" in section 9 of the Corporations Act 2001.

See the definition of "relevant interest" in sections 608 and 671B(7) of the Corporations Act 2001.

The voting shares of a company constitute one class unless divided into separate classes.

The total number of votes attached to all the voting shares in the company or voting interests in the scheme (if any) that the person or an associate has a
relevant interest in.

The person’s votes divided by the total votes in the body corporate or scheme multiplied by 100.

Include details of:

(a) any relevant agreement or other circumstances by which the relevant interest was acquired. If subsection 671B(4) applies, a copy of any
document setting out the terms of any relevant agreement, and a statement by the person giving full and accurate details of any contract,
scheme or arrangement, must accompany this form, together with a written statement certifying this contract, scheme or arrangement; and

(b) any qualification of the power of a person to exercise, control the exercise of, or influence the exercise of, the voting powers or disposal of the
securities to which the relevant interest relates (indicating clearly the particular securities to which the qualification applies).

See the definition of "relevant agreement" in section 9 of the Corporations Act 2001.

If the substantial holder is unable to determine the identity of the person (e.g. if the relevant interest arises because of an option) write “unknown.”

Details of the consideration must include any and all benefits, moneys and other, that any person from whom a relevant interest was acquired has, or
may, become entitled to receive in relation to that acquisition. Details must be included even if the benefit is conditional on the happening or not of a
contingency. Details must be included of any benefit paid on behalf of the substantial holder or its associate in relation to the acquisitions, even if they
are not paid directly to the person from whom the relevant interest was acquired.




Annexure A — Share sale agreement

Mayfield Childcare Limited
ACN 604 970 390

This is Annexure A of 210 pages referred to in Form 603 (Notice of Initial Substantial Holder), signed by me and dated 15 December 2021.

Darren Michael Misquitta
Sole director and sole company secretary of Genius Education
Holdings Pty Ltd and Genius Education Group Pty Ltd
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This agreement is made on Z i SUTOREAL TR

insert date

between: Genius Education Holdings Pty Ltd ABN 93 653 363 636 (Seller)
Address: 1 Balmain Street, Cremorne, Victoria, 3121
Email: darren@sprintcapitalpartners.com
Attention: Darren Michae) Misquitta

and: Mayfield Childcare Limited ABN 53 604 970 390 (Buyer)
Address;  Suite 2, 207 Waverley Road, Malvern Easl, Victoria, 3145
Email: dclarke@mayfieldchildcare.com.au

Attention: Dean Clarke

Recitals
A. The Seller holds all of the issued shares in the Company.
B. The Seller has agreed to sell to the Buyer and the Buyer has agreed to buy from the Seller all

of the Seller's shares in the Company on the terms contained in this agreement.

Operative provisions

1. Definitions and interpretation
1.1 Definitions
In this agreement, unless the context otherwise requires:

Announcement Date means the date the Buyer announces the transactions contemplated by
this agreement to ASX (expected to be the date of execution of this agreement);

ASIC means Australian Securities and Investments Commission;

ASX means ASX Limited ABN 98 008 624 691 or the financial market operated by ASX
Limited ABN 98 008 624 691, as the context requires;

ASX Listing Rules means the listing rules made by ASX that deal with admitting entities to,
or removing entities from, ASX’s official list or the activities or canduct of entities that are
included on that list;

Authorisation means, with respect to a person, a certificate, licence, approval, permit,
authority or exemption of, by or with a Government Agency held by the person or necessary
to carry on the person’s business as currently operated or to use or occupy any premises as
currently used or occupied by the person;

Balance Date means 30 June 2021;

Base Cash Consideration has the meaning given in clause 2.4(a);

Base Consideration means the amount determined in accordance with clause 2.3(b);

39149995 _21.docx page 1



Share sale agreement 0 PiperAlderman

Base Consideration Shares has the meaning given in clause 2.4(a);
Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, bank holiday or public holiday:

(a) for the purpose of sending or receiving a notice, in the city where the notice is
received; and

(b) for all other purposes, in the city of Melbourne, Australia;

Business Premises means the premises described in schedule 3;

Business Records means:

(a) the Corporate Records; and

(b) the agreements, deeds, documents, books, accounts, ledgers, customer and supplier
lists, registers, journals, certificates, documents of titie, employee records,
correspondence, studies, reports, statutory records and other information solely
relating to the Pool 1 Childcare Business which the Pool 1 Childcare Business
Operator maintains or has in its possession or control, regardless of the material or
medium used for the holding, storage or communication of the information;

Buyer Accounting Standards means:

(a) the accounting standards made by the Australian Accounting Standards Board under
section 334 of the Corporations Act and the requirements of the Corporations Act in
relation to the preparation and content of financial reports to the extent they are
applicable to a public company limited by shares registered under the Corporations
Act that is a disclosing entity; and

(b) if and to the extent that any matter is not covered by such a standard or requirement,
other relevant accounting standards and generally accepted accounting principles
applied from time to time in Australia in relation to entities similar to the Buyer, or
operating in the industry in which the Buyer operates, unless inconsistent with any of

the standards and requirements referred to in paragraph (a) above;

Buyer Accounts means the auditor reviewed financial statements for the Buyer for the 6
months ended on the Balance Date set out in schedule 9;

Buyer Fundamental Warranty means a warranty set out in clause 1, 2, 3 or 8 of schedule 8;
Buyer Group Entity means:

(a) the Buyer;

(b) a related body corporate of the Buyer; or

(c) an entity controlled by any of the Buyer and its related bodies corporate;

Buyer Group Member means:

(a) a Buyer Group Entity; or

(b) an officer or employee of a Buyer Group Entity;
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Buyer Share means an ordinary share in the Buyer;

Buyer Share VWAP means $1.15;

Buyer Warranty means a warranty set out in schedule 8;

Capital Raising means the issue of fully paid Buyer Shares at an issue price of at least 90%
of the Buyer Share VWAP (or such lower issue price approved by the Seller) following an
offer or offers of Buyer Shares that is made to existing shareholders and/or other investors
after the date of this agreement to raise approximately $9,000,000 of share capital in the

aggregate (or such other amount agreed between the Buyer and Seller);

Childcare Provider Approval means a provider approval issued under section 15 of the
Education and Care Services National Law;

Childcare Service Approval means a service approval issued under section 48 of the
Education and Care Services National Law, as transferred or otherwise amended,

Claim means a threat, complaint, demand, proceeding or other claim howsoever arising and
whether written or oral, present or future, or actual or contingent;

Company means Genius Education Pty Ltd ABN 39 653 437 935;

Compensation Sale Shares has the meaning given in clause 9.14;

Completion means completion of the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares under clause 5;
Completion Date means:

(a) 26 November 2021; or

(b) 1 Business Day after the conditions set out in clause 3.1 have been met or waived;
whichever is the later, or such other date as the Seller and the Buyer may agree;
Consideration means the Base Consideration and the Earn Out Consideration;
Corporate Records means:

(a) the minutes of meetings or resolutions of members of the Company;,

(b) the minutes of meetings or resolutions of directors of the Company;

(c) the register of members of the Company; and

(d) the register of officeholders of the Company;

regardless of the material or medium used for the holding, storage or communication of the
information;

Corporations Act means the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth);

Disclosure Letter means the letter from the Seller to the Buyer dated and delivered to the
Buyer before execution of this agreement a copy of which is set out in schedule 4;
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Due Diligence Document means a document listed in schedule 5 a copy of which was
contained in the electronic on-line data room as at 11:11 am on 31 October 2021 accessed at
https://iwww.dropbox.com/home/External%20DD%20Docs to which the Buyer has had
access, the complete contents of which were copied in electronic form onto a USB provided
by or on behalf of the Seller to the Buyer or to a director, employee, agent or adviser of the
Buyer before execution of this agreement;

Duty means any stamp, transaction or registration duty, or similar charge, imposed by any
Government Agency, and includes any interest, fine, penalty, charge or other amount
imposed in respect of the above, but excludes any Tax;

Earn Out Consideration means the amount determined in accordance with clause 2.3(c);
Earn Out EBITDA means the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation of
the Company for the Earn Out Year as determined in accordance with the EBITDA Schedule
and the Pool 1 Childcare Business Accounting GAAP provided that all fees, expenses,

rebates, credits and other amounts or benefits charged, paid, allowed or provided under the
Transitional Services Agreement for the Earn Out Year are counted in the determination;

Earn Out Share Price means the Buyer Share VWAP, subject to clause 2.7,
Earn Out Scrip Consideration has the meaning given in clause 2.4(b);

Earn Out Statement means the statement to be prepared and finalised in accordance with
clause 2.5;

Earn Out Year means the period of 12 months starting on 1 January 2022;
EBITDA Schedule means Schedule 11;

EBITDA Target means $8,000,000;

Education and Care Services National Law means:

(a) Education and Care Services National Law (Victoria) as that term is defined under the
Education and Care Services National Law Act 2010 (Vic),

(b) Education and Care Services National Law (Queensland) as that term is defined
under the Education and Care Services National Law (Queensland) Act 2011 (Qld);

(c) Education and Care Services National Law (South Australia) as that term is defined
under the Education and Early Childhood Services (Registration and Standards) Act
2011 (SA);

(d) Children (Education and Care Services) National Law (NSW) as that term is defined
in the Children (Education and Care Services National Law Application) Act 2010
(NSW);

(e) Education and Care Services National Law (Western Australia) as that term is defined
in the Education and Care Services National Law (WA) Act 2012 (WA);

as the context requires;

39149995 21.docx page 4



Share sale agreement 0 PiperAlderman

Encumbrance means a mortgage, charge, pledge, lien, conditional sale agreement, hire or
hire purchase agreement, option, restriction as to transfer, use or possession, easement,
subordination to a right of another person, adverse or competing interest of another person or
other security interest or encumbrance in respect of property created or arising to secure
performance of an obligation except for a lien or reservation of title arising in the ordinary
course of business;

EOC Cut Off Date has the meaning given in clause 2.4(c)(2);
EOC Shareholder Approval has the meaning given in clause 2.4(c)(2);

Escrow Deed means a deed in the form or to the effect, or substantially in the form or to the
effect, of the escrow deed set out in schedule 10;

Fairly Disclosed means disclosure in sufficient detail and context to enable a reasonable
person to identify the nature and scope of the relevant fact, matter, event or circumstance;

Finance Document means an agreement, mortgage, charge or deed described as a finance
document in schedule 7,

Finance Lease means a lease or agreement described as a finance lease in schedule 7;
Financed Equipment means assets leased, licensed or hired under a Finance Lease;
Genius Learning means Genius Learning Pty Ltd ABN 66 603 513 604,

Government Agency means a government, government agency, administrative, fiscal,
judicial or non-governmental regulatory body, department, commission, authority, tribunal or
agency in any jurisdiction whether federal, state, local or territorial;

GST means goods and services tax or similar value added tax levied or imposed in Australia
under the GST Law or otherwise on a supply;

GST Act means A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999 (Cth);
GST Law has the same meaning as in the GST Act;

Incubator Agreement means an agreement in the form or to the effect, or substantially in the
form or to the effect, of the incubator agreement set out in schedule 6;

Intellectual Property Licence means a licence or agreement described as an intellectual
property licence in schedule 7;

IP Licence Agreement has the same meaning as in the Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale
Agreement;

Leave Entitlements means the entitlements of the employees of the Company at Completion
to long service leave and annual leave and personal/carer's/sick leave under all relevant
agreements, statutes or awards to the extent that these entitlements relate to their
employment in the Pool 1 Childcare Business and are determined on the basis of the amount
recorded in the books and records of the Pool 1 Childcare Business at Completion;
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Loss means, with respect to a person, the loss suffered or expense or liability incurred by the
person or the damages or costs to which the person is entitled or an amount payable to the
person under an indemnity or otherwise;

Material Contract means a Finance Document, Finance Lease, intellectual Property Licence,
Property Lease or other deed, agreement, arrangement, offer, tender or quotation described
as a material contract in schedule 7;

Plant and Equipment means all plant, equipment, motor vehicles, machinery, furniture,
fittings and computer equipment owned by the Company;

Pool 1 Childcare Business means the business of providing child education and care
services and operating childcare centres and related activities the subject of the Pool 1
Childcare Business Sale Agreement that is carried on by Genius Learning at the Business
Premises up to Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Completion or that business as carried on by
the Company after Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Completion;

Pool 1 Childcare Business Accounting GAAP means Australian generally accepted
accounting principles, excluding Accounting Standards AASB 16 Leases and AASB 117
Leases;

Pool 1 Childcare Business Accounts means the financial statements for the Pool 1
Childcare Business Operator in the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare Business for the 12
months ended on the Balance Date set out in schedule 2;

Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator means:

(a) up to Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Completion, Genius Learning; and

(b) after Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Completion, the Company;,

Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement means the business sale agreement between
Genius Learning, the Seller and the Company dated on or about the date of this agreement;

Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Completion means completion of the sale and purchase of
business assets under clause 5 of the Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement;

Property Lease means a lease or agreement described as a property lease in schedule 7;
Restraint Area means a 3 kilometre radius of any childcare centre operated by the Pool 1
Childcare Business Operator before Completion or a Buyer Group Entity after Completion, at
the Business Premises;

Restraint Period means the period commencing on the date of Completion and ending on:
(a) the third anniversary of the date of Completion;

(b) the second anniversary of the date of Completion; and

(c) the first anniversary of the date of Completion;
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Sale Proceeds Account means the following bank account:

Bank:

Tcéamt name:

' BSB:

Account no:

Sale Share means an ordinary share in the Company;

Seller Fundamental Warranty means a warranty set out in clause 1, 2 or 3 of schedule 1,
Seller Group Member means:

(a) the Seller;

(b) a related body corporate of the Seller;

{c) an entity controlled by any of the Seller and its related bodies corporate; or

(d) an officer or employee of an entity referred to in paragraph (a), (b) or (c) above;
Seller Warranty means a warranty set out in schedule 1;

Share Compensation Amount has the meaning given in clause 9.14;

SPA Claim has the meaning given in clause 9.14;

Super Fund means a superannuation fund to which the Company makes superannuation
contributions for employees of the Company;

Tax means any tax, levy, charge, impost, deduction, goods and services tax or withholding,
which is assessed, levied, imposed or collected by any Government Agency and includes any
interest, fine, penalty, charge, fee or other amount imposed by statute on, or in respect of, any
of the above, but excludes any Duty;

Tax Act means the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 (Cth) or Income Tax Assessment Act
1997 (Cth), whichever is relevant;

Tax Claim means a Claim by the Buyer arising from any breach of Seller Warranty 21 or
under the Tax Indemnity;

Tax Costs has the meaning given under clause 10.1(a);
Tax Indemnity means the indemnity given by the Seller under clause 10;
Tax Law means any law in relation to any Tax, including the Tax Act and the GST Act;

Tax Liability means a liability for Tax;

Transitional Services Agreement has the same meaning as in the Pool 1 Childcare
Business Sale Agreement;

39149995 _21.docx page 7




Share sale agreement O PiperAlderman

Warranty means a Buyer Warranty or Seller Warranty.

1.2 Interpretation

In this agreement headings and bold typing are included for convenience only and do not
affect interpretation and, unless the context otherwise requires:

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

)

(k)

()

(m)

(n)

(0)

a reference to a word includes the singular and the plural of the word and vice versa;
a reference to a gender includes any gender;

if a word or phrase is defined, then other parts of speech and grammatical forms of
that word or phrase have a corresponding meaning;

a term which refers to a person includes a person in any capacity, a body corporate,
an unincorporated body (for example a society or association), a trust, a partnership,
a sovereign state, a government or a government department or agency;

a reference to a document includes a reference to that document as amended,
novated, supplemented, varied or replaced;

a reference to a recital, clause, paragraph, schedule, annexure or other part is a
reference to an item of that type in this agreement;

a reference to a party is a reference to a party to this agreement and includes a
reference to that party’'s successors and permitted assigns;

a reference to a statute or regulation or a provision of a statute or regulation is a
reference to that statute, regulation or provision as amended or a statute, regulation
or provision replacing it, and a reference to a statute includes all regulations,
proclamations, ordinances and by-laws made or issued under that statute;

a reference to a document is a reference to a document of any kind including but not
limited to an agreement in writing, a certificate, a notice, or an instrument;

no provision of this agreement will be construed adversely to a party solely on the
ground that the party was responsible for the preparation of this agreement or that
provision;

a reference to a time is a reference to that time in the city of Melbourne, Australia;

a monetary reference is a reference to Australian currency;

a reference to an entity, other than a party to this agreement, which ceases to exist or
whose powers or functions are transferred to another entity, is a reference to the

entity which replaces it or which substantially succeeds to its powers or functions;

the term ‘including’, ‘e.g.’, ‘such as’, ‘particularly’ or any similar expression is not used
as, nor is intended to be interpreted as, a term of limitation;

a reference to a breach of Warranty means a Warranty being untrue, inaccurate or
misleading in breach of clause 8.1 or 11.1;

39149995 _21.docx
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(p) the terms ‘volume weighted average market price’ and ‘trading day’ the same
meaning as in the ASX Listing Rules except that a trading day does not include a day
on which Buyer Shares are not able to traded on market e.g. due to a trading halt,
suspension from quotation or de-listing;

(a) a word or term defined in the Corporations Act has the same meaning in this
agreement; and

{p) a word or term defined in A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999
(Cth) has the same meaning in this agreement where used in connection with the
GST imposed under that Act.

13 Awareness
In this agreement, a reference to the awareness or knowledge of a party is a reference to the
actual knowledge at the date of this agreement of, in the case of the Buyer, Dean Wayland
Clarke and Glenn Raines or, in the case of the Seller, Darren Michael Misquitta and Pat Allan.

1.4 Manner of payment
Payment of an amount of money to the Seller under this agreement (or any part of the
amount) must be made by electronic funds transfer to the Sale Proceeds Account, or by such
other reasonable method to such person as the Seller may notify the Buyer in writing at least
2 Business Days before the payment is due.

2. Sale and purchase of Sale Shares

21 Sale and purchase
Subject to clause 3, the Seller agrees to sell to the Buyer, and the Buyer agrees to buy from
the Seller, all of the issued Sale Shares on the Completion Date for the Consideration and
otherwise on the terms set out in this agreement.

2.2 Associated rights
The Sale Shares agreed to be sold under clause 2.1 will be sold (subject to Completion
occurring):
(a) on the Completion Date;
(b) free from all Encumbrances; and
(c) with all rights attached to the Sale Shares at the Completion Date and all rights

accruing after that date.
23 Consideration

(a) The Consideration for all of the Sale Shares is comprised of the Base Consideration
and the Earn Out Consideration.

(b) The Base Consideration is an amount equal to $31,200,000 less the total amount of
the Leave Entitiements, plus or minus the aggregate of the adjustments referred to in
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(c)

(d)

clause 2.3(d), as determined by the Seller in good faith and notified to the Buyer on or
before the Completion Date.

The Earn Out Consideration is:

1) if the Earn Out EBITDA as set out in the final Earn Out Statement is less than
the EBITDA Target, $0; and

(2) in any other case, an amount equal to the Earn Out EBITDA as set out in the
final Earn Out Statement multiplied by 1.

The Base Consideration must be adjusted if necessary on the Completion Date in
respect of all rates, rent and other property related outgoings, charges and other
expenditure paid or payable by the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator under a
Property Lease in connection with the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare Business as at
the close of business on the Business Day immediately preceding the Completion
Date as determined by the Seller in good faith to the intent and with the effect that the
Seller bears the cost of all such expenditure referable to the period up to and
including the Business Day immediately preceding the Completion Date and the
Buyer bears the cost of all such expenditure referable to any period on and from the
Completion Date.

2.4 Payment

The Consideration is payable as follows:

(a)

(b)

The Buyer must pay to the Seller on the Completion Date the Base Consideration,
$24,960,000 of which must be satisfied by the Buyer issuing to the Seller on the
Completion Date the number of Buyer Shares (credited as fully paid) equal to 80% of
the Base Consideration divided by the Buyer Share VWAP on the Announcement
Date (rounded to the nearest whole Buyer Share) (Base Consideration Shares) and
the balance of the Base Consideration (i.e. the Base Consideration less $24,960,000)
which must be paid in money (Base Cash Consideration).

Subject to this clause 2.4 and clause 2.7, the Buyer must pay to the Seller the Earn
Out Consideration (if any) within 5 Business Days from the date the Earn Out
Statement is finalised. The forms and amounts of payment of the Earn Out
Consideration are as follows:
(1) the lesser of:
(A) the amount derived from the following formula:
((0.1 x (BST + BCS + CRS)) x BYWAP)

where:

BST is the number of Buyer Shares on issue at the date of this
agreement;

BCS is Base Consideration Shares;

CRS is the number of Buyer Shares issued under the Capital Raising;
and
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BVWAP is the Earn Out Share Price; and
(B) 80% of the Earn Out Consideration,

(Earn Out Scrip Consideration) must be satisfied by the Buyer issuing to
the Seller by the due date of payment the number of Buyer Shares (credited
as fully paid) equal to the Earn Out Scrip Consideration divided by the Earn
Out Share Price (rounded down to the nearest whole Buyer Share); and

(2) the Earn Out Consideration less the Earn Out Scrip Consideration must be
paid in money.
(c) If the issue of all of the Buyer Shares under clause 2.4(b) would require the approval

of the holders of Buyer Shares for the purpose of item 7 of the table in section 611 of
the Corporations Act (Restrictions), then the Buyer must:

(M

@)

d I

(M

2

issue to the Seller the maximum number of Buyer Shares able to be issued
without there being a contravention of any of the Restrictions within 5
Business Days from the date the Earn Out Statement is finalised; and

promptly, and in any event by the date that is 3 months after the date the
Earn Out Statement is finalised (EOC Cut Off Date), seek and use best
endeavours to obtain the relevant approvals of the holders of Buyer Shares to
issue the remaining number of Buyer Shares (EOC Shareholder Approval).

before the EOC Cut Off Date either EOC Shareholder Approval is obtained or
the remaining number of Buyer Shares under clause 2.4(b) may otherwise be
issued to the Seller without there being a contravention of any of the
Restrictions, those Buyer Shares must be issued to the Seller within 5
Business Days from the date the EOC Shareholder Approval is obtained or
the date the Restrictions otherwise cease to prohibit the issue, whichever
occurs first; and

in any other case, the remaining Earn Out Consideration payable under
clause 2.4(b) must be paid by the Buyer to the Seller in money within 5
Business Days from the EOC Cut Off Date.

(e) Where any Buyer Shares are required to be issued to the Seller on a date, the Buyer
must on that date:

(1)

()

3)

4

issue to the Seller the Buyer Shares free from all Encumbrances ranking
equally with all other issued Buyer Shares on and from the date of issue,

enter the Seller in the register of members of the Buyer as the holder of those
Buyer Shares;

deliver to the Seller a holding statement confirming its holdings of those Buyer
Shares; and

apply for their quotation on ASX, and as soon as practicable after applying for
quotation, procure their quotation.
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()

(9

(h)

On issue of any Buyer Shares to the Seller, the Seller agrees to become a member of
the Buyer and to be bound by its constitution in respect of those Buyer Shares.

Despite anything else contained in this agreement, if after the Seller executes this
agreement:

(1) trading in Buyer Shares on ASX is suspended from quotation for more than a
total of 5 days and the suspension is due to a material adverse change in the
assets, liabilities, financial position, performance, profits, losses, business,
operations or prospects of the Buyer;

(2) the Buyer is removed from the official list of ASX or announces its intention to
request removal or ASX announces its intention to remove the Buyer from the
official list;

(3) a takeover bid is made under chapter 6 of the Corporations Act for all of the
issued Buyer Shares not owned by the bidder, the bidder's voting power in
the Buyer increases to at least 50% and, if the bid is subject to defeating
conditions, all defeating conditions are satisfied or the bid is declared free
from all unsatisfied defeating conditions;

(4) a scheme of arrangement between the Buyer and its shareholders under part
5.1 of the Corporations Act for the merger of the Buyer with another entity or
the acquisition of all of the issued Buyer Shares or the whole or a substantial
part of the business or property of the Buyer by another entity is approved by
the shareholders of the Buyer under section 411(4)(a)(ii) of the Corporations
Act;

(5) the Buyer disposes, or agrees to dispose, of the whole or a substantial part of
its business and assets;

(6) the voting power of a person in the Buyer (other than the Seller or any
associate of the Seller) increases from 50% or below to more than 50%; or

(7) the issue of any Buyer Shares to the Seller would result in a contravention of
the ASX Listing Rules, the Corporations Act or any other law, other than in
connection with the Restrictions;

the Seller may elect by written notice to the Buyer to be paid in money any
Consideration otherwise to be satisfied by the issue of Buyer Shares, in which case
the Buyer must pay to the Seller by the due date of payment the amount elected to be
paid in money instead of issuing Buyer Shares to satisfy payment of the amount.

If any Earn Out Consideration is not paid within 5 months from the end of the Earn
Out Year, the Buyer must pay to the Seller on demand interest on the amount to be
paid charged at the rate of 8% per annum from the end of the Earn Out Year to the
date the amount is paid and accruing from day to day.

2.5 Earn Out Statement

(a)

The Seller must prepare and provide to the Buyer within 30 Business Days from the
end of the Earn Out Year, an Earn Out Statement setting out the Earn Out EBITDA
determined in accordance with the Pool 1 Childcare Business Accounting GAAP and
in the form set out in the EBITDA Schedule, showing in reasonable detail the income,
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(9)

expenses and other components counted in or excluded from, and the calculation of,
the Earn Out EBITDA together with a copy of the work papers used to prepare the
Earn Out Statement.

The Buyer may have a period of 20 Business Days from receipt of the Earn Out
Statement to review it in order to ensure that the Earn Out Statement has been
prepared in accordance with this agreement. The Seller must:

(1) make available for examination by the Buyer and its representatives during
normal business hours throughout the 20 Business Day period all documents
created or used by the Seller or its advisers to prepare the Earn Out
Statement or otherwise relating to the Earn Out Statement; and

(2) provide a copy of any such document to the Buyer promptly after the Seller
receives a request for the copy.

The Seller and the Buyer must use their reasonable endeavours to agree on the Earn
Out Statement and any adjustments proposed by either of them within that 20
Business Day period.

If the Seller and the Buyer cannot agree on the Earn Out Statement within 20

Business Days after it is provided to the Buyer, either party may at any time within a
further 10 Business Days notify the other party that it wishes some or all of the items
in dispute to be referred to an expert for determination in accordance with clause 13.

Those items of the Earn Out Statement which are not referred to an expert for
determination will be deemed to have been agreed between the Seller and the Buyer.

Any adjustment to the Earn Out Statement agreed between the Seller and the Buyer
and any item of the Earn Out Statement in dispute determined by the expert must,
where applicable, be incorporated into the final Earn Out Statement as soon as
reasonably practicable.

The Buyer must ensure that the Seller and its representatives are given access to,
and provided with copies of, all books and records relating to the Earn Out EBITDA
promptly after being requested to do so.

2.6 Conduct of Pool 1 Childcare Business until end of Earn Out Year

Following Completion, the Buyer must ensure that until the end of the Earn Out Year:

(a)

(b)

the Company carries on the Pool 1 Childcare Business in the ordinary and usual
course, consistent with past practice, maintains marketing, promotional and sales
activities at least at normal levels, charges amounts for its goods and services that
are no less than amounts that are consistent with the ordinary and usual conduct of
its business, diligently and in a timely way invoices customers for the provision of its
goods and services and collects its receivables, prudently and efficiently manages its
expenses, does not materially increase the salaries, wages or other remuneration or
entitlements of its employees and contractors and does not enter into any abnormal
or unusual transaction which relates to or adversely affects the Company or agree to
do so;

the Company uses its best endeavours to maximise the profit of the Company for the
Earn Out Year provided that the Company is not restricted from undertaking an act
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(d)

(e

®)

with respect to a bona fide proposal in circumstances where the board of directors of
the Company has determined in good faith and acting reasonably that:

(1) the proposal, if recommended by the directors of the Company, would be
likely to be completed substantially as proposed and if so completed would
result in a transaction materially more favourable to the Company than
maximising the profit of the Company for the Earn Out Year, after receiving
written advice from the Company’s financial adviser in relation to the matter;
and

(2) failing to undertake the proposal would be likely to cause the directors of the
Company to breach their fiduciary or other legal duties, after receiving written
advice from the Company's external lawyers in relation to the matter;

and the Buyer notifies the Seller of this determination in writing and provides details of
the relevant proposal;

the Company does not dispose of or declare itself trustee of any substantial assets,
childcare centre, leasehold interest or goodwill, or agree to do so;

the Company remains a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Buyer, and remains a
separate economic entity for accounting purposes;

no Buyer Group Member other than the Company carries on a business that is the
same as or substantially similar to the Pool 1 Childcare Business carried on by the
Company within 3 kilometres from a childcare centre operated by the Company,
except at a childcare centre operated by the Buyer at the date of this agreement; and

other than in respect of any childcare centre operated by the Buyer at the date of this
agreement in the normal course of operations of any such childcare centre, no Buyer
Group Member:

1) entices away from the Company orders or work from, sales or the provision of
goods or services to or other transactions, opportunities or business; or

(2) solicits or procures such transactions, opportunities or business which
otherwise would be or would be likely to be provided to the Company.

2.7 Earn Out Scrip Consideration-related adjustments

(a)

(b)

In this clause 2.7:

Bonus Issue means a Pro Rata Issue of securities to holders of Buyer Shares for
which no consideration is payable by them;

Pro Rata Issue means an issue of securities which has been offered or made to all
holders of securities in a class with registered addresses in Australia, or in any other
place where the offer or issue is made, on a pro rata basis, but does not include an
issue of securities in lieu or in satisfaction of dividends or by way of dividend
reinvestment.

If at any time prior to the issue of Buyer Shares to satisfy part of the Earn Out
Consideration there is a Bonus Issue, the Buyer must issue to the Seller at the same
time the Buyer issues to the Seller the Buyer Shares to satisfy part of the Earn Out

39149995 _21.docx
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(c)

(d)

Consideration, the number of bonus securities which the Seller would have received if
before the record date for determining entitiements in relation to the Bonus Issue the
Seller held the securities the Seller would have been entitled to receive as part of the
Earn Out Consideration.

If at any time prior to the issue of Buyer Shares to satisfy part of the Earn Out
Consideration there is a Pro Rata Issue (except a Bonus Issue) of securities offered
or made to the holders of Buyer Shares, the Earn Out Share Price will be reduced
according to the following formula:

,_ o [P=(S+D)]
0"=0 N+1

where:
Q' is the new Earn Out Share Price;
O is the old Earn Out Share Price;

P is the volume weighted average market price (as defined in the ASX Listing Rules)
per Buyer Share of the fully paid Buyer Shares, calculated over the 5 trading days
ending on the day before the ‘ex rights date’ or ‘ex entitlements date’ in relation to the
Pro Rata Issue or, if at the time for determining entitlements under the Pro Rata Issue
official quotation of Buyer Shares has been suspended or has ended, the market
price per Buyer Share of the fully paid Buyer Shares as determined by the board of
directors of the Buyer acting reasonably;

S is the subscription price for a security under the Pro Rata Issue;

D is the dividend per security (if any) due by the Buyer but not yet paid on the existing
fully paid Buyer Shares (except those to be issued under the Pro Rata Issue); and

N is the number of Buyer Shares with rights or entittements that must be held to
receive a right to one new security pursuant to the Pro Rata Issue.

If at any time prior to the issue of the Buyer Shares to satisfy part of the Earn Out
Consideration:

1) Buyer Shares are converted into a larger number (i.e. sub-divided), the Earn
Out Share Price immediately before the conversion will be adjusted in inverse
proportion to the ratio in which the Buyer Shares are converted;

(2) there is a return of share capital of the Buyer or a special distribution by way
of dividend to holders of Buyer Shares, the Earn Out Share Price immediately
before the distribution will be reduced by the amount distributed in relation to
each fully paid Buyer Share; or

3) there is any other reconstruction or reorganisation of the Buyer’s share
capital, the Earn Out Share Price will be reduced as necessary so that the
Seller will not be disadvantaged by the reconstruction or reorganisation.
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3. Conditions for Completion

31 Conditions

The parties have no obligation to complete the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares under

clause 5 unless each of the following conditions is met or waived:

Condition

Right to waive

(a) The Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement is executed by
and exchanged between the parties to that agreement, and all
conditions under clause 3.1 of the Pool 1 Childcare Business
Sale Agreement are satisfied or waived in accordance with the
Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement, and the Buyer and
Seller are otherwise reasonably satisfied that Completion will
occur contemporaneously with Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale
Completion.

Buyer and Seller

(b) The Incubator Agreement is executed by and exchanged
between the parties to the agreement.

Buyer and Seller

(c) All material consents, approvals and waivers in relation to the
sale and transfer of the Sale Shares or issue of Buyer Shares
under, or any other transaction contemplated by, this
agreement that are required to ensure that there is no material
breach of any law, statutory instrument, constitution or
agreement affecting the Company, are obtained including:

¢ the consent of the landlords of the Business Premises
to the change of control/ownership of the Company due
to the sale and transfer of the Sale Shares under this
agreement; and

(2) if immediately before Completion Genius Learning
continues to hold any Childcare Service Approvals for
any Business Premises, the consent of each
Government Agency to the transfer of each such
Childcare Service Approval to the Buyer or Company at
Completion that is required to ensure there is no breach
of the Education and Care Services National Law in
consequence of the transfer.

Buyer and Seller

(d) No material adverse change in the assets, liabilities, financial
position, performance, profits, losses, business, operations or
prospects of the Company or the Pool 1 Childcare Business
since 12 August 2021 occurs, other than any such change to
the extent caused or contributed to by the effects caused by the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Buyer

(e) All material consents, approvals and waivers in relation to the
sale and transfer of the Sale Shares or issue of Buyer Shares
under, or any other transaction contemplated by, this
agreement that are required to ensure that there is no material

Buyer and Seller
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Condition Right to waive
breach of any law, statutory instrument, constitution, agreement
or rule or other requirement of a securities exchange affecting a
Buyer Group Entity, are obtained including:

(1) the approval of the holders of Buyer Shares to the issue
of Buyer Shares under this agreement to satisfy part of
the Earn Out Consideration for the purpose of rule 6.1
of the ASX Listing Rules as applied by ASX in
accordance with ASX guidance note 19 or written
notification from ASX that it does not require the Buyer
to get this approval,

(2) to the extent required by ASX under rule 11.1.2 of the
ASX Listing Rules, the approval of the holders of Buyer
Shares to the sale and transfer of the Sale Shares and
issue of Buyer Shares under this agreement or written
notification from ASX that it does not require the Buyer
to get this approval,

3) to the extent required by ASX under rule 11.1.3 of the
ASX Listing Rules due to the sale and transfer of the
Sale Shares and issue of Buyer Shares under this
agreement, the Buyer meeting the requirements in
chapters 1 and 2 of the ASX Listing Rules as if the
Buyer were applying for admission to the official list of
ASX or written notification from ASX that it does not
require the Buyer to meet these requirements; and

(4) the approval of the holders of Buyer Shares to the issue
of all Buyer Shares under this agreement for the
purpose of item 7 of the table in section 611 of the
Corporations Act.

(f) The Buyer receives share capital of approximately $8,000,000 Buyer and Seller
(or such other amount agreed between the Buyer and Seller) in
cleared funds as a result of the Capital Raising.

(@) No material adverse change in the assets, liabilities, financial Seller
position, performance, profits, losses, business, operations or
prospects of a Buyer Group Entity since 12 August 2021 occurs
other than any such change to the extent caused or contributed
to by the effects caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, and no
circumstance or event referred to in clause 2.4(g) occurs.

3.2 Reasonable endeavours

(a) Each party must use its reasonable endeavours to ensure that all of the conditions set
out in clause 3.1 are met as soon as reasonably practicable and each party must
keep the other parties informed of any circumstance which may result in a condition
not being satisfied.
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33

34

(b) Without limiting the generality of clause 3.2(a), the Buyer must:

1) prepare or procure preparation of the notice of meeting, explanatory
statement and proxy form for the general meeting of the Buyer to seek the
shareholders approvals referred to clause 3.1(e) in consultation with the
Seller;

(2) procure an independent expert report as recommended by ASIC under ASIC
Regulatory Guide 74 for the purpose of seeking the approval required under
item 7 of the table in section 611 of the Corporations Act or that is required to
seek any other approval,

(3) convene and hold the general meeting as soon as reasonably practicable and
put to the meeting the resolutions required to obtain those approvals;

(4) ensure that in any public announcement about the transactions contemplated
by this agreement and in the meeting materials a prominent statement is
included to the effect that all directors of the Buyer intend to vote the Buyer
Shares they or their associates hold in favour of all resolutions, and
unanimously recommend that Buyer shareholders who are entitle to vote on
the resolutions, also vote in favour of them, and the directors do not make any
public statement to the contrary effect; and

(5) with respect to each Property Lease to be assigned or novated to the
Company under clause 3.1 of the Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement,
ensure that any guarantee, cash or property required by the landlord as a
bond or security or otherwise to secure performance of the Company’s
obligations under the Property Lease is provided.

Waiver of conditions

A condition set out in clause 3.1 may be waived, and may only be waived, in writing by the
party or parties entitled to waive the condition as specified in the second column of the table
in clause 3.1 opposite that condition. A party entitled to waive a condition may dosoinits
absolute discretion. Waiver of a condition by a party that is not met due to a breach of this
agreement, also waives any right or remedy the party would have in respect of that breach.

Termination

(a) If the conditions set out in clause 3.1 are not met or waived in accordance with clause
3.3, on or before 31 December 2021 or such other date as the Seller and the Buyer
may agree then this agreement automatically terminates on that date.

(b) On termination of this agreement under this clause 3.4, the parties will be under no
further obligation to each other and will have no further rights against each other
under this agreement except in respect of any breach of this agreement which
occurred before termination or under clause 12.

4.1

Conduct pending Completion
Conduct of Pool 1 Childcare Business in the ordinary course

The Seller must ensure that until Completion the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator:
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(a)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(9)

carries on the Pool 1 Childcare Business in a normal, proper and efficient manner and
manages and conducts the Pool 1 Childcare Business in the ordinary and usual
course, consistent with past practice;

uses all reasonable endeavours to preserve the goodwill of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business;

maintains the assets it owns or uses in connection with the Pool 1 Childcare Business
at normal levels;

carries out repairs and maintenance to the assets it owns or uses in connection with
the Pool 1 Childcare Business in accordance with good commercial practice and

standards of maintenance and as required under any relevant lease, licence or other
agreement;

does not in connection with the Pool 1 Childcare Business:

1) employ any new person in a senior management position;

(2) employ any new person not in a senior management position except to
replace an employee who has resigned or whose employment has been
validly terminated;

(3) terminate the employment of any employee other than for cause;

(4) materially change the terms of employment of any employee; or

(5) provide any bonus to any employee;

or agree to do so;

in the case of the Company only, does not:

1 increase, reduce or otherwise alter its issued equity or loan capital or

securities or other rights convertible into equity or loan capital or grant any
options for the issue of securities;

(2) buy back any of its securities;

(3) declare or pay a dividend or other distribution;

(4) make any alteration to the constitution or other constitutional documents of
the Company;

(5) revalue any of its assets; or

(6) enter into any abnormal or unusual transaction which relates to or adversely

affects the Company;
or agree to do so;

regularly consults with the Buyer on the manner of conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business; and
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4.2

(h) ensures that the assets it owns or uses in connection with the Pool 1 Childcare
Business are insured in accordance with prudent business practice;

except for or as a consequence of entry into or performance of this agreement, the Incubator
Agreement or the Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement or any transaction required or
permitted under or contemplated by such agreement or except to the extent otherwise
expressly approved by the Buyer.

Conduct of Buyer Group Entity’s business in the ordinary course

The Buyer must ensure that until Completion each Buyer Group Entity:

(a) carries on its business in a normal, proper and efficient manner and manages and
conducts its business in the ordinary and usual course, consistent with past practice;

(b) uses all reasonable endeavours to preserve its goodwill;
(c) maintains the assets it owns or uses in connection with its business at normal levels;
(d) carries out repairs and maintenance to the assets it owns or uses in connection with

its business in accordance with good commercial practice and standards of
maintenance and as required under any relevant lease, licence or other agreement;

(e) does not:
(1) employ any new person in a senior management position;
(2) employ any new person not in a senior management position except to

replace an employee who has resigned or whose employment has been
validly terminated;

(3) terminate the employment of any employee other than for cause;

(4) materially change the terms of employment of any employee; or

(5) provide any bonus to any employee;

or agree to do so;

) does not:

(1 increase, reduce or otherwise alter its issued equity or loan capital or
securities or other rights convertible into equity or loan capital or grant any
options for the issue of securities;

(2) buy back any of its securities;

(3) declare or pay a dividend or other distribution;

(4) make any alteration to the constitution or other constitutional documents of a
Buyer Group Entity;
(5) revalue any of its assets; or
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(6) enter into any abnormal or unusual transaction which relates to or adversely
affects a Buyer Group Entity;

or agree to do so;
(9) regularly consults with the Seller on the manner of conduct of its business; and

(h) ensures that the assets it owns or uses in connection with its business are insured in
accordance with prudent business practice;

except for or as a consequence of entry into or performance of this agreement or the
Incubator Agreement or any transaction required or permitted under or contemplated by such
agreement (including in connection with the Capital Raising) or except to the extent otherwise
expressly approved by the Seller.

5.1

5.2

Completion
Time and place

Completion must take place at the office of Piper Alderman, Level 23, 459 Collins Street,
Melbourne, Victoria on the Completion Date starting at 11.00 am or such other place or time
as the parties may agree.

Actions
At the place and time required for Completion (or at an earlier time):

(a) the Seller must deliver to the Buyer a copy of each consent, approval, waiver or other
document referred to in any of clauses 3.1(c) and (d) that has been executed,
adopted or obtained at or before Completion, together with a certificate dated the date
of Completion signed by or on behalf of the Seller certifying that the conditions
referred to in those clauses have been met except for any waived by the Buyer in
writing;

(b) if immediately before Completion Genius Learning continues to hold a Childcare
Service Approval for any Business Premises and the consent of each Government
Agency to the transfer of the Childcare Service Approval to the Buyer or Company
that is required to ensure there is no breach of the Education and Care Services
National Law in consequence of the transfer has been obtained before Completion,
the Seller must deliver to the Buyer, in addition to a copy of each consent under
paragraph (a) above, an instrument of transfer in the prescribed form of the Childcare
Service Approval in favour of the Buyer or Company duly executed by Genius
Learning;

(c) the Seller must deliver to the Buyer or as the Buyer may direct in respect of the Sale
Shares the Buyer has agreed to buy from the Seller under clause 2.1:

) a certificate for the Sale Shares together with an instrument of transfer in
registrable form (save for the payment of any applicable duty) of the Sale
Shares in favour of the Buyer duly executed by the registered holder of them;

(2) a release and discharge in a form and on terms reasonably satisfactory to the
Buyer of any Encumbrance over or in respect of any of the Sale Shares from

39149995 21.docx page 21



Share sale agreement

(d)

(e)

®

(9

(h)

©)

o PiperAlderman

the holder of the Encumbrance including, without limitation, a copy of a duly
completed and signed financing change statement in respect of the discharge
of each registered security interest over or in respect of any of the Sale
Shares, from the relevant secured party, together with a receipt from the
Registrar of Personal Property Securities of lodgement of the financing
change statement or other written confirmation that the financing change
statement has been lodged with the Registrar; and

any approval, consent, waiver, notice or other document which is necessary
for the Buyer to obtain good title to the Sale Shares and their transfer to the
Buyer;

the Seller must deliver to the Buyer the Corporate Records and any other Business
Records requested by the Buyer to be delivered to it and give the Buyer possession
of the remaining Business Records (by leaving them at the Business Premises);

the Seller must give the Buyer possession of all keys, security cards, user names,
passcodes and/or access codes for the Business Premises or any asset or system
owned or used by the Company (by leaving them at the relevant Business Premises);

the Seller must procure:

(1M

()

the resignation or removal as director of the Company of each person who is
immediately before Completion a director of the Company except for 2 of
those persons, to take effect immediately after Completion;

the resignation or removal as secretary of the Company of each person who
is immediately before Completion a secretary of the Company, to take effect
immediately after Completion;

the Seller must procure a resolution of the directors of the Company to be passed
which provides for the approval of the transfers of the Sale Shares the Buyer has
agreed to buy under clause 2.1 and (subject to the payment of any applicable duty)
the registration of the transfers in the Company’s register of members, the
cancellation of the existing certificates in respect of the Sale Shares and the issue of
new certificates in the name of the Buyer;

the Seller must procure a resolution of the directors of the Company to be passed
which provides for:

(N

(2)

the appointment as director of the Company of Dean Wayland Clarke,
Michelle Robyn Clarke and Peter Scott Lowe (or any other person nominated
by the Buyer to be a director of the Company in place of any of those
persons), subject to the proposed director signing a consent in writing to act
as director of the Company and providing evidence to the reasonable
satisfaction of the Seller that the proposed director is a fit and proper person
to be a director of an entity that holds or operates under a Childcare Provider
Approval; and

the appointment as secretary of the Company of Andrew John Draffin (or any
other person nominated by the Buyer to be the secretary of the Company in
place of him), subject to the proposed secretary signing a consent in writing to
act as secretary of the Company and providing evidence to the reasonable
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satisfaction of the Seller that that the proposed secretary is a fit and proper
person to be a company secretary of an entity that holds or operates under a
Childcare Provider Approval; and

(i) the Seller must deliver to the Buyer a counterpart of the Escrow Deed executed by
the Seller;

)] the Buyer must:

(1)

)
©)

4

®)

(6)

deliver to the Seller a copy of each consent, approval, waiver or other
document referred to in any of clauses 3.1(e) to (g) that has been executed,
adopted or obtained at or before Completion, together with a certificate dated
the date of Completion signed by or on behalf of the Buyer certifying that the
conditions referred to in those clauses have been met except for any waived
by the Seller in writing;

deliver to the Seller a counterpart of the Escrow Deed executed by the Buyer;

pay to the Seller the amount referred to in clause 2.4(a) on account of the
Base Consideration;

issue to the Seller the Buyer Shares referred to in clause 2.4(a) on account of
the Base Consideration;

if immediately before Completion there are more than 3 directors of the
Buyer, procure the resignation or removal of directors of the Buyer such that
there are no more than 3 immediately after Completion, not counting any
director appointed under paragraph (6) below; and

procure a resolution of the directors of the Buyer to be passed which provides
for the appointment as director of the Company of Lubna Matta and David
Niall (or any other person nominated by the Seller to be a director of the
Buyer in place of any of those persons), subject to the proposed director
signing a consent in writing to act as director of the Buyer and providing
evidence to the reasonable satisfaction of the Buyer that the proposed
director is a fit and proper person to be a director of an entity that holds a
Childcare Provider Approval.

53 Interdependency

The parties agree that Completion is to occur immediately after Pool 1 Childcare Business
Sale Completion provided that the parties’ obligations at Completion and the obligations of
the parties to the Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement at Pool 1 Childcare Business
Sale Completion are interdependent so that a thing done at Completion by a party is
conditional on, and not taken as done until, all things required at Completion and at Pool 1
Childcare Business Sale Completion are done.
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6. Post Completion

6.1 Power of attorney

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

(f)

The Seller appoints the Buyer and each agent of the Buyer authorised in writing as its
attorney from Completion until the Sale Shares bought by the Buyer from the Seller
under this agreement are registered in the name of the Buyer.

The Seller authorises the attorneys severally on behalf of and in the name of the
Seller to do everything that the Buyer reasonably considers should be done following
Completion to:

)] transfer those Sale Shares,

(2) exercise any rights attached to those Sale Shares; and

(3) receive an entitlement of the Seller in respect of those Sale Shares.

The Seller declares that:

(1) an act of an attorney under this power of attorney is valid:

(2) it gives this power of attorney for valuable consideration; and

(3) this power of attorney is irrevocable from the date of this agreement.

The Seller must ratify an act that an attorney does under this power of attorney.

An attorney may specifically do an act under this power of attorney which results in a
benefit to the Buyer.

The Buyer indemnifies the Seller against all liabilities incurred by the Seller as a result
of any act of an attorney of the Buyer authorised under this power of attorney.

6.2 Conduct pending payment of Earn Out Consideration

Following Completion, the Buyer must ensure that if the Earn Out EBITDA as set out in the
final Earn Out Statement is less than the EBITDA Target, until the date the Earn Out
Statement is finalised or, in any other case, until the date of issue the Buyer Shares to satisfy
part of the Earn Out Consideration:

(a)

(b)

if a director of the Buyer who is appointed for or on behalf of or to represent the Seller
or at the nomination of the Seller retires at a general meeting of the Buyer and stands
for election or re-election, the Buyer uses its best endeavours to support the election
or re-election of the director,

if a director of the Buyer who is appointed for or on behalf of or to represent the Seller
or at the nomination of the Seller ceases to be a director of the Buyer for any reason,
as soon as reasonably practicable the Buyer procures a resolution of the directors of
the Buyer to be passed which provides for the appointment as director of the Buyer of
any person nominated by the Seller to be a director of the Buyer in place of the
person who ceases to be a director, subject to the proposed director signing a
consent in writing to act as director of the Buyer and providing evidence to the
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6.3

reasonable satisfaction of the Buyer that the proposed director is a fit and proper
person to be a director of an entity that holds a Childcare Provider Approval;

(c) no Buyer Group Entity has more than 5 directors and each director of the Buyer who
is appointed for or on behalf of or to represent the Seller or at the nomination of the
Seller continues to be or is appointed a director of the Company and each other
Buyer Group Entity subject to the person agreeing to continue or to be appointed as a
director of the entity and, in the case of a new appointment, signing a consent in
writing to act as director of the entity; and

(d) immediately after Completion the Buyer provides the Company with at least $250,000
of working capital by way of gift or subscription for ordinary shares in the Company
and a letter of comfort in connection with providing working capital to the Company on
an as needed basis;

except to the extent otherwise expressly required or permitted by this agreement or unless the
Seller otherwise agrees.

Change of name of Company

Upon termination of the IP Licence Agreement, the Buyer must do all things necessary to
change the Company’s name to a name which does not incorporate the word Genius or any
business name, domain name or trade mark forming part of the intellectual property licensed
under the IP Licence Agreement or any similar name and is approved by the Seller (which
must not be unreasonably withheld or delayed).

71

7.2

7.3

Foreign resident CGT withholding and CGT roll-over relief

Residency declaration

For the purposes of section 14-225(1) of Schedule 1 of the 1953 Tax Act, the Seller declares
that, for the period from the date of execution of this agreement up to and including
Completion, it is and will be an Australian resident (within the meaning of the 1997 Tax Act).

Declaration that the Sale Shares are not indirect Australian real property interests

For the purposes of section 14-225(2) of Schedule 1 of the 1953 Tax Act, the Seller declares
that, for the period from the date of execution of this agreement up to and including
Completion, the Sale Shares:

(a) are membership interests (within the meaning of the 1997 Tax Act); and

(b) are not indirect Australian real property interests (within the meaning provided by
section 855-25 of the 1997 Tax Act).

CGT roll-over relief
(a) To the extent that:

(1) the Seller chooses to obtain roll-over pursuant to subdivision 124-M of the
Tax Act in relation to its disposal of the Sale Shares, and
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(2) section 124-782 applies to the Seller in relation to the transactions
contemplated by this agreement;

the Buyer agrees to jointly choose to obtain roll-over pursuant to subdivision 124-M of
the Tax in relation to its acquisition of the Sale Shares.

(b) The Buyer agrees not to make an election pursuant to section 124-795(4) of the Tax
Act in relation to its acquisition of the Sale Shares.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Warranties by Seller
Seller Warranties

In consideration of the Buyer agreeing to buy Sale Shares from the Seller in accordance with
this agreement, the Seller represents and warrants to the Buyer that each of the Seller
Warranties is true, accurate and not misleading at the date of this agreement and will be true,
accurate and not misleading at Completion.

Separate representations

Each of the Seller Warranties is to be treated as a separate representation and warranty in
respect of each statement made and the interpretation of any statement made is not to be
restricted by reference to or inference from any other statement.

Inducement

The Seller acknowledges that the Seller Warranties are made to the Buyer with the intention
of inducing the Buyer to enter into this agreement and that the Buyer has entered into this
agreement on the basis of, and in reliance on, the Seller Warranties.

Notice of breach

If before Completion the Seller becomes aware of any fact, matter or circumstance which is,
or is reasonably likely to be, contrary to or inconsistent with any of the Seller Warranties or
has had, is having or is reasonably likely to have, a material adverse effect on the profitability
or value of the Pool 1 Childcare Business since the Balance Date, the Seller must as soon as
reasonably practicable after becoming aware of that fact, matter or circumstance give notice
to the Buyer in writing describing that fact, matter or circumstance in reasonable detail so as
to enable the Buyer to consider the nature and impact of it.

9.1

Qualifications and limitations
Disclosures

(a) Each Seller Warranty (other than a Seller Fundamental Warranty) is given subject to
and qualified by any fact, matter or circumstance:

(1) provided for or disclosed in this agreement (including the schedules);
(2) that would have been revealed by an inspection or search:

(A) on the date that is 3 Business Days before the date of this agreement
of any public register or records kept by ASX, ASIC or the PPSR; or
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9.2

9.3

(B) of the registry of:
(i) the Federal Circuit Court of Australia on 26 August 2021,
(i) the Supreme Court of Queensland on 26 August 2021,

(iii) the Supreme Court of New South Wales on 19 September
2021,

(iv) the Supreme Court of Western Australia on 26 August 2021;

v) the Supreme Court of South Australia on 3 September 2021;
or

(vi) the Supreme Court of Victoria on 30 August 2021,

(3) Fairly Disclosed in the Disclosure Letter and each Seller Fundamental
Warranty set out in clauses 2 and 3 of schedule 1 is also given subject to and
qualified by any fact, matter or circumstance Fairly Disclosed in the
Disclosure Letter; or

(4) Fairly Disclosed in a Due Diligence Document;

which is contrary to or inconsistent with the Seller Warranty, and the Seller will not be
liable for or in connection with a breach of the Seller Warranty due to the fact, matter
or circumstance contradicting or being inconsistent with the Seller Warranty.

(b) No other information or investigation made by or on behalf of the Buyer into the affairs
of the Company or the Seller will extinguish or affect any of the Seller Warranties or
prejudice any Claim made by the Buyer under or in connection with this agreement or
operate to reduce any amount recoverable by the Buyer.

Minimum limitation

The Buyer must not make a Claim against the Seller under or in connection with this
agreement unless:

(a) the Buyer's Loss due to the relevant cause of action exceeds or is reasonably likely to
exceed $30,000; and

(b) the Buyer's Loss due to the relevant cause of action together with all other Losses of
the Buyer due to causes of action under or in connection with this agreement exceed
$100,000;

in which case, the Buyer can bring a Claim against the Seller for the full amount of the Buyer's
Losses. In determining any Loss of the Buyer in respect of a cause of action for the purposes
only of determining whether the thresholds specified in clauses 9.2(a) and 9.2(b) have been
exceeded, no account will be taken of the legal and other costs the Buyer incurs or may incur
in pursuing the Seller in respect of the cause of action.

Maximum limitation

The maximum liability of the Seller under or in connection with this agreement is the Base
Consideration paid by the Buyer to the Seller. Additionally, the maximum liability of the Seller
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9.4

9.5

under or in connection with this agreement other than for breach of a Seller Fundamental
Warranty or in respect of a Tax Claim is 65% of the Base Consideration paid by the Buyer to
the Seller.

Time limitation

The Buyer may not make a Claim against the Seller:

(a) for or in connection with a breach of a Seller Fundamental Warranty or in respect of a
Tax Claim unless a notice in writing containing reasonable particulars of the Claim is

given by the Buyer to the Seller within 5 years from the date of Completion; or

(b) otherwise under or in connection with this agreement unless a notice in writing
containing reasonable particulars of the Claim is given by the Buyer to the Seller
within 18 months from the date of Completion;

and the Seller will have no liability in relation to such a Claim unless the Claim has been
settled or a proceeding is filed with a court of competent jurisdiction in respect of the Claim
within 6 months from the later of:

(c) the date of receipt by the Seller of the Buyer’s written notice of the Claim; and

(d) the date sufficient written notices of Claims by the Buyer have been received by the
Seller which in aggregate exceed the minimum Claims thresholds referred to in
clause 9.2.

Future events

The Seller will not be liable for any Loss of or Claim by the Buyer arising under or in
connection with this agreement to the extent attributable to:

(a) a change of law or the interpretation of a law; or

(b) the enactment of any legislation or the announcement by a government of its intention
to enact any legislation,

after the date of this agreement.
Buyer's acts

The Seller will not be liable for any Loss of or Claim by the Buyer arising under or in
connection with this agreement to the extent attributable to

(a) the Buyer or another Buyer Group Member applying accounting standards or
principles in respect of the Pool 1 Childcare Business after Completion that are
different to the Pool 1 Childcare Business Accounting GAAP ; or

(b) an act or omission by a Seller Group Member before Completion which occurs
because the Seller Group Member complies with a written direction given to it by the
Buyer other than a direction requiring compliance, or that is otherwise consistent, with
the Seller's obligations under this agreement or any other agreement.
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9.7 Loss otherwise compensated

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Seller will not be liable for any Loss of the Buyer arising under or in connection
with this agreement to the extent that:

(1) the Loss is recovered by the Buyer under a Claim against the Seller or is
made good or otherwise compensated for net of any cost to the Buyer; or

(2) any Buyer Group Member receives compensation for the Loss, whether under
an insurance policy or otherwise:

Where a Buyer Group Member may be entitled to such compensation from a third
party, then the Buyer must ensure that the Buyer Group Member uses reasonable
endeavours to seek and recover the compensation.

If the Buyer receives payment of an amount (Claim Amount) from or on behalf of the
Seller in respect of a Claim arising under or in connection with this agreement and
within 12 months after the Claim Amount is received any Buyer Group Member
receives payment of an amount (Recovery Amount) by reason of the fact, matter or
circumstance to which the Claim relates, then the Buyer must within 20 Business
Days after the Recovery Amount is received repay to the Seller (in such proportions
or amounts as they determine) an amount (Repayment Amount) equal to the lesser
of:

1) the Claim Amount up to the amount by which the Recovery Amount exceeds:

(A) all reasonable costs incurred by any Buyer Group Member in
consequence of seeking or enforcing payment of or otherwise
claiming the Claim Amount or Recovery Amount (including any
increase in insurance premiums in respect of future periods); and

(B) any additional income tax payable under the Tax Act by any Buyer
Group Member as a result of receiving the Claim Amount or Recovery
Amount after taking into account all available tax deductions and
concessions available to any Buyer Group Member as a result of the
Buyer repaying to the Seller the Repayment Amount or any Buyer
Group Member paying or incurring costs in consequence of seeking
or enforcing payment of or otherwise claiming the Claim Amount or
Recovery Amount; and

(2) the amount (if any) by which the Claim Amount plus the Recovery Amount
exceeds the actual Loss of the Buyer (including any part of the Loss that is
below the minimum Claims thresholds referred to in clause 9.2), plus all other
Losses of the Buyer due to or in connection with any other cause of action
arising under or in connection with this agreement to the extent not recovered
from a Seller Group Member.

9.8 Third party claims

(a)

If a Claim (Third Party Claim) is made against the Buyer or another Buyer Group
Member (Defendant) by a person other than a Seller Group Member which may
result in liability of the Seller under or in connection with this agreement, the Buyer
must and, if the Buyer is not the Defendant, the Buyer must procure the Defendant to:
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notify the Seller in writing of the Third Party Claim together with reasonable
particulars of the Third Party Claim as soon as reasonably practicable after
becoming aware of the Third Party Claim;

not make any admission of liability in respect of or settle the Third Party Claim
without the prior written consent of the Seller which must not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed; and

take such action as the Seller reasonably request, including action to avoid,
dispute, resist, bring an appeal on, compromise or defend the Third Party
Claim or any adjudication of the Third Party Claim.

Where a Third Party Claim is made, the Seller may give written notice to the Buyer
that the Seller, on behalf of the Defendant, wants to:

(1
()
3
4)

(5)

assume the conduct of the defence of the Third Party Claim;
institute a cross claim or counterclaim to the Third Party Claim;
negotiate and agree to a settiement of the Third Party Claim;

agree to any form of alternative dispute resolution (including mediation) in
relation to the Third Party Claim; and/or

retain lawyers to act on behalf of both the Defendant and the Seller in relation
to the Third Party Claim;

and if the Seller gives written notice to the Buyer that the Seller wants to do any of the
above, the Buyer must and, if the Buyer is not the Defendant, the Buyer must procure
the Defendant to, ensure that the conduct of the Third Party Claim by the Defendant
will (to the extent of the notice) be under the management and control of the Seller.

Where the Seller assumes the management and control of the conduct of a Third
Party Claim on behalf of the Defendant under clause 9.8(b):

(M

(2)

the Seller must act reasonably in the conduct of the Third Party Claim and
have regard to the principle that the reputation of the Defendant should not be
unnecessarily injured;

the Buyer must and, if the Buyer is not the Defendant, the Buyer must procure
the Defendant to:

(A) if requested by the Seller, render all reasonable assistance and co-
operation to the Seller in the conduct of the defence of the Third Party
Claim or the prosecution of a cross claim or counterclaim to the Third
Party Claim including, without limitation, providing the Seller with any
documents, authorities and directions that the Seller may reasonably
require for that purpose; and

(B) if requested by the Seller, do anything reasonably necessary or
desirable to enable the Seller (so far as it is possible) to be
subrogated to and enjoy the benefits of the Defendant’s rights in
relation to any cause of action against any third party in connection
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with the Third Party Claim and render such assistance as may be
reasonably requested by the Seller for that purpose; and

(3) the Seller must indemnify the Buyer and, if the Buyer is not the Defendant,
the Defendant against the reasonable costs incurred by the Buyer or the
Defendant in taking action or providing assistance pursuant to clause
9.8(c)(2).

99 No other warranties or remedies

(a) The Buyer acknowledges and agrees that the Seller Warranties and other
representations and warranties by the Seller expressly set out in this agreement:

(1) are the only representations and warranties the Seller has given in connection
with the sale of the Sale Shares or otherwise in connection with this
agreement; and

(2) are the only representations and warranties the Buyer has relied on in
entering into this agreement.

(b) The Buyer also acknowledges and agrees that:

1M the Seller Group Members will not be liable for any Loss of or Claim by the
Buyer or any other Buyer Group Member arising from or relating to any
statement, representation, warranty, promise, undertaking or agreement in
connection with the sale of the Sale Shares made by or on behalf of any
Seller Group Member or resuiting from or implied by conduct made in the
course of communications or negotiations in connection with the sale of the
Sale Shares not expressly set out in this agreement;

(2) the Seller Group Members give no representations or warranties whatever
about future matters, including the future financial position or performance of
the Pool 1 Childcare Business, Group or any Group Entity; and

(3) any forecast, forward looking statement or other statement as to the future
made by or on behalf of any Seller Group Member or resulting from or implied
by conduct made in the course of communications or negotiations in
connection with the sale of the Sale Shares may involve significant elements
of subjective judgment and assumption as to future events which may or may
not be correct, and there are usually differences between forecasts and actual
results because events and actual circumstances frequently do not occur as
forecast and these differences may be material;

and the Buyer releases, and must procure each other Buyer Group Member to
release, the Seller Group Members from all liability in respect of any such statement,
representation, warranty, promise, undertaking or agreement to the maximum extent
permitted by law.

(c) To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Buyer agrees not to make, and to waive
any right it may have to make, and to procure each other Buyer Group Member not to
make, and to waive any right it may have to make, a Claim against any Seller Group
Member under the Competition and Consumer Act 2010 (Cth), Corporations Act 2001
(Cth), Australian Securities and Investments Commission Act 2001 (Cth) or any
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9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

similar federal, state or territory legislation, for misleading or deceptive conduct

concerning the sale of Sale Shares or any other transaction under or contemplated by

this agreement or for any statement or representation concerning any of those things.
Seller liable to Buyer only

(a) The Buyer acknowledges and agrees that:

) no Seller Group Member other than the Seller has any liability to the Buyer or
any other Buyer Group Member; and

(2) the Seller has no liability to any Buyer Group Member other than the Buyer;

under or in connection with this agreement.

(b) Each Seller Group Member, whether or not a party to this agreement, will be entitled
to the benefit of this clause 9 and this clause 9 may be enforced on its behalf by the
Seller.

(c) The Buyer must ensure that each other Buyer Group Member abides by and

observes this clause 9 as if it were the Buyer.
Duty to mitigate

The Buyer must, and must procure each other Buyer Group Member to, use reasonable
endeavours to mitigate its losses and liabilities in relation to a Claim against the Buyer or any
Buyer Group Member which may result in liability of the Seller under or in connection with this
agreement.

No knowledge of breach

As at the date of execution of this agreement, the Buyer had not already formulated an
intention to make a Claim for or in connection with a breach of Seller Warranty and neither it
nor any other Buyer Group Member had actual knowledge of any fact, matter or circumstance
which would constitute a breach of Seller Warranty.

Indirect or consequential loss

The Seller will not be liable for, or with respect to any indirect or consequential loss arising
under or in connection with this agreement, whether the relevant claim or cause of action
arises due to a breach of contract, in tort, under an indemnity, under any other basis in
common law or equity, under statue or otherwise and whether or not the loss may reasonably
be supposed to have been in the contemplation of the parties at the time they entered into this
agreement. In this clause 9.13, indirect or consequential loss is taken to include loss of or
damage to goodwill, business reputation or future reputation, adverse publicity or damage to
credit rating, loss of profits, bonuses, anticipated income, anticipated cost savings or other
economic loss, corruption, destruction or other loss of data, and loss of opportunity,
customers, clients, investors or other business, but does not include any loss which may fairly
and reasonably be considered to arise naturally, that is, according to the usual course of
things, from the relevant breach or other cause of action itself or any diminution in the value of
any Sale Shares or any direct loss of profits, direct loss of revenue or direct loss of
production.
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914 Compensation

(a) If the Buyer is entitled to an amount from the Seller in respect of a Claim arising under
or in connection with this agreement (SPA Claim), the Seller, once the aggregate
amount of SPA Claims paid by the Seller to the Buyer is equal to or exceeds the Base
Cash Consideration, may elect by written notice to the Buyer to pay all or any of the
amount (Share Compensation Amount) by selling and transferring to the Buyer the
number of fully paid Buyer Shares (rounded to the nearest whole number)
(Compensation Sale Shares) equal to the Share Compensation Amount divided by
the Buyer Share VWAP. Upon the Seller giving the notice of election to the Buyer,
the Seller will be taken to have agreed to sell to the Buyer, and the Buyer will be
taken to have agreed to buy back from the Seller and to have approved in writing the
buy-back for the purpose of clause 2.3(b) of the Escrow Deed, the Compensation
Sale Shares free from all Encumbrances subject to satisfying the applicable
requirements under division 2 of part 2J.1 of the Corporations Act, and as soon as
reasonably practicable thereafter:

(1) the Seller must deliver an instrument of transfer in registrable form (save for
the payment of any applicable duty) of the Compensation Sale Shares in
favour of the Buyer duly executed by the registered holder of them and take
all other steps within its power that are necessary to sell and transfer the
Compensation Sale Shares to the Buyer in compliance with division 2 of part
2J.1 of the Corporations Act; and

(2) the Buyer must use its best endeavours to ensure that all other requirements
to buy back the Compensation Sale Shares in compliance with division 2 of
part 2J.1 of the Corporations Act are met;

and once the Seller has satisfied its obligations under this clause 9.14(a) and done
anything else reasonably within its power to do to ensure the requirements of division
2 of part 2J.1 of the Corporations Act are met, the Share Compensation Amount will
have been, or will be taken to have been, paid to the Buyer.

(b) Any compensation received by the Buyer for or in connection with a breach of Seller
Warranty or other provision of this agreement will be in reduction and refund of the
consideration for the Sale Shares bought by the Buyer under this agreement.

9.15 Limitations do not apply
None of the qualifications or limitations in this clause 9 apply to any Loss of or Claim by the

Buyer or any other Buyer Group Member to the extent that it arises out of, or is increased as a
result of, any fraud, wilful default or wilful concealment by the Seller.

10. Tax Indemnity by Seller
10.1  Indemnity
Subject to this clause 10, the Seller indemnifies and must keep indemnified the Buyer for any:
(a) costs and expenses incurred by or on behalf of the Company due to any action taken
to manage, avoid, resist or settle any Tax Liabilities to the extent those costs and

expenses arise from or relate to any of the matters referred to in clause 10.1(b) (Tax
Costs) up to $30,000 in the aggregate;
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(b) Tax Liabilities payable or incurred by the Company in respect of the operations of the
Company or the Pool 1 Childcare Business in respect of any period prior to
Completion as a result of, or in respect of, or by reference to:

(1)

(2)
®3)

4)

()

(6)

(7)
(8)

any acts or omissions of, or an event occurring, or deemed for Tax purposes
to occur or have occurred and which affects the Company;

an action, decision, direction or election made;

any grouping of the Company with any other business or corporation for
payroll tax purposes;

any income, profits or gains (not falling within clause 10.1(b)(1)) earned,
accrued, derived or received, or deemed for any Tax purposes to be earned,
accrued, derived or received on or before or in respect of any period ending;

any deductions or losses deducted, or deemed for any Tax purposes to be
deducted;

any financial incentives and associated declarations, rebates, credits,
withholding tax, offsets, PAYG tax, franking credits or debits, GST input tax
credits and any tax related transactions made or in respect of the period
ending;

any underpayment of any Taxes by the Company; or

any failure by the Company to comply with statutory requirements including
failure to provide information or documents to any Government Agency where
the time or date for compliance with those requirements or the provision of
the information or documents occurred or fell,

prior to Completion, but only to the extent that the Tax Liability is not a liability for Tax arising
in connection with the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare Business after Completion.

10.2 Scope of Tax Indemnity

(a) The Seller will not be liable to make any payment under this clause 10 in respect of any
Tax Liability to the extent that (except in the event of fraud on the part of the Seller or
the Companyy):

M

()
3)

it arises as a result of any income derived, loss, outgoing or deductions incurred
or activities undertaken, or deemed for Tax purposes to have been undertaken,
after Completion unless arising from an action, decision, direction or election
made prior to Completion;

it arises as a result of the transactions contemplated by this agreement; or

an amount has been recovered by the Company in respect of the same subject
matter (net of liabilities incurred in making that recovery).

(b) The Buyer may not make a Claim under clause 10.1 to the extent the Seller has fully
compensated the Company for the subject matter of that Claim.

(c) The Seller is not liable for any Tax Claim, and the Buyer must not bring any Tax Claim
to the extent that:
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10.3

104

10.5

1) the Claim arises from, or is increased as a result of, the Company joining a
consolidated group for Tax purposes on or after Completion;

(2) the Tax the subject of the Claim would not have arisen but for any change in
the accounting policy or practice of the Company or another Buyer Group
Entity after Completion;

(3) the Tax the subject of the Claim arises out of the cessation or alteration of the
Pool 1 Childcare Business or any other business of a Buyer Group Entity after
Completion; or

(4) the Tax the subject of the Claim is due to changes in Tax Law with
retrospective operation.

Payment of Tax Liabilities
Where a Claim under the Tax Indemnity involves an actual payment of Tax by the Company:

(a) the parties must procure that the Company pays the relevant Tax by the date on
which the Tax in question is due to be paid to the relevant Taxation Authority; and

(b) where it is agreed by the parties or determined that the Seller is liable to make a
payment under the Tax Indemnity in respect of the amount of Tax referred to in
clause 10.1, the Seller must pay the amount agreed or determined to the Buyer within
10 Business Days of the agreement or determination of the Seller's liability.

Despite anything else contained in this agreement, if the Buyer is paid an amount under the
Tax Indemnity and the circumstances giving rise to that entitlement also constitute a breach of
Seller Warranty, any compensation under this agreement in respect of that breach of Seller
Warranty due to the Buyer will be reduced by that amount.

Tax investigations

If any request for information, investigation or audit is made by any Government Agency in
respect of Tax of any Buyer Group Entity relating to a period before Completion which may
result in liability of the Seller under the Tax Indemnity, the Buyer must as soon as reasonably
practicable notify the Seller in writing and provide the Seller with the notice and copies of any
written materials received. In addition, if the Seller notifies the Buyer that the Seller wishes to
participate in any such request for information, investigation or audit, the Buyer must:

(a) consult with the Seller at all times whilst any investigation or audit is being conducted
and exchange any relevant information with the Seller; and

(b) endeavour to give the Seller the right to be represented at any interview, meeting or
settle negotiation between any officer or employee of the Commissioner of Taxation
(or other relevant Government Agency) and a representative of the Buyer dealing with
any issue arising from the information requested, investigation or audit.

Tax returns
The Buyer must ensure that every tax return in respect of Tax of any Buyer Group Entity

relating to a period before Completion which may result in liability of the Seller under the Tax
Indemnity that is lodged after Completion:
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(a) is delivered to the Seller in final draft form a reasonable period before that return is
lodged; and
(b) incorporates any reasonable amendments the Seller requests prior to lodgement.

11. Warranties by Buyer
11.1  Buyer Warranties

In consideration of the Seller agreeing to sell their Sale Shares to the Buyer in part
consideration for the issue of Buyer Shares to the Seller in accordance with this agreement,
the Buyer represents and warrants to the Seller that each of the Buyer Warranties is true,
accurate and not misleading at the date of this agreement and will be true, accurate and not
misleading at Completion.

11.2 Separate representations

Each of the Buyer Warranties is to be treated as a separate representation and warranty in
respect of each statement made and the interpretation of any statement made is not to be
restricted by reference to or inference from any other statement.

11.3 Inducement

The Buyer acknowledges that the Buyer Warranties are made to the Seller with the intention
of inducing the Seller to enter into this agreement and that the Seller has entered into this
agreement on the basis of, and in reliance on, the Buyer Warranties.

11.4 Notice of breach

If before Completion the Buyer becomes aware of any fact, matter or circumstance which is,
or is reasonably likely to be, contrary to or inconsistent with any of the Buyer Warranties or
has had, is having or is reasonably likely to have, an adverse effect on the profitability or
value of a Buyer Group Entity since the Balance Date, the Buyer must as soon as reasonably
practicable after becoming aware of that fact, matter or circumstance give notice to the Seller
in writing describing that fact, matter or circumstance in reasonable detail so as to enable the
Buyer to consider the nature and impact of it.

11.5 No knowledge of breach

As at the date of execution of this agreement, the Seller had not already formulated an
intention to make a Claim for or in connection with a breach of Buyer Warranty and the Seller
had no actual knowledge of any fact, matter or circumstance which would constitute a breach
of Buyer Warranty.

12. Confidentiality
121 Prohibition

Each party undertakes that it and its officers, employees and advisers and others to whom it
discloses the terms of this agreement, any transaction contemplated under it or any
information about the sale of the Sale Shares that is not in the public domain, will not disclose
any of that information except as permitted or otherwise provided under this agreement.
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12.2 Exceptions

Information may be disclosed:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

to a person provided that knowledge of the information disclosed to the person is
necessary for the purpose of negotiating, preparing, executing, performing,
undertaking, completing or enforcing this agreement or any transaction contemplated
under this agreement and the person agrees not to disclose the information except as
permitted or otherwise provided under this agreement;

as is necessary for a party to comply with any applicable law or requirement ofa
securities exchange or to exercise or enforce its rights, perform its obligations or
defend any claim or proceeding, under or in connection with this agreement provided
that all reasonable steps have been taken to limit, as far as reasonably possible, the
extent of the disclosure;

by a party in a press release or public announcement about this agreement or any
transaction under it with the approval of the other parties as to the form, content and
manner of the release or announcement, which must not be unreasonably withheld;
or

by a party to the extent permitted in writing by the other parties.

13. Expert determination

If a matter is permitted or required to be determined under this agreement by an expert:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

the expert is to be a suitably qualified and experienced independent expert agreed by
the parties to make the determination provided that if the parties have not agreed on
an expert to make the determination within 10 Business Days from the first date a
written nomination of any such expert is given by one of them to the others, a person
who is nominated by the national president of Resolution Institute ABN 69 008 651
232 (or his or her nominee) to make the determination, at the request of any party,
and who represents to the parties in writing to the effect that the expert is independent
of the parties and has sufficient qualifications and experience to make the
determination;

as soon as reasonably practicable after the expert has been agreed or nominated, the
parties must engage the expert on reasonable terms and refer the relevant matter to
the expert for determination in writing expeditiously, as an expert and not an
arbitrator;

each party must provide the expert with such information as the expert may
reasonably require in order to make the determination, subject to the party taking
reasonable precautions to maintain the confidentiality of that information or to ensure
that any legal professional privilege or other privilege attaching to that information is
not waived or otherwise lost;

a party may make a submission to the expert in respect of the matter under
determination and all written communications between the expert (or expert's adviser)
and a party (or party’s adviser) must be copied to each other party;

the parties must ensure that:
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®

(9)

(h)

(1) the expert provides a draft of the expert's determination to each party at or
about the same time and must allow each party a period of 5 Business Days
to review and provide any comments to the expert on the draft determination;
and

(2) the expert provides the expert’s final written determination to each party at or
about the same time and promptly after it has been finalised;

the expert's final written determination will be conclusive and binding on the parties
except to the extent of any manifest error;

the costs of the expert must be borne by the Buyer as to one-half and the Seller as to
the other half unless otherwise expressly stated in this agreement or agreed between
the parties in writing; and

each party must consult with each other party and do whatever is reasonably
requested of it to effect the engagement of the expert and to assist the expert make
the determination as soon as reasonably practicable and within any period required
for finalising the determination.

14. Default

141 Termination

(a)

(b)

(c)

If the Buyer or the Seller (defaulting party) commits a material breach of this
agreement before Completion has occurred and:

1 if the breach is capable of remedy, fails to remedy the breach and pay to the
other (non-defaulting party) any reasonable costs incurred by the non-
defaulting party resulting from the breach within 5 Business Days from receipt
of a written notice of default from the non-defaulting party specifying the
breach and any such costs; or

(2) if the breach is not capable of remedy, fails to pay to the non-defaulting party
reasonable compensation for the non-defaulting party’s Loss resulting from

the breach within 5 Business Days from receipt of a written notice of default
from the non-defaulting party specifying the breach and compensation;

this agreement may be terminated immediately by the non-defaulting party giving a
written notice of termination to the defaulting party.

The parties agree that failure to perform an obligation by a particular time is a breach
capable of remedy.

The parties agree that:
1) a breach of clause 5.2 by a party is a material breach committed by the party;

(2) a breach of a Seller Fundamental Warranty is a material breach committed by
the Seller; and

3) a breach of a Buyer Fundamental Warranty is a material breach committed by
the Buyer.
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14.2

14.3

14.4

Effect of termination

Termination of this agreement under this clause 14 will not prejudice or otherwise affect any
rights and obligations of the parties expressed in this agreement to survive termination of this
agreement, nor will it prejudice or otherwise affect any right or remedy one party has against
another party in respect of any breach of this agreement before termination, but will terminate
all other rights and obligations of the parties under this agreement.

Survival

This clause 14 and clauses 9, 12 and 16 (except 16.13) survive termination of this agreement.
Deferral of Completion

Where:

(a) Completion does not occur on the Completion Date due to a party committing a
material breach of this agreement;

(b) the defaulting party redresses the breach (i.e. remedies the breach and pays to the
non-defaulting party any reasonable costs incurred by the non-defaulting party
resulting from the breach or pays to the non-defaulting party reasonable
compensation for the non-defaulting party’s Loss resulting from the breach) within 5
Business Days from receipt of the non-defaulting party’s written notice of default
under clause 14.1(a) (or such longer period as the non-defaulting party allows); and

(c) there remains any outstanding actions required to be performed by the parties at
Completion under clause 5;

those actions must be performed on the next Business Day after the defaulting party
redresses the breach at the same place and time of day specified in or otherwise agreed in
accordance with clause 5.1.

15.

1541

Restraint
Seller's restraint

Subject to Completion occurring and this clause 15, the Seller agrees that it will not, directly or
indirectly, on their own account, or for or on behalf of or through any person or entity, do any
of the following in the Restraint Area during the Restraint Period:

(a) carry on, participate in, assist in or otherwise be directly or indirectly involved in as a
director, consultant, adviser, contractor, principal, manager, employee, partner,
associate, or financier of, any business or venture which is the same as, substantially
similar to or competitive with the Pool 1 Childcare Business;

(b) solicit, canvass, induce, entice away or encourage any person or entity known to it to
leave their employment or engagement with the Pool 1 Childcare Business;

(c) solicit, canvass, approach or accept any approach from any person or entity who was
at any time during the immediately preceding 12 months a customer of the Pool 1
Childcare Business, with a view to establishing a relationship with or obtaining the
custom of that person or entity; or
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(d) interfere or seek to interfere with the relationship between the Company and its
clients, customers, employees or suppliers in the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business.

15.2 Acknowledgements

(a) The restraints set out in this clause 15 are separate, distinct and several so that the
unenforceability of any restraint does not affect the enforceability of the other
restraints. The parties acknowledge that:

M

)

all the prohibitions and restrictions in this clause 15 are reasonable in the
circumstances and necessary to protect the goodwill of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business; and

it is the intention of the parties that all combinations of such prohibitions and
restrictions will apply and be enforceable and that only those which a court, in
exercising its discretion, may hold to be an unreasonable restraint of trade will
be severed.

(b) The parties acknowledge and agree that damages would not be an adequate remedy
for any breach of the restraints set out in this clause 15 and the remedies of
injunction, specific performance and other equitable relief are appropriate for any
threatened or actual breach of this clause.

(c) Clause 15.1 does not prohibit a Seller Group Member from:

(1)
)

©)

4)

(6)

having an interest in Buyer Shares;

having an interest in securities of an entity which represent no more than 5%
of the voting rights attached to the issued securities of the entity;

performing any contracting or services arrangement for a Buyer Group
Member;

undertaking any act required or anticipated by this agreement, the Incubator
Agreement or the Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement or any
transaction required under such agreement or any act otherwise undertaken
with the prior written consent of the Buyer; or

doing anything in respect of any childcare centre operated by a Seller Group
Member at the date of this agreement in the normal course of operations of
any such childcare centre.

16. General

16.1 Governing law and jurisdiction

This agreement is governed by the laws of Victoria, Australia. The parties submit to the non-
exclusive jurisdiction of the courts exercising jurisdiction there.

16.2 Amendment

This agreement may only be amended by written amendment executed by each party.
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16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

16.7

16.8

16.9

Waiver

A provision of this agreement or a right created under it may not be waived except in writing
signed by the party granting the waiver.

Exercise of a right

A party may exercise a right at its discretion and separately or together with another right. If a
party exercises a single right or only partially exercises a right, then that party may still
exercise that right or any other right later. If a party fails to exercise a right or delays in
exercising a right, then that party may still exercise that right later.

Remedies cumulative

The rights and remedies provided in this agreement are cumulative with and not exclusive of
the rights and remedies provided by law independently of this agreement.

Continuing indemnities

Each indemnity in this agreement is:

(a) a continuing obligation despite any settlement of account or the occurrence of any
other thing, and remains in full force and effect until all money owing, contingently or
otherwise, under the indemnity has been paid in full;

(b) is additional, separate and independent from the other obligations of the parties; and

(c) survives termination of this agreement.

It is not necessary for a party to incur expense or make payment before enforcing a right of
indemnity conferred by this agreement.

No merger

The rights and obligations of the parties will not merge on completion of any transaction under
this agreement. They will survive the execution and delivery of any assignment or other
document entered into for the purpose of implementing any transaction.

Assignment

(a) This agreement is for the benefit of the parties and their successors and assigns. The
parties and their successors and assigns are bound by this agreement.

(b) A party may only assign its rights under this agreement after it obtains the written
consent of each other party.

Severance

If any provision of this agreement is void, voidable, unenforceable, illegal, prohibited or
otherwise invalid in a jurisdiction, in that jurisdiction the provision must be read down to the
extent it can be to save it but if it cannot be saved by reading it down, words must be severed
from the provision to the extent they can be to save it but if that also fails to save it the whole
provision must be severed. That will not invalidate the remaining provisions of this agreement
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16.10

16.11

16.12

16.13

16.14

16.15

16.16

nor affect the validity or enforceability of that provision in any other jurisdiction where it is not
invalid.

Counterparts

The parties may execute this agreement in two or more counterparts and all counterparts
together constitute one instrument.

Consent or approval

Subject to an express provision in this agreement, a party may in its absolute discretion give
its consent or approval conditionally or unconditionally, or withhold its consent or approval.

Entire agreement

This agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties in respect of the subject matter
of this agreement and supersedes all prior discussions, undertakings and agreements.

Further assurances

Each party must, at its own expense, do everything reasonably necessary to give effect to this
agreement and the transactions contemplated by it, including without limitation the execution
of documents.

Relationship

Nothing in this agreement constitutes the relationship of principal and agent or partners as
between any of the parties, and no party has any authority to bind the other legally or
equitably except as expressly stated in this agreement.

Notices

A party may send a notice in connection with this agreement by hand delivery, pre-paid post
or email to another party at the recipient party’s address details set out at the beginning of this
agreement or in such other way as the recipient party may have last notified the sending party
in writing. A notice is deemed to be received:

(a) if sent by hand delivery, at the time of delivery if on a Business Day at or before 5:30
pm, otherwise on the next Business Day;

(b) if sent by pre-paid post within the same country, on the second Business Day after
the date of posting, or if sent by pre-paid airmail from an address in a country to an
address in another country, on the fifth Business Day after the date of posting; or

(c) if sent by email, at the time of sending if on a Business Day at or before 5:30 pm,
otherwise on the next Business Day, provided that the sender does not receive a
subsequent ‘out of office’ reply or similar response or a system administrator
message stating that the email did not reach its intended recipient.

Warranties of authority

Each party represents and warrants to each other party that:

(a) it has the power to enter into and perform this agreement;

39149995_21.docx page 42



Share sale agreement @ PiperAlderman

16.17

16.18

16.19

(b) this agreement is valid and binding on it and enforceable against it in accordance with
its terms subject to the payment of any necessary document or transaction duty, the
availability of any equitable remedies and to laws affecting creditors’ rights generally;

(c) it benefits by executing this agreement; and

(d) it is able to pay its debts as and when they fall due, and no action has been taken
towards winding it up or placing it in bankruptcy.

Costs

Each party must bear its own costs in relation to the negotiation, preparation or execution of
this agreement.

Duty
The Buyer must pay:
(a) any document or transaction duty that is payable in respect of:
(1 this agreement or the Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement; or

(2) any transaction under or contemplated by this agreement or the Pool 1
Childcare Business Sale Agreement; and

(b) any interest, fine, penalty or other amount imposed due to the failure to pay any such
document or transaction duty on time or at all.

In this clause 16.18, document or transaction duty means duty, fee, levy or other charge
imposed by a Government Agency in respect of a document or transaction directly or
indirectly affecting ownership of any property or creating or discharging rights in respect of
any property e.g. a transfer, lease, mortgage, charge or other security interest, acquisition of
an interest in an entity that owns property, discharge of a lease or mortgage, or registration of
a transfer, lease, security interest or discharge.

GST

(a) All amounts payable to a party under this agreement (other than an amount for GST
payable to the party under this clause 16.19) have been calculated without regard to
GST.

(b) If the whole or any part of any such amount is the consideration for a taxable supply
for which the supplying party is liable to pay GST, the supplying party may charge the
party liable to pay for the taxable supply under this agreement, and that party must
pay the supplying party, concurrently with the payment of that amount, an additional
amount equal to the GST payable in respect of the taxable supply calculated on the
basis that the value of the taxable supply is the amount payable for the taxable supply
excluding any GST.

(c) The recovery of consideration for any taxable supply made under this agreement is
subject to the supplying party issuing to the party liable to pay for the taxable supply a
tax invoice in respect of the supply.
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(d) Any reference to a cost or expense incurred by a party in this agreement excludes
any amount of GST forming part of the relevant cost or expense when incurred by the
party for which the party can claim an input tax credit.

Executed as an agreement

This agreement or any document amending or terminating this agreement or referred to in this
agreement may be executed by hand or by electronic means (e.g. by an electronic copy of a
person’s signature being affixed by or on behalf of the person to an electronic copy of the
document) and a paper or electronic copy of the document so executed will be as valid as an

| original document executed by hand. - e

Executed by Genius Education Holdings Pty
Ltd by:

EWW#{ Misquitts
Sole difectot’and sole company secretary

=N
Executed lﬁ, a)yfigla' Childca'r%mited by:

Signaturenf d}}ecto}'/\ / / Sigpéﬁfre of director/company secretary
Name of director Name of director/company secretary
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Schedule 1 — Seller Warranties

1.1

1.2

1.3

21

22

Sale Shares

(Title) The Seller is the absolute legal and beneficial owner of, and has the power and
capacity to sell and transfer (and at Completion will be selling and transferring) to the Buyer
full legal and beneficial titie to, and all other right, title and interest in and to, the Sale Shares it
has agreed to sell to the Buyer under this agreement free of any Encumbrance, subject only
to the approval and registration of the transfer by the Company, and the sale or transfer of
those Sale Shares under this agreement will not violate or trigger a pre-emptive right of a
shareholder of the Company or breach any law, statutory instrument, constitution or
agreement applicable to or binding on the Company and does not require the approval,
consent or waiver of any person, other than the board of directors of the Company.

(Share capital) Subject to Pool 1 Childcare Business Completion occurring, at Completion,
the only issued shares, options to subscribe for shares or other securities of the Company will
be 893,463 Sale Shares held by the Seller, those shares will be free from all Encumbrances
and fully paid.

(No other issues) There is no agreement or commitment in existence under which the
Company has agreed to issue or grant any shares, options or other securities of the Company
or to buy-back, redeem or cancel any issued securities of the Company or otherwise increase,
reduce or alter its issued share capital or rights convertible into share capital or to create any
Encumbrance over the unissued share capital of the Company.

Group structure

(Status) The Company:
(a) is accurately described in this agreement;
(b) is duly registered or formed under the laws of the place of its registration or formation

and is not liable to be deregistered;

(c) has full corporate power;

(d) is qualified to own its property and assets;

(e) is qualified to carry on its business as it now does; and

H has done everything necessary to do business lawfully in each jurisdiction in which it

carries on business.
(No other entities) The Company:
(a) has no subsidiaries or controlled entities;

(b) is not a member of or the holder or beneficial owner of any shares or other capital in
any body corporate (wherever incorporated);

(c) is not a member of or the holder or beneficial owner of units or other interests in a
trust, partnership, joint venture, syndicate, cooperative, society, association, scheme
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23

24

25

whereby people contribute money or money’s worth to acquire rights to benefits
produced by the scheme (whether the rights are actual, prospective or contingent and
whether they are enforceable or not) or other entity or unincorporated body;

(d) is not a party to any agreement under which it is bound to pay a share of profits or
expenses;
(e) is not the responsible entity, manager, trustee, representative or custodian of any

body corporate, trust, partnership, joint venture, syndicate, cooperative, society,
association, scheme whereby people contribute money or money’s worth to acquire
rights to benefits produced by the scheme (whether the rights are actual, prospective
or contingent and whether they are enforceable or not) or other entity or
unincorporated body or holds or manages any assets on behalf of any person; or

(f) does not carry on any business or have any permanent establishment (as that
expression is defined in the relevant double taxation agreement) outside the country
in which it is incorporated,

or has not agreed to become one or to do so.

(Business) The business described in the definition of Pool 1 Childcare Business is carried
on by the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator and the Company does not carry on any other
business.

(Constitution) The constitution of the Company together with all modifications (if any):

(a) is valid, binding and enforceable in accordance with its terms as between the
Company and its members and directors; and

(b) complies with the Corporations Act and all other applicable law;

and a copy has been lodged with ASIC if required and was provided to the Buyer before the
date of this agreement and each copy is complete and accurate.

(Prospective interests) No person other than the Seller has ever received any assurance,
representation, promise or undertaking that the person will or may receive any share or other
interest in the Company, and the Seller is not aware of any discussions (whether discontinued
or otherwise) in respect of such matters with any such person.

Solvency

None of the following has occurred and is subsisting, or is threatened, in relation to the
Company:

(a) An application or order made, proceeding commenced, resolution passed or
proposed in a notice of meeting, petition presented, meeting convened or other step
taken for:

(1) the winding up, dissolution, bankruptcy or administration of the Company; or

(2) the Company entering into an arrangement, compromise or composition with
or assignment for the benefit of its creditors or a class of them.

(b) The Company:
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41

4.2

4.3

44

1) being (or being taken to be under applicable legislation) unable to pay its
debts as and when they fall due; or

(2) stopping or suspending, or threatening to stop or suspend, payment ofallora
class of its debts.

(c) The appointment of an administrator, receiver, receiver and manager, administrative
receiver, liquidator, provisional liquidator or similar officer to any of the assets and
undertakings of the Company.

(d) The levying of any distress, execution or other similar order or process on any of the
property or assets of the Company.

Accounts

(True and fair) The Pool 1 Childcare Business Accounts present a true and fair view of the
financial position and performance of the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator in the conduct
of the Pool 1 Childcare Business:

(a) as at the Balance Date; and
(b) for the relevant period ended on that date.

(Comply with accounting standards) The Pool 1 Childcare Business Accounts comply with
the Pool 1 Childcare Business Accounting GAAP.

(Preparation) The Pool 1 Childcare Business Accounts were prepared:

(a) in the manner described in the notes to them and on a consistent basis with the
accounts for the prior financial year; and

(b) without recording any appreciation in an asset during the period covered by the Pool
1 Childcare Business Accounts.

(No other business) The Pool 1 Childcare Business Accounts only relate to the Pool 1
Childcare Business Operator in the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare Business and do not
include or reflect the financial position, performance, profits, losses, assets or liabilities of an
entity in the conduct of any other business or activity.

Changes since the Balance Date
Since the Balance Date:

(a) the Pool 1 Childcare Business has been carried on in a normal, proper and efficient
manner and managed and conducted in the ordinary and usual course, consistent
with past practice,

(b) to the date of this agreement there has been no material adverse change in the
assets, liabilities, financial position, performance, profits, losses, business, operations
or prospects of the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator in the conduct of the Pool 1
Childcare Business as a whole;
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(c)

(d)

(e)

®

the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator in the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business has not acquired or disposed of any assets except in the ordinary course of
ordinary business, on arm’s length terms and for fair market value or agreed to do so;

there has been no material change to the remuneration and other benefits (including
any bonus scheme) payable to or conferred on an officer or employee of the Pool 1
Childcare Business Operator working in the Pool 1 Childcare Business nor any
proposal or agreement to do so, except as required under any legislation or award,;
there has not been any new accounting or valuation method implemented for the Pool
1 Childcare Business or any assets, property or rights of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business Operator in the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare Business; and

the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator has not in the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business:

1) revalued any assets; or
(2) entered into any abnormal or unusual transaction;

or agreed to do so;

except for or as a consequence of entry into or performance of this agreement, the Incubator
Agreement or the Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement or any transaction required or
permitted under or contemplated by such agreement or except to the extent otherwise
expressly approved by the Buyer.

6. Financial obligations

The Company:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

has not entered into a guarantee, covenant, indemnity, pledge, security, class order
or letter of comfort or agreed to do so;

is not obliged in any way to guarantee, assume or provide funds to satisfy an
obligation of any person;

does not owe any loan money to an officer, employee, consultant, contractor or
shareholder;

is not owed money by any officer, employee, consultant, contractor or shareholder;

has not entered into any agreement with any financier to obtain financial
accommodation or agreed to do so other than incurring credit in the ordinary course
of trading; or

has not granted any person any Encumbrance over, or declared itself trustee of, any
of its assets or agreed to do so;

except for or under a Finance Document or Finance Lease.
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71

7.2

7.3

7.4

8.1

8.2

8.3

Assets

(Title) The Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator has absolute title to, and is the legal and
beneficial owner of, all assets which it purports to own (including assets included in the Pool 1
Childcare Business Accounts or acquired since the Balance Date except for current assets
subsequently sold or realised in the ordinary course of business) or which it uses or occupies
or which are in its possession, except for the assets leased, licensed or hired by the Pool 1
Childcare Business Operator under a Finance Lease, Intellectual Property Licence or
Property Lease.

(No Encumbrances) There is no Encumbrance affecting any asset owned, used or occupied
by, or in the possession of, the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator except for the rights of the
lessors and licensors under the Finance Leases, Intellectual Property Licences and Property
Leases.

(Possession) The assets owned by the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator and the assets
leased, licensed or hired by the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator under a Finance Lease,
Intellectual Property Licence or Property Lease:

(a) in the case of tangible assets, are in the physical possession or control of the Pool 1
Childcare Business Operator except for items under repair or in transit;

(b) comprise the only assets used or occupied by the Pool 1 Childcare Business
Operator in the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare Business;

(c) are the only assets necessary for the conduct and operation of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business after Completion in the manner it has been carried on for the last 12
months; and

(d) except for an asset the subject of an Intellectual Property Licence, are not used by

any other person.

(Title documents) All documents which are necessary to establish the title of the Pool 1
Childcare Business Operator to its assets are in its possession or under its control.

Comply with law

(No contravention of law) The Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator is materially complying
with all laws applying to the conduct by it of the Pool 1 Childcare Business and no
contravention or allegation of any contravention of any applicable law is known to the Seller.

(Authorisations) So far as the Seller is aware, all Authorisations necessary to carry on the
Pool 1 Childcare Business are held by and in the name of the Pool 1 Childcare Business
Operator (or ancther person that has authorised the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator to
carry on the Pool 1 Childcare Business under that person’s Authorisation), and a copy of each
Authorisation was provided to the Buyer before the date of this agreement and each copy is
complete and accurate.

(Validity) So far as the Seller is aware, the Authorisations held by the Pool 1 Childcare
Business Operator:

(a) are valid and effective;

(b) have been complied with;
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9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

10.

10.1

10.2

(c) are not breached or otherwise adversely affected by the execution or performance of
this agreement; and

(d) are not subject to a right of appeal by any person.
Contracts

(Material Contracts) The Material Contracts comprise all deeds, agreements, arrangements,
offers, tenders and quotations entered into, made or issued by the Pool 1 Childcare Business
Operator in the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare Business which:

(a) involve or are likely to involve expenditure and other liabilities of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business Operator in excess of $250,000; or

(b) are incapable of being fulfilled or performed within 12 months from the date of this
agreement.

(Disclosure) A copy of each Material Contract was provided to the Buyer before the date of
this agreement and each copy is complete and accurate and is included as a Due Diligence
Document.

(Validity) So far as the Seller is aware, each Material Contract:
(a) has been duly executed by the parties to it; and

(b) is not breached or otherwise adversely affected by the execution or performance of
this agreement.

(Compliance) So far as the Seller is aware, the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator and
each other party is materially complying with each Material Contract, and no event has
occurred which may be grounds for termination of the Material Contract.

Business Premises
(All real property) The Business Premises comprise all the land and buildings owned, used
or occupied by the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator in the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare

Business at the date of this agreement.

(Structures) So far as the Seller is aware, each structure on the Business Premises is:

(a) in sound condition and repair;

(b) free of any material defects;

(c) fit for the purpose for which it is currently used;

(d) safe and maintained, used and operated in accordance with the applicable health and

safety standards;
(e) approved by the relevant authority; and

3] complies with any applicable law.
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

1.

114

(All rights held) So far as the Seller is aware, the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator holds
all rights and privileges necessary or appropriate for carrying on the Pool 1 Childcare
Business at the Business Premises or otherwise using that property as it is currently being
used.

(Lawful use) So far as the Seller is aware, the existing use of each Business Premises is the
lawful permitted use of that property.

(No dispute) The Seller is not aware of any dispute relating to any Business Premises or its
use.

(No sub-lease) There is no sub-lease, tenancy or licence to use or occupy affecting any of
the Business Premises except for the Property Leases.

(No notices) No notice, order or direction has been received by the Pool 1 Childcare
Business Operator at the date of this agreement and so far as the Seller is aware there is no
proposal:

(a) concerning the acquisition or resumption of or the change of planning, zoning or
legislation affecting any Business Premises;

(b) requiring the doing of work or expenditure of money on or in relation to any Business
Premises where the total cost could reasonably be expected to exceed $50,000; or

(c) which would adversely affect the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator’s interest in or
rights in respect of any Business Premises or its use.

Property Leases

(All property leases) The Property Leases comprise all the leases and licences to use or

occupy any land or building in the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare Business to which the Pool

1 Childcare Business Operator is a party at the date of this agreement.

(Validity) Each Property Lease:

(a) is registered, where registration is available;

(b) has been consented to by each person having an interest in the relevant Business
Premises in priority to the lessee, including, without limitation, each owner and

mortgagee of the Business Premises.

(Exclusive occupation) The Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator which is a lessee under a
Property Lease occupies the relevant Business Premises under that Property Lease:

(a) exclusively; and
(b) free from third party rights.

(No rent review) So far as the Seller is aware, no review of the rent or outgoings under a
Property Lease is currently taking place.

(Renewal) In the case of a Property Lease the term of which has expired or expires within 12
months from Completion, the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator which is lessee under the
Property Lease is taking all appropriate steps to secure a renewal of the Property Lease and
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12,

121

12.2

12.3

12.4

13.

131

13.2

the Seller is not aware of any reason why the lessor will not renew the Property Lease in
favour of the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator.

Plant and Equipment

(All plant and equipment) The Plant and Equipment and Financed Equipment comprise all
the plant, equipment, motor vehicles, machinery, furniture, fittings and computer equipment:

(a) owned or used by the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator in the conduct of the Pool
1 Childcare Business; and

(b) required by the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator to conduct or operate the Pool 1
Childcare Business;

at the date of this agreement.

(All finance leases) The Finance Leases comprise all the leases, hire purchase agreements
and agreements to acquire or use any plant, equipment, motor vehicle, machinery, furniture,
fitting or computer equipment in the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare Business to which the
Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator is a party at the date of this agreement.

(Sound condition) So far as the Seller is aware, each item of Plant and Equipment and
Financed Equipment:

(a) is in sound condition and repair;

(b) is free of any material defects;

(c) is fit for the purpose for which it is currently used;

(d) has been maintained in accordance with prudent business practice and (where

applicable) manufacturers recommended maintenance procedures and in a manner
that does not prejudice any rights under any maintenance contract; and

(e) complies with all applicable laws and Australian standards in its assembly, fitting,
maintenance and operation and is safe to use as currently used.

(Plant and equipment register) The plant and equipment register of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business Operator records each item of Plant and Equipment and Financed Equipment
owned, leased or hired by the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator and is otherwise complete
and accurate, a copy was provided to the Buyer before the date of this agreement and each
copy is complete and accurate.

Intellectual Property

(All Intellectual Property) Subject to and after Pool 1 Business Completion, the intellectual
property licensed under the Intellectual Property Licences will comprise all the copyright,
patents, trade marks, service marks, business names, designs, trade secrets, confidential
information and other intellectual or industrial property required by the Company to conduct or
operate the Pool 1 Childcare Business.

(All Intellectual Property Licences) Subject to and after Pool 1 Business Completion, the
Intellectual Property Licences will comprise all the licences and agreements to use any
copyright, patent, trade mark, service mark, design, business name, trade secret, confidential
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133

13.4

14,

141

14.2

14.3

15.

151

15.2

information or other intellectual or industrial property in the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business to which the Company will be a party.

(No infringement by use of Intellectual Property) So far as the Seller is aware, the Pool 1
Childcare Business Operator in carrying on the Pool 1 Childcare Business or by the use of the
intellectual property licensed under the Intellectual Property Licences does not:

(a) infringe the intellectual or industrial property of another person; or
(b) breach an obligation of confidence owed to another person;

and no claim of any such infringement or breach has been made or threatened against the
Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator.

(Business names) Subject to and after Pool 1 Business Completion, the Company will only
carry on the Pool 1 Childcare Business under its corporate name or the business names
licensed under the Intellectual Property Licences.

Insurance

(Disclosure) A copy of each insurance policy in force in respect of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business Operator at the date of this agreement has been provided to the Buyer before the
date of this agreement and each copy is complete and accurate.

(Currency) So far as the Seller is aware, each such insurance policy is currently in full force
and effect and all applicable premiums have been paid. Nothing has been done or omitted to
be done by the Company which would make any policy of insurance void or voidable or which
would permit an insurer to cancel the policy or refuse or reduce a claim or materially increase
the premiums payable under the policies.

(No claims) At the date of this agreement, there are no claims made by the Pool 1 Childcare
Business Operator or any person on its behalf under any insurance policy held by or for the
benefit of the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator which are outstanding. So far as the Seller
is aware, no event (other than one which has given rise to a claim which is no longer
outstanding) has arisen which may give rise to a claim under any insurance policy.

Records
(Books and records) So far as the Seller is aware, the Business Records:

(a) have been fully and properly maintained and contain complete records of all matters
required to be entered in them by law;

(b) do not contain or reflect any material inaccuracies or discrepancies;
(c) are in the possession or control of the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator; and

(d) contain adequate and suitable records regarding the service of each employee of the
Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator.

(Filings) So far as the Seller is aware, all returns, documents and other information in relation
to the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator required to be lodged or filed with or otherwise

submitted to a Government Agency under any law have been duly submitted for all periods up
to the date of this agreement, will continue to be submitted in respect of periods after the date
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15.3

16.

16.1

16.2

17.

171

17.2

17.3

of this agreement until Completion for those later periods and are supported by accurate
records included in the Business Records, and no such information is disputed or the subject
of an adjustment by any Government Agency or likely to be so.

(Rectification of registers) The Company has not received notice of any application or
intended application to rectify any register which it is required by law to maintain.

Litigation

(No litigation) Neither the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator, nor a person for whom it may
be vicariously liable, is involved at the date of this agreement in any litigation, arbitration,
administrative or governmental investigation or criminal prosecution and so far as the Seller is
aware there are no facts likely to give rise to a proceeding of this type.

(No judgements) There are no unsatisfied judgments, orders, awards or decisions against
the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator.

Employees

(Disclosure) Details of all the material terms of employment or service of each officer and
employee of the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator and of each person engaged by the Pool
1 Childcare Business Operator as a consultant or other contractor to provide the services of a
manager, executive or other employee in the conduct of the Pool 1 Childcare Business, (each
such officer, employee, consultant or contractor referred to in this warranty 17 and warranty
18 as an Employee of the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator) including, without limitation,
details of:

(a) the position and age of the Employee;

(b) all remuneration and other benefits (including any bonus scheme) payable to or
conferred on the Employee;

(c) the period of service of the Employee and the accrued leave and other entitlements of
the Employee as at the end of the last month;

(d) each award and collective or enterprise agreement which applies to the Employee;
and
(e) each individual employment or services contract (whether written or oral) between the

Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator and the Employee (except for any oral contract
which may be terminated on one month’s notice or less without payment of
compensation);

at the date of this agreement, have been provided to the Buyer before the date of this
agreement, and those details are complete and accurate.

(Outstanding claim) No amount due to or in respect of any Employee is in arrears or unpaid
other than his or her current remuneration for the relevant period at the date of this
agreement.

(Unions) The Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator is not a party to any agreement with any
union or industrial organisation in respect of the Employees or their employment or
superannuation benefits.
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17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

18.

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

(Compliance) So far as the Seller is aware, the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator has
complied in all material respects with all laws, health and safety standards, codes of conduct
and practice, awards and contractual arrangements relevant to conditions of service and to
the relations between it and the Employees.

(No disputes) At the date of this agreement, the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator is not
involved in, and so far as the Seller is aware, there are no circumstances which are likely to
give rise to, any dispute (including an industrial or trade dispute) with, or involving, any
Employee.

(Termination of employment) At the date of this agreement, no Employee whose annual
remuneration exceeds $100,000:

(a) has been given an unexpired notice terminating his or her contract of employment or
services;

(b) is under notice of dismissal or termination;

(c) has been terminated in circumstances which may give rise to a claim against the Pool

1 Childcare Business Operator in relation to loss of office or termination of
employment (including, without limitation, redundancy or breach of contract); or

(d) has given notice terminating his or her contract of employment or services with the
Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator or informed the Pool 1 Childcare Business
Operator that he or she plans to terminate his or her employment or services with the
Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator, and so far as the Seller is aware, no Employee
has any plans to terminate his or her contract of employment or services.

(No severance pay) There is nothing which may make the Pool 1 Childcare Business
Operator liable to pay severance pay to an Employee as a result of this agreement.

Superannuation

(Disclosure) Details of each Super Fund including, without limitation, the name of each
Employee who is a member of the fund and periodic contributions the Pool 1 Childcare
Business Operator makes to the fund on behalf of that Employee at the date of this
agreement have been provided to the Buyer before the date of this agreement, and those
details are complete and accurate.

(No other funds) Other than the Super Funds the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator does
not contribute to and there are no superannuation, retirement or provident funds or other
arrangements in place providing for any lump sum, pension, annuity or other payment on or in
respect of the retirement, resignation, death or permanent or temporary disablement of an
Employee.

(Outstanding payments) Otherwise than in the ordinary course of administration, there are
no outstanding contributions to the Super Funds on the part of the Pool 1 Childcare Business
Operator and apart from its obligation to pay to a Super Fund periodic contributions for the
benefit of an Employee the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator has no responsibility or
liability at all in respect of the Super Fund or its administration, management, solvency or
otherwise.

(Superannuation guarantee charge) At Completion, the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator
will have satisfied its obligations to pay the superannuation guarantee charge in respect of
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any Employee for any contribution period (as defined in the Superannuation Guarantee
(Administration) Act 1992) up to Completion.

18.5  (No liability) The Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator is not trustee or manager of and does
not maintain a superannuation, retirement or provident fund or other arrangement which
provides for, or is under any present legal liability or voluntary commitment (whether or not
legally binding) to pay, any lump sum, pension, annuity or other payment on or in respect of
the retirement, resignation, death or permanent or temporary disablement of any person.

19. Information
19.1  (Schedules) The information set out in or annexed to schedules 3 and 7 is accurate.
19.2  (Disclosure Letter) The information contained in the Disclosure Letter is accurate.

19.3  (Not misleading) None of the information referred to in warranties 19.1and 19.2 is
misleading in any material particular, whether by inclusion of misleading information or
omission of information or both.

19.4  (Due Diligence Documents) So far as the Seller is aware, Due Diligence Documents being:

(a) letters, agreements, deeds, certificates and other documents of title with respect to
the Pool 1 Childcare Business which are copies, are true copies of the relevant
documents held by the Pool 1 Childcare Business;

(b) historical accounting information and other historical business information with
respect to the Pool 1 Childcare Business which are extracts from the records of the
Pool 1 Childcare Business, are accurate extracts of the records concerned, and

(c) responses to requests for information made by or on behalf of the Buyer with respect
to the Pool 1 Childcare Business were, when provided, accurate except for any
information which is prospective or forecast or otherwise as to the future, any
information supplied by a person other than the Seller or the Pool 1 Childcare
Business Operator or any information which is subsequently corrected or contradicted
by the Seller or the Pool 1 Childcare Business Operator before the date of this
agreement.

20. Finder’s fees

No person is or will be entitled to receive from the Company any finder’s fee, brokerage or
other commission in connection with the execution or performance of this agreement.

21. Taxation

211 (Compliance with Tax Law) The Company has complied with every obligation to which it is
subject under Tax Law.

212 (Tax since the Balance Date) Since the Balance Date, no liability for Tax has accrued to the
Company or become due, otherwise than as a result of trading activities in the ordinary
course of its business.

21.3 (Deductions) The Company has deducted all Tax required to be deducted from any
payments made by it. When necessary, the Company has accounted for that Tax in
accordance with relevant law.
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214

21.5

216

21.7

218

219

21.10

21.11

(Payment of tax) All Tax which has been, or are deemed to or ought property to have been,
assessed or imposed on the Company, or have been required to be withheld from any
payment made by the Company to another person:

(a) which are due and payable, have been paid by the final date for payment; and
(b) which are not yet payable, will be paid by the due date.

(No disallowance) Nothing has occurred which will cause the disallowance for income tax
purposes of either the carry forward of any losses of the Company as at the Balance Date or
the deduction of any losses incurred by the Company since the Balance Date other than the
acquisition of Sale Shares under this agreement. The Company will not have an unrealised
net loss on Completion as calculated under section 165-115E of the Tax Act.

(Returns) All necessary information, notices, computations and returns:

(a) have been properly and duly submitted by the Company to each relevant Government
Agency in respect of Tax for all periods up to the date of this agreement;

(b) will continue to be submitted in respect of periods after the date of this agreement
until Completion in respect of those later periods;

(c) are supported by accurate records kept by the Company.

No such information, notice, computation or return contains a statement that is false or
misleading in any material particular or omits to refer to any matter which is required to be
included or without which the statement is false or misleading.

(Franking) The Company:

(a) maintains and has retained for the period required by law, accurate records of
franking credits and franking debits (as defined in the Tax Act) in respect of its current
and earlier accounting periods;

(b) has franked to the required amount any dividend paid since the Balance Date;

(c) has not franked any dividend paid since the Balance Date to the extent that a franking
deficit has or will arise at the end of the year following the Balance Date.

(Share capital accounts) On Completion the Company will not have a share capital account
which is tainted within the meaning of division 197 of the Tax Act.

(Commercial dealings) The Company has not made salary payments, service fee payments
or provided other emoluments or remuneration to its shareholders which are in excess of
reasonable commercial terms.

(Debt forgiveness) No debt owed by the Company has been forgiven for the purposes of
division 245 of Tax Act.

(Capital benefits) The Company has not provided a capital benefit to a shareholder as that
phrase is defined in subsection 45A(3) of the Tax Act in respect of which the Commissioner of
Taxation could make a determination under subsection 45A(2) or 45B(3) of the Tax Act that
section 45C of the Tax Act applies in relation to the whole, or a part, of the capital benefit.
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21.12 (No audit) The Company:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

is not involved in any audit of any of its Tax returns or any dispute with a Government
Agency regarding Tax and the Seller is not aware of any circumstances which may
give rise to such an audit or dispute;

has not entered into or been a party to any transaction which contravenes the anti-
avoidance provisions of any Tax;

has not taken any action which has or might alter or prejudice any arrangement,
agreement or Tax ruling or exemption which has previously been negotiated with or
obtained from any Government Agency; and

has not made any Tax private binding ruling requests, objections or amended
assessments with respect to its lodged Tax returns.

21.13 (Depreciation schedules) The Company has:

(a)

(b)

maintained sufficient income tax depreciation schedules of its assets and depreciated
its assets at the appropriate rates in accordance with the Tax Act; and

maintained accurate cost bases of those assets for income tax purposes.

21.14 (No rollover relief) No asset of the Company has been subject to:

(a)
(b)

a claim for capital gains tax rollover relief under Tax Act; or

the operation of division 149 or subdivision 126-B of the Tax Act.

21.15 (GST) The Company:

(a)
(b)

(c)

is registered for GST;

has systems in place which are adequate to enable it to comply with the GST Law;
and

has complied with every obligation to which it is subject under the GST Law.
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Schedule 2 — Pool 1 Childcare Business Accounts

Profit and Loss Statement FY21

CONSOL

Sales
Sales
Other revenue
Before School fees
After School fees
School Holiday fees
Discounts - promotion
Discounts - retention

Total Sales

Cost of Goods Sold
Food
Nappies
Other COGS

Total Cost of Goods Sold

Employee Costs
Salary and wages
Extesmal Labour
Superannuation
Payroll tax
Workcover

Total Employee Costs
Total Direct Costs
Gross Profit

Other Overhead
Consulting fees

Bank fees

Cleaning

Power, heating, water
Entertainment
General

Insurance

Legal

Marketing

Office costs

Vehicle costs

Plant rental
Recruitment

Rent

Repairs & maintenance
Telephone & Intemet
Technology hire

Toys and small items
Travel

Statutory fees

Rates and taxes

Total Other Overhead

Total EBITDA

FY21 TOTAL

18,321,436
22177
111,466
264,042

84,896
(548)
1666,063)

18,337,406

{444,171)
(86,370)
{275,005)

(805,546)

{9,994,807)
(19,336)
(924,672)
{523,179)
(180,723)

111,632,718}

(12.438,264)

5.899,142

(33,205)
{102,440}
{138,312)

819
(74,276)
{11,803)

(420)
(143,487)

(23,785)

(31,950)

(21172}

(1,880,293)
(131,443)

(45,223)

(29,699}

(17.309)

(1.288)

(16,268)

1243,438)

(3,004,992)

2,894,150
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Balance Sheet

Genius Leaming Pty Ltd

As at 30 June 2021

Location is CONSOL

Assets
Current Assels
Frepayments 36,120 62
Total Current Asssta 35,120.62|
Fixad Assets
Computer Equiprment 1381501
Fixtures & Fittings 208.034.90
Lese Accumuiaied Depreciaion Fhdures & FISngs (104,172.25
less Aocumulated Depreciation Low vaiue pool (85505 98
Less Accumulated Degraciation on Computer Equipment 352932
Less Accumulated Depreciazion on Molor Vehicle {17,108.:56)
Less Accumulated Dep on Office Equp (53,773.48)
Less Accumiated Dearaciztion on Plant & Equipment 3270602
Low Vaue Pool 458,235.03)
Mator Vehice 102,600 07
Offce Equipment 160,872 31
Property, Ptant and Equipment 141,355.93]
Todal Fixad Asaats 816,722 84

Totat 2ssets 851 843.45

|Liabilities
Current Liabliities
Provision For Empioyee Entiiements 510,517.1§]
Provision foe Long Service lsave 181,167.70
Tolal Current Liabliltiss 891,684 5¢)

[Total Liabinties al.w.lil
Nat Assets 169, 158.5¢]
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Schedule 3 — Business Premises

The information contained in this schedule reflect facts and circumstances current or existing at the
date of this agreement which may change after that date.

Title Details

Address

Lessor’

Lessee?

Title Reference:
50067935, Lot 1 on
RP881585

27 Ross Street,
Rockhampton,
Queensland, 4700

Misquitta Childcare
Property Pty Ltd as
trustee for the
Misquitta Childcare
Property Trust

Genius Learning

Title Reference:
50118114, Lot 11 on
RP896896

83 Loridan Drive,
Brinsmead,
Queensland, 4870

Cracker Holdings Pty
Ltd as trustee for the
Pritchard Family Trust

Genius Learning

Volume 10244 Folio
050, being Lot 14 on
PS342086D

Volume 10244 Folio
051, being Lot 15 on
PS342086D

Volume 10244 Folio
052, being Lot 16 on
PS342086D

Volume 10244 Folio
053, being Lot 17 on
PS342086D

Volume 10244 Folio
054, being Lot 18 on
PS342086D

1A Bernard Street,
Cheltenham, Victoria,
3192

Sandhurst Trustees
Limited as custodian

for the Arena REIT No.

1

Genius Learning

Title Reference:
50746872, Lot 14 on
Survey Plan 218282

2-4 Evergreen Street,
Clifton Beach,
Queensland, 4879

Misquitta Childcare
Property Pty Ltd as
trustee for the
Misquitta Childcare
Property Trust

Genius Learning

1 Some of these properties are subject to a proposed sale and therefore, at Completion, the lessor may be a

different person.

2 |t is intended that the rights and benefits under the leases will be assigned to the Company at Pool 1 Childcare

Business Sale Completion.
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Title Details

Address

Lessor!

Lessee?

—

Part of the land more
particularly described
in Certificate of Title
Volume 11942 Folio
675, Lot 3 on PS
518301Y

Level 1, 800 Berwick
Cranbourne Road,
Clyde North, Victoria,
3978

S & N Super Fund Pty
Ltd

Genius (Clyde)

Volume 11383 Folio
546

16-18 Harry Vallence
Drive, Maddingley,
Victoria, 3340

BMLP Properties Pty
Ltd

Genius Learning

Volume 12157 Folio
825

3-5 Bathurst Street,
Mooroolbark, Victoria,
3138

Sandhurst Trustees
Limited as custodian
for the Arena REIT No.
1

Genius Learning

Title Reference:
50490994, Lot 1 on
Survey Plan 167025

653-661 Norman
Road, Rockhampton,
Queensland, 4701

Sandhurst Trustees
Limited as custodian
for the Arena REIT No.
1

Genius Learning

Volume 6128 Folio
368

205 Onkaparinga
Valley Road,
Qakbank, South
Australia, 5243

The Trust Company
Limited as asset
custodian of Charter
Hall Social
Infrastructure REIT

Genius Learning

Title Reference:
50609875, Lot 132 on
Survey Plan 176333

115-119 Shute
Harbour Road,
Cannonvale,
Queensland, 4802

Misquitta Childcare
Property Pty Ltd as
trustee for the
Misquitta Childcare
Property Trust

Genius Learning

Volume 11973 Folio
120, being Lot 1 on
PS077186

Volume 11973 Folio
121, being Lot 2 on
PS077186

Volume 11973 Folio
122, being Lot 3 on
PS077186

5-7 Sunderland Court,
Seaford, Victoria, 3198

Sandhurst Trustees
Limited as custodian
for the Arena REIT No.
1

Genius Learning

Title Reference:
20889064, Lot 11 on
Crown Plan C198140

9 Brose Street, White
Rock, Queensland,
4868

Misquitta Childcare
Property Pty Ltd as
trustee for the
Misquitta Childcare
Property Trust

Genius Learning
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Title Details

Address

Lessor!

Lessee?

s

Title Reference:
50600430, Lot 11 on
Survey Plan 172555

2-6 Fretwell Road,
White Rock,
Queensland, 4686

MD Investments (NQ)
Pty Ltd

Genius Learning

Title Reference:
50559383, Lot 120 on
Survey Plan 172385

353 Stuart Drive,
Wulguru, Queensland,
4811

Misquitta Childcare
Property Pty Ltd as
trustee for the
Misquitta Childcare
Property Trust

Genius Learning
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° ° Genius Education Holdings Pty Ltd
‘ "l.“'@' Leve! 1, 60 Toorsk Roed
. ° A South Yarra VIC 3141

childcare

30 October 2021
By emall: dolarke@mayfieidchildcare.com.au

Dean Clarke

Managing Director

Mayfield Childcare Limited
Suite 2, 207 Waverley Road
Malvern East VIC 3146

Oear Dean
Disclosure lstter

It &g Bnticipated that Genius Educaton Holdings Py Lid (Seller) and Mayfiaid Childcare Limited
(Buyer) will shortly entar inio a share sale ajreement (Share Sale Agreement) in respact of all of the
sharas in Genius Education Pty Lid (Company). In connaction with tha Share Sale Agreement, it is
also snticipated that Genlus Leaming Pty Lid (Genlus Leaming), the Seller and the Company will
anter into a busness sale agreement (Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreemant) for tha sale of
cortain business ateats of Genaus Learning to the Company

Tha purpose of this latter is to disclose malters which may be refavant 1o the reprasentations and
warranties by the Sefler that will be contsined in the Share Sale Agreement as well a3 regreseniations
and warranties by Genius Learning contained in the Poal 1 Childeare Business Sale Agraament
(Warranties). Under clalse 9.1 of the Share Sale Agreement and cisuse 0.1 of the Mool 1 Childcare
Business Sale Agresmant. the Warranties will be given subgect 1 and quaified by those disclosuras

The disclosure of any matter or document will not imply any representalion, warranty of undertaking
not axprossly given in the Shace Sale Agreement of Poal 1 Childcars Business Sale Agreement nor
will such disclosuns be taken as extensing the scope of any Waranties

It an Incongistancy exists batween the Share Sale Agreemant or Pool 1 Childcare Businass Sale
Agresment and this letter, this letter prevails and is deemed to contain the relavant disciosure.

The foliowing dsciosures aré made in resaton 1o the Share Sale Agreemant and Poal 1 Childears
Busingss Sale Agresment. For convenlence, sach malter is disclosed against ihe paragraph number
of the Warranty undar the Share Sale Agrassment 1o which the disclosure Is most likely to relale bul &
disclosure applies lo al of the Warrantles to which R Is or may be appropriate and a disclosure is nol
fimitad in any way to the speciic Warranty to which it rafars below

(mm Warramy Disclosure
No.

1. 2.1(a)f). 8.1 and The Cempsany has submitted an application to obtain a Provider

82 Approval, This Provider Approval may riot be granted, or may not

be granted by Comgdation. At the request of the Buyer, the Buyar

| and Genlus Luarning have also submitied applications for the

| vanster ol ench Service Approval in respect of tha Pool 1 Childcare
Business from Qamwus Leaming o the Buyer directly. I a Provider
Approval s not granted to the Company of the Service Approvals

| are not ransferred 1o the Company. the Company will not itself hold |

39337122 _0.cocx page 1
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tom
No.

Dhaclosure

the raquired Provicer Approval and Service Approvals to operate the
Poal 1 Childeare Business. In consequonce, tha Company would
not hold every Authorisation necessary to carry on the Pool 1
Chiidcare Business in camplance with all applicable law Including
the Education and Cere Services National Lew. Further, the copies
of the Authoriastions provided 10 the Buyer before the date of the
Share Sale Agreement wera complets and accurate when provided,
snd remain compiete and accurate at the date of this document, but
may change moving forward.

Al Completion the Company will be unable to pay its debls as and

when they fall due, without financis! support from the Buver. ,

b)

Since the Bsiance Date, the Poo! 1 Childcare Business has been
affected naegatively due to the COVID-19 Pandemic and the resulting
restrictions imposed by the relevant Governmen! Agancy. In
particulzr, the centres at Clyde North and Maddingley had lo close
for two days due bt the cenlre baing deemed an exposure site in
respect of COVID-19 since the Batance Date.

&v)

Since the Balance Date, the Pool 1 Chlldcare Business in respect of
the Business Premises at Osibank has been affected negatively
due to significani flooding ssues. The cenlre has had to tamparertly
close due to such flooding issues. Ses ilem 14 below for further
disclosure of the damage caused by the figoding.

6(e)

Under the varicus sgreements Genius Leaming has in place with
vttt g telephone providens (such as Hypeispike, VoxIP and
Teistra) a8 described in item 2 of schedule 3 of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business Sale Agreement, the supplier retains title to the goods
throughout the term of the serangement, or untll the contréct |s pald
out i full

71,15 1(c)and 16

Genlus Leaming has been served with a subpoena in relation o the
centre at Brinsmosd which forms part of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business to produce documents in respect of a child who is the
subject of a famity law matter. A copy of the subpoena has been
included as a Dua Diligence Document

Genkus Learning has variius agresments in place with imfermet and
telephane providers (being Hyperspike, 1S Telecoms, VoxiP, Breaze
Comecl, Aussie Broadband ard Telstre), however, we have been
unabie fo locate the executed agresmants. The details of auch
providers have baen disciosed in a Due Diligence Document. These
agreementy may have a duration of longer than 12 months. and may
Inveive expenditure of mere than $250,000 over thelr duration, The
nistura of this expenditure ie for the provision of intemel and/or
talephone hardware, software and sarvices, tha expenditure for
which for the financlal year encied 30 June 2021 thel ralatad 1o the
Pool 1 Childcare Business was in the order of $45,223 and the
snnual expenditure under (hese agreements gomg forward is nol
expeciad to meterislly increase.

Genius Leaming has vartous Finance Leases in place with RBC
Businass Solutions Pty L1d (and/or strategic partnars of RBC
Business Solutions Pty Ld, such a3 GPD Finance Ply Lid and HP

¥337722_10.cocx
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Cueciooure letier
item | Warvanty | Disclosure
No. i
Financial Sanvices (Australiz) Py L1d) es described in schedule 4 of
+ the Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreemend, however, wa have
= | been unable to locate all of the execuled sgreements. _
|
0. 9.2 Athough copees of ell Materisl Coniracts have not been provided 1o
the Buyer bafora the dals of the Share Sale Agresment, those
| copies that were provided were complete and acosrate when
provided, and remain compiete and acourate at the date of this
i _decument, but may change moving forward. R
10. | ©,10.3. 11 and 19.4 | Tha owner of the fallowing Business Premises is a related entity of

the Selter and Is intercing to sall the (and and buikdings comprisng |
the Business Premises:

Alleastown (27 Ross Street, Rockhampton),

Cifton Beach;

Cannotvale;

Sheridan Gardens (9 Brose Street, White Rock): and
Wulgury.

As such, by Completion the 0986 of these Business Premsas may
be with a new landiord, |

Qb wh -

A related ontity of the Saller has agreed to buy the land and
buiddings comprising tha Business Promises al Maddingley, and is
intanaing to neminate a therd party to buy the land and bullcings n
its place. The related entity, Genius Leaming, the Campany and the
third parly proposs 1o anter into a swrender and naw lnase deod 1o
efiect the replacernent of lease afler setlement of the purchase. A
drafi of the surrender and new lesse has bean disclosed as a Dus
Diligence Documant.

1

|
18, 11and 19 4
I

In anwcipalion of the property ssie mentioned in item 10 sbove, new
lagsas were recently entered Into in respect of the following
Susness Premises

Allenstown (27 Ross Street, Rockhamplon);
Clifton Baach;

Camnonvale;
Sheridan Gardens (9 Brosa Skroeet, While Rock); and
Wulguru,

RGN -

Copies of the new lsases have been disclosed a3 Due Diligence
Documents.

12.

10

Although the Pool 1 Childeare Business Oparstor has nol received
any notice, order or direction to conduct any works 6l any premisas,
the following centres need the folowing works to be undertaken:

1. Oskbank: Works need 10 be underiaken to rebrand the centrs to
adhare o the Genius brand, the ouldoor pleyscape needs to be
upgraded and minor indoor works need 1o ba undertaken go thel
the cenre acheres to the Genius brand and spediications
Further, upgrades are needed (o the exteror plumiang, fagade
and sile leveliirg. Cerius Leaming 18 intending o enler inlo, or
hes antarad into, & ranavation oead with the landlord in respect

9I7T22_10 docx
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Warrsnty

Disciosure

of such works. The total cost of these works |s estimated o
excead $50.000 and Genius Leaming intends 0 arrange lor the
works 10 be carried oul al its cost provided that i any works are
to be carned out after Completion Genlus Leaming's
representatives and contractors are given reasonable access 1o
the premises to do s0. Work also needs 1o be undertaken o
rectify the damage referred 1o In item 14 below. The total cost of
this work [s estmated to sxceed $50,000.

2. Maddingley. Works nead to be undertaken to rebrand the
cenire o adhere {0 the Genius brand, the outdoor playscape
needs 10 be upgraded and minor indoor works need 1o be
undertaken so that the cenire edheres 1o the Genlus brand and
specificatons, Work also needs o ba undentaken to rectify the
gamage referred to in item 13 balow. The total cost of these
warks Is estimated to exceed 550,000 and Genlus Leaming
intands 10 arrange for the works to be carried ot at 4s cost
provided that if any works are 1o be carriad oul after
Completion Genlus Leaming's representatives and condraciors
are given reasonable access (o the premises to do so.

3. ANenstown: Structursd and capital works need 10 be undertaken
1o axtend the bullding al the Business Premises so that the
carire can obisin a sarvice approvad for 135 long dey cere
places. This wil likely involve vanaous cosmatc and fit-out works
to adhera to the Geniua brand and specifications. Gsnius
Learning & inending ta enter into 2 devedopmant agreement
with the inseming landlord for conducting such works The total
cost of ihese works @ astimatad 1o exceed §50,000 and Genius
Lesming intends to arrange for the works to be carmed out et its
cost provided that If any works are to be carried oul aher
Completion Genlus Leaming's representatives and contractors
are given reasonable ecoess 1o the premises 19 do 50.

13.

10.2 and 10.17

The Businsss Premises at Maddingley suffered some demege efter
an earthquake 0vat occurred in Victora on 22 September 2021
Photos of such damage have been disciosed as a Due Dagence
Document. Genlus Leaming has requested that the iandiord
commance an inswrance ciaim on the damege. The centre was not
required to ba dosed. The toted cost of this work s to be claimed
from the landlord's nsurer iess the insurance deductibie/excess
under the policy wiich Geniue Learming intends to pay provided
that if any works a Lo be carried oul afier Completion the
reprasantatives and contractors of the landlerd’s insurer or Genius
Learning sre given reasonable access to tha pramises fo carmy out
the works

14,

10.2 and 10.17

The Business Premises st Oakbenk suffered floodng issues due to
rair Both of the landlord and tenant's insurers have commenced
assessing the matier. A recent assessment of the sita by [oss
assassors, McLarens, as set oul (n an emai from Chns Martiand
dated October 2021 concliuded the property would require extensive
repairs and decontamination. The assessment noted el it vas
difficull to estimate the time frame lor the repairs to be complated,
but suggested a time frame in the vicinity of 4-8 weeks. The cenlre
has been closed since 30 September 2021. A copy of the emad

from Mr Martland containing the loss sssessment has been

39037722_10 docx
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item | Warranty
| No.

Disclosure

disclosed as a Due Diligence Document. The total cost of this work
is t0 be claimed from the fandiord's msurer less the insurance

pay provided that { any works are o be carried oul after
Complation the rapresentatives and contractars of tha landlord's
insurer or Genlus Learning are glven reasonabis access to the
premises to carry o4l the works

deduciible/excess under the policy which Genius Leaming intends to

15. | 10.3, 10.6 and 11

The Poo! | Childcare Business Opaerator 8 not the tenam under the
leasse of the Business Premisas at Clyds North. The lenant is
Genius (Clyde) Pty L\d, which is wholly owned by OK Andaras Pty
Lid, a related enlity of the Seder.

16 |1

The following issues exist with the lesses of the Business Premises
that Genius Learming has on file:

1. Brinsmead: The address for service for the leasor or lessee in
the raferance schadule has not besn completed. The lease is
nol registered on tala.

2 Choltenham: The l2ase Is for 5 term of 35 years, however, he
commencement dete, termination dats and oplion term dates
have not been nsarted (n itams 4, S and 8 of tha schedule 1 of
the leasa.

3. Clyde North: The axecutan panel for the guarantor, DiK
Andaras Pty Lid, incarractly refers 1o Gaenius (Clyde) Pty Lid.

4. Seaford The lease is for a term of 30 years, hawaver, the
commencement date, termination dete and option term dales
have not been nssried In Reme 4, 8 and 8 of the schedule 1 of
the lease,

5. Maddingley. The wansfer of lease dated 6 December 2010

which was intendad o transfer the lenant’s rights and benafits to
Genius Learning does not have Genius Leaming insertsd as the
new lesate, however, the ransfer has been signed
Mooroolbark: The lesse is for e tarm of 30 yeara, however, the

commencemaert date, larmination date and opdon Werm dates
have not bean nsered in kems 4, 3 and 8 of the schedule 1 to
ihe lsase,

7 Sheridan Meadows (2-8 Fretwall Road, White Rock). The
dgsed of assignment of leane and deed of consent and
assignmant of leass to Genlus Learning are not dated

17 12

The leases of the Business Premises in Victoria and s{ Brinamesd

are not registered. The new leases of the Busness Premises ol
ABanstown, Ciifton Beach, Cannonvele and Wuigunu refarred 0 in
| ibarn 11 abovie are in the process of being regisiered

18 113

The Business Premises at Clyde North form part of a business
pracinct and as such has commaon areas with oher lenanis.

19 12

Due Diligance Dacumaents in raspect of Financed Equipmant may

w50 relate 1o other childcare centres st are not part of the Pool §
Chiidicare Business Under the Pool 1 Childcare Susiness Sale
Agresment the Seller wi agree to pay out the Finance Leases by
| Coanplation to the extant that they refate to the Poal 1 Childeare

| Businessas.

XII7722_10 doex
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Disclosure

The plant and equipment register of the Pool 1 Chilocare Business
Operator does nol record any of the Financed Equipment. and the
latest copy provided to the Buyes, namely (he document entited
‘Fixed Asset Register inciuded as a Due Diligence Document, was
made up to 30 September 2021 and was complete and acourate as
at that date, but may change afier that data, although the Seller is
not aware of any materal adverse change between that cate and
the date of this document.

The childcare centre business conducted at the Business Premises
st Maddingley was purchased by Geanius Leaming while it was
tranded as Early Learming Centre Maddingley. This branding and
signage have not yel been replaced Works herafore need to be
undertaken to rabrand the centre 1o adhere (o the Genlus brand as
noted in itern 12 above,

Tne chiidcare cantre business conducted at the Buginess Premises
2t Oakbank was purchased by Genlus Learning while it was
branded as a Goodstart centre. This branding and signege have
besn removed but not yel replacad. Works therelore need to be
undertaken o rebrend the centre to adhere 1o the Genius brand as
notad in Rem 12 atove

A1 at the datle of the Share Sale Agreement the tax retums of B
Poal 1 Childcare Businass Operator for the yeer ended 30 June
2021 may not have baen filed, however, they are not ovardue and
will b fiwd by Complation,

A former employse working in the childcare centre af the Business
Premises at Allensown 'odged & claim with WorkCaover QLD, which

was deniad We were advised of such result on 15 September 202 1.

The farmer employae his a right 1o review the decision, howaver,
we have nol had any corresponcence since 15 Septembear 2021 on
thia matlar.

In respect of the empioyment agresmenis, we have disclosed each
tamplate for a fullk-tme, part-ime and casual employoe a3 o Due
Dillgence Document. We have also provided a schedule of the
speciiic informatior for each employee as a Due Dillgence
Document. Each employee that has an employment agreament that
varies materially from a template hes been disclosed as a Dus
Diligence Docutment. Further, the celads of the materal tarms of
amploymant or service of the officers, employees, consuitants and
contracions and he delails of sach Super Fund last provided to the
Buyer before the date of the Share Sale Agreement were ae ai 22
October 2021 and were complete and accurate as at that date, not
the date of the agreement, and those detells may change after thal
date, although the Seler s not aware of any material edverse
change between that dale and e date of this document.

Disdosure initer
Kem | Warranty
No.
20. 124
21, 134
22, 13.4
23, 16.2
24. 16 and 17
26. 17.1 and 18.1
28. 173

Genius Leaming is in the process of bargaining in relstion o an
entarprise agresment (Ganius Learning Oakbank Enerprise
Agreement 2021) which is propossd to cover employees thal
perfarm chidcare work 8t the Oskbank cenire. A Copy of some of
relevent mslerials has been included as a Due Difigence Document.

WBNTT DI LN rnry
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Diaciosure fetier
e | Warrsaty Disclosure
No.
27 183 Asg ot the dete of the Share Sele Agreemant, the supersnnuation

guarantaa charge in respect of the Employees may not have baen
o paid, however, such payment will be paid by Compietion.

28. | 184 As at the data of the Share Sale Agreament, the quanerty
superannustion payments for the employees of the Pool 1 Childcare
Business mey nol have been paid, however, such payments are not

ovarcus and will be paid by Completion.

29 | 21 The Company is 8 member of 8 tax consoldsted group and a2 parly

to a tax sharing and funding agreement. At Completion, the

| Company will ceasa to be a member of the tax consolidated group

| and the hosd company will axacuta an exit deed stating that the
Company is released from the tax consolidaied group's tax

l cbiigetions.

30 |2114 | Ag pert of the Share Sele Agreement and the ¥ansactions
contemplated by the Share Ssie Agreemant, the Salier imtends to
obiain the benefil of scrip for scrip rol-over retief with the support of
the Buyer In accorcance with ciausa 7 3 of the Share Sale

| Agreement

Unless the conbext ctherwise requires, a8 word or term defined in the Shere Sale Agreement has the
same maaning In this eiter

Please acknowtedgs receipt of this lettar by signing and returrang 8 copy of it
Yours faithfully

't".',' :‘L
Darren Misquitta

Sole director and sole company sacratary
Genius Education Holdings Pty Ltd

Recsipt on 30 October 2021 befora execution of the Shere Sale Agreement «3 acknowledged.

Signature .

ToonCoe

CEO

Position wllh Buyer

30a37722_10.00¢x page 7
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Schedule 5 — Due Diligence Documents

External DD Docs

(1:4’0921 Sealed Subpoena Genius Day Care (2) - Brinsmead - Family Law Matler pdf
ntres

1-2360235308917_MOSB3071 30082019 pdf

595 HOM_BRI_17072020164421-0001 (1).pdf

BEA SHG_SHM_24022021101611-0001 (1) pdf

CLY WUL_GDP_Genius Agreement (1) pdf

Current Fee and Dicsount Schedule xIsx

Fea Increasaes - Last 12 Months. xdsx

Genius Buses xsx

Genius Equipment Leased xdsx

Genius Lease (1) pdf

Genius Printer Listxisx

Internet and phones Suppliers xisx

Invoice from Hyperspike - Genius Brinsmead - JUL 2021 eml

Invoice from Hyperspike - Genius Cheltenham - JUL 2021 emi

Invoice from Hyperspike - Genius Clifton Beach - JUL 2021 emi

Invoice from Hyperspike - Genius Clyde - JUE 2021 eml

Invoice from Hyperspike - Genius Mooroolbark - JUL 2021 eml

Invoice from Hyperspike - Genius Oakbank - JUL 2021 emi

Maddingiey Earthquake Insurnace Matter

20210923_122217 p9

20210923 _122303 jpg

20210923_122313 pa

20210923_122339.pg

20210923_122507 o

20210923 _122521 jpg

20210923_122523 o9

20210823_122644 jpg

20210923_122733 jpg

20210923_122807 ppo

20210923_122902 jp9

20210923_122954 jpg

20210923_123018 pg

20210923_123052 ppD

20210923_123116 jpg

20210923_123141 jpg

20210923 122207 ppg

20210923_123236 pg

MOO_18012021170238-0001 (1).pdf

Oakbank Flooding Insurance Matter

0CT72ACF-5026-4361-B302-830F 31A010D80 jpeg

OE7CA466-FBFS-4E77-8DCS5-A3A0FI6DY0F 1 jpeg

IC109BFB-516F -4618-BA74-TA2682DF 1DCF jpeg

5D3F9EQE -A777-4896-BE93-04D14DESDBIB jpeg

TAATFFCB-4762-42F6-A1AF-76840FE2C3F 1 jpeg

16E42602-A08B-4E4C-958E-DO3BCBABGIGDA pog

73F5927A-CABB-43C9-BC7F-F3BB710F288F jpeg

86DCY3CB-740C-4A38-9486-ECAF59BESCES jpag

4394AE 26 04B8-40E6-898C-841191809C23 jpeg
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9807D54C.C5AB-4B839-91A4-50C00A278A 14 jpeg
33627BF1-7810-4B66-BE01-9D76235F 7EDS jpeg
50996A86-FE09-4DC1-8127-COATABDEACI1 peg
A7C75ECD-C767-41FD-AC09-106F 4A4706F 5 jpeg
ACG7FAE 1-8BA1-44C3-B808-2A5D2A3EBYAE jpeg
BO2BFEBS5-EBOD-4AC1-8640-E98B0306454A jpeg
BBDDY9AT-7404-4E95-9382-1BDC78861340 jpeg
C7D58019-4BSE -440D-BIF7-93C9776EBD75 jpeq
CDEGD973-E190-473A-96D8-FAAA11178B7C6E jpeg
E91211EF-409A-4BCD-97AD-9D7B32F 72BB7 jpeg
F2B0EC64-8086-4EDF -BC22-8A3ACE636378 jpeg
FODB1DB0-D416-4481-850D-2B1E52669B51 jpeg
FO71630C-7D96-410C-B3A4-9B88F28COFF0 jpeg
F7864084-65E6-4394-90CB-600F21ECD5DYT jpeg
Oakbank Flooding Insurance Matter pdf

Oct_2021 (2) pai

Oct_2021 (3).pdf

RBC - printer contract pdf
SEA_18082020185841-0001 (1).pd!

Shortlorn Lease {Aus) 5510524463 _5510524463AUS1_v1 signed (2).pdf
Weekly Trend Occupancy Repors xisx

Corporate

631886_1-Genius Leaming Pty Lid Constitubon_R pdf
Constitution (Genius Education).pdf

Genius Educalion Balance Sheet per centre 30 June 2021 xisx
Genius Education Fixed Asset Regisier 30 Septomber 2021 xisx
Geanius FY21 PAL xisx

Disputes

Employses

Above Award Employees 30 00.21 xisx

Employees Contracts (All Employees)
Allenstown Contracts

ALL - Abigail Andarson. pof

ALL - Alicia-Jog Cahill pdf

ALL - Alishe Thackeray pdf

ALL - Alissa Newcombe. pd!

ALL - Amy Schnabel pdf

ALL - Courtnay Hansen.pdf

ALL - Danielle Bardsley.pdi

ALL - Haytie Finning pdl

ALL - ¥om Lawrence pdf

ALL - Lacey Bums pdf

ALL - Lauren Hill pdf

ALL - Linda Marshall pdf

ALL - Lyda Kennedy pdf

ALL - Maryana Purnall pdf

ALL - Natasha Simpson pdf

ALL - Nicole Durdin. pdf

ALl - Paige Lawrence pdf

ALL - Rhianonn Mitlan pdf
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AlLL - Tahlee Roos pdf

ALL - Trena Kline.pdf

ALL - Yvette Mukalora. pdf
Brinsmeads Contracts
BRI - Blendina McCartney pdf
BRI - Caithn Obrien pdf

BRI - Carolen Devon pdf
BRI - Chitstine Aspinall pdf
BRI - Dariela Jajinerova pdi
BRI - Deepak Giawia pdf
BRI - Elaine Seden.pdf

BRI - Elien Finch pdl

BRI - Emily Hughes pd!

BRI - Florence Katusabe pdf
BRI - iveth Sanchez pdi
BRI - Jasmine Jimenez.pdf
BRI - John Calvert pdf

BRI - Kale Gehringer._pdf
BRI - Kin Lacey pdf

BRI - Kuldeep Kaur pdf

BRI - Laureci santos pdf
BRI - Lisa Kilpatrick pdf

BRI - Maria Ericson.pdf

BRI - Natasha Doolah pdl
BRI - Nicole Hansen_pdf
BRI - Razele Zamora pdf
BRI - Roxy Townsernd _pdi

BRI - Shaylene or Shay Taylor pdf

BRI - Tanika Haines pdf
BRI - Tanika Rogers. pdf
BRI - Teegan Waish.pdf
BRI - Term Nelson.pdf

BRI - Zhenjiao Yuan pdf
Cheltenham Contracts
CHL - Alax Mclnemay pdf
CHL - Allen Middleton pdf
CHL - Briana Shiels._pdf
CHL - Carlie Cochrane. pdf
CHL - Christine Reindel pdf
CHL. - Darcy Lee.pdf

CHL - Dulani Sooriyabandara pdf

CHL - Elizabeth Moe.pdf

CHL - Grace Bndges pdf

CHL - Jan Liang pd!

CHL - Kasandra Caldwell pdf
CHL - Kirsty Patullo pdf

CHL - Nalarsha Woodward. pdf
CHL - Nichole Hay pd!

CHL - Priyasika Narayan.pdf
CHL - Rebecca Proc pdf
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CHL - Sam van der Zwaard pdl
CHL - Sandra Nikolicin pdf
CHL - Sarah Boyd pdf

CHL - Shami Le Souef.pdf
CHL - Vicki Thurwood_pdf
CHL - Yingzhu Lu pdf

Clifton Beach Contracts
CLI - Abigail Hughes pdf

CLI - Aleksandra Thomas pdf
CLI - Angela Bakker pdf

CLI - Chieko Abe pdf

CL) - Cydine Aquilina pdf

CL! - Demi-Grace Coburm. pdf
CLI - Elyse Blucher pdf

CLI - Fernanda Vitale pdf

CLI - Hannah Knuth. pd!

CL) - Jade Barton pdt

CLI - Jessamyn Jansz pdt
CLI - Jassica Corby pdf

CLI - Jesssica Robinson. pdf
CLI - Judith Adams.pd!

CL) - Kaisey Gibbs pdf

CLI - Kaithin Martin pdf

CLI - Lana Hutchings.pdf

CLI - Laura Castillo pdf

CLI - Lowse Kirwan pdf

CLI - Manju Thapa pdf

CLI - macdi Pithve pdf

CLI - Mamie Heraud pdf

CLI - Minhee (Eileen) Seo.pdf
CLI - Monica Storer-Jensen pdf
CL) - Pheobe Buller pdf

CLI - Rebecca Fenwick pdf
CLI - Renata Nogueira pdf
CLI - Riana Deacon_pdi

CLI - Rie llo.pdf

CL| - Taka Ryan pdf

CLI - Vanessa Gilam pdf

CLI - Vicki Benson. pdf

CLI - Yasuko Stridh. pdf

CLI- Laura Castillo pdf

Clyde North Contracts

CLY - Chelsey Durdin pd¥
CLY - Chetna Gajjar pdf

CLY - Claire Bast.pdf

CLY - Devika Sanmogam.pdf
CLY - Emma Cross pdl

CLY - Esha Viora pdf

CLY - Farah Sagib.pdf

CLY - Geraldine Tourmentin_pdf
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CLY - Hardeep Kaur pdf

CLY - Harpreat Kaur pdf

CLY - Holly Caron pdf

CLY - Isabslia Larosa.pdf

CLY - Jayde Armstrong. pdf

CLY - Katrina Macdonald pdf
CLY - Lara Prasad pdf

CLY - Laura Diono.pdf

CLY - Lynda Mcpherson.pdf
CLY - Madison Nuttall_pdf

CLY - Manjeel Keur pdf

CLY - Mananna Pardi pdf

CLY - Marie Desirea Staphanie Ridoynauth.pdi
CLY - Medhanie K D Kahagolla pdf
CLY - Mehry tsfahani.pdf

CLY - Melinda Walish pdf

CLY - Neeti Kapoor.pdf

CLY - Neha Yadav pdf

CLY - Renee Teal. pdf

CLY - Roslyn Bosdolf_pdf

CLY - Sahira Dhalwal pdf

CLY - Samantha Keddwe pdf
CLY - Sandra Wraight pdf

CLY - Sindhuja Karanam pdf
CLY - Sowjanya Kanakamedale pdf
CLY - Stephanie Casey pdf
CLY - Staphanie Fitzgerald pdf
CLY - Thani Hantou.pdf
Maddingley Contracts

MAD - Alexandra Chillingworth.pdf
MAD - Alicia Curmi.pdf

MAD - Amanprest Kaur pdf
MAD - Baljinder Kaur pdf

MAD - Balpreet Saman. pdf

MAD - Blesilyn Reyes pdf

MAD - Christine Dumble pdf
MAD - Fewronia Camillern. pdf
MAD - Fiona Minihan pdf

MAD - Gemma Russell pdf
MAD - Glora Marrocchino_pdf
MAD - Hannah Graham pdl
MAD . Hayley Stevens pdf

MAD - inderprest Sarao.pdf
MAD - Joshua Porter_pdf

MAD - Kamaljeot Kaur pdf

MAD - Kala Heshne_pd!

MAD - Leo Kakoschke pdf

MAD - Pardeep Kaur Chahal pdf
MAD - Poh Tan pdf

MAD - Pooja Badhwar pd!
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MAD - Rajyalakshmi imadabattuni.pdf
MAD - Ramanjit Kaur_pdl
MAD - Renae Cauchi.pdf
MAD - Samantha Bradley pdf
MAD - Sandeep Pabia pof
MAD - Sara Coliins pdf

MAD - Sara Garces pdf

MAD - Sarbjit Kaur_pdf

MAD - Susan Pa pdf
Moorolbark Contracts

MOO - Anna Pham.pdf

MOO - Beth Schrmdt pdf
MOO - Codee Ring pdf

MOQ - Ebony Foll pdf

MOQ - Eilen Kollosche pdf
MOO - Emma Clark pdi

MOO - Genevieve Barclay pdf
MOO - Georgia Rees pdf
MOO - Jaysun Maxwell pdf
MOO - Katie Moms pdf

MQCO - Lauren Rotman pdf
MQO - Liz Pereira.pdf

MOO - Margaret Zhou pdf
MOO - Nicole Lutgens pd!
MOO - Phoebe Whyte pdf
MOO - Rachel Goulter pdf
MOO - Rebecca Challdey pdf
MOO - Sarah Cartedlli.pdf
MOO - Shama Hams pdf
MOO - Taal Kregting pdf
MOO - Wendy Flanagan pdf
Norman Gardens Contracts
NOR - Allana Lacey pdf

NOR - Anna Aguila pdf

NOR - Carly Strickfuss pdf
NOR - Celia Toop pdf

NOR - Chioe Dahler.pdf

NOR - Chioe Jonhstone. pdf
NOR - Chioe Poole pdf

NOR - Chrystl Yong.pof

NOR - Daniel Mabb. pdf

NOR - Debbie Rayner.pdf
NOR - Deborah Holtyman pdl
NOR - Diana Shahmuradov pdf
NOR - Dipika Sagran pdf
NOR - Ebony-Ann Johnsione pdf
NOR - Elie Jensen. pdf

NOR - Ellena Hamilton.pd(
NOR - Ellie-rose Todkill pdf
NOR - Ellise - Rose Todkill pdf
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NOR - Heather Wisley.pdf
NOR - Isabella Richter pdf
NOR - Jillian Mower pdf

NOR - Julie Humphreys_pdf
NOR - Katie Edwards . pdf
NOR - Kemi-Anne Amold. pdf
NOR - Kimberley Kirkwood pdf
NOR - Kristy Mananett pdf
NOR - Kristy Tumer pdf

NOR - Latoia Toye pdf

NOR - Lity Braney pdf

NOR - Madelein Gouws._pdf
NOR - Mana Auld pdf

NOR - Miranda Evans.pdf
NOR - Mya Duffy pdf

NOR - Nicole Cimmins.pdf
NOR - Pallavi Jha.pdf

NOR - Pans Nevin pdf

NOR - Phoebe Morgan pdf
NOR - Piranavy Rajaruban pdf
NOR - Samantha McArdie pdf
NOR - Tiana Luckman pdf
NOR - Toni Baxter pdf

NOR - Vanassa Roberts pdf
Oakbank Contracts

OAK - Anne Lehwood pdf
OAK - Cathryn Wynne pdf
OAK - Charlotte Noms_pdf
OAK - Cheyanne Dolling.pdf
OAK - Cory Mae Williams. pdf
OAK - Georgia Sheavills pdl
OAK - Haylay Leislef pdf
OAK - Jasmin Scolt pdf

OAK - Jennifer Maddem . pdf
OAK - Karen Light pdf

OAK - Lisa Gutte pdf

OAK - Maeve Dullaghan pd!
OAK - Margaret Halloran. pdf
OAK - Molissa Kennedy pdf
OAK - Narmada Manukonda pdf
OAK - Olivia Cecil pdf

OAK - Saraeh Druwatt pdf

OAK - Shani Amold pdf

OAK - Suzanne Bowman pdf
OAK - Vanessa Bastiras.pdf
OAK - Yolanda Heatherey pdf
Rainforest Contracts

RAI - Aci Sukarsih pdf

RAI - Aibelyn Agustin pdf

RAI - An Nguyen pdf
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RAI - Bells Gudes pdf

RAI - Emilia Woo pdf

RAI - Emma Telford pdf

RAI - Gaebriella Taylor pdf
RAI - Georgia Jeffcoat.pdf
RA{ - Hayley Milchell pdf

RAI - Joanne Erniksson pdf
RAI - Justine Davy pdf

RAI - Kemry Wall pdf

RAI - Lenka Smidova_pdf
RAI - Lilly Wood pdf

RAI - Louise Cox.pdf

RAI - Ma Victoria Saremo . pdf
RAI - Mane-Ange Cristaldi pdf
RAI - Mamie Marshman.pdf
RAI - Malinda Smyth pdf

RAI - Michelle King. pdf

RA! - Rajtirth Kaur.pdf

RAI - Rebacca Schultz.pdf
RAI - Rebekah Rudkin.pdf
RAI - Reina Pascua pdf

RAI - Renea Martin pdf

RAI - Sally Bryan pdf

RAI - Sarah Lewts pdi

RAI - Sarah Milne pdl

RAI - Seama Casos pdf

RAI - Shereoe Cox.pdf

RAI - Sherena Creighton pdf
RAI - Taoata Chillon_pdf

RAI - Tayla Temple pdf

RAI - Vera Hanton pd(
Seaford Contracts

SEA - Ashleigh Fox pdf

SEA - Ashieigh Villani.pdf
SEA - Bianca Grech pdf

SEA - Bnanna Purdey.pdf
SEA - Caroline Humphries. pdf
SEA - Cheyenne Savage pdf
SEA - Ebony Cox new_pdf
SEA - Ebony Cox.pdf

SEA - Emma Smith pdl

SEA - Ern Taylor pdf

SEA - Hannah Dee-Scullion. pdf
SEA - Jillian Boyde pdf

SEA - Judith Laracas. pdf
SEA - Kate Browman pdf
SEA - Lucy Cracknell pdf
SEA - Maddison D'Angelo. pdf
SEA - Madeline Coad pdf
SEA - Melinda McFartand pdl
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SEA - Merennage Udan pdf
SEA - Mikalya Anell_pdi

SEA - Peneiope Yerondais. pdf
SEA - Shelley Vellin pdf

SEA - Tricia Anderson pdf
Sheridan Gardens Contracts
SHG - Adrienne Boulle pdf
SHG - Audry Edwards pdf
SHG - Brie Cook pdf

SHG - Caithin O'Retlly pdf
SHG - Chioe Boulle pdf

SHG - Gwen Yincin pdf

SHG - Jacinta Joyce pdi
SHG - Jazmine Boyle pdf
SHG - Jazzman Wyles. pdf
SHG - Joanne Howis.pdf
SHG - Kelsey Whetters pdf
SHG - Kiara Samaniego.pdf
SHG - Kirstie Borgo pdf
SHG - Korissa Hoevers pdf
SHG - Leasa Pogorzelski pdf
SHG - Michelle Kelty pdf

SHG - Monokoatihau Ngametua pdf

SHG - Naomi Sullivan pdf
SHG - Rabecca Boland pdf
SHG - Tanya Rontund pdf
SHG - Time Jakab . pdf

SHG- Jessica Curtis pdf
Sheridan Meadows Contracts
SHM - Alexandra Milan pdf
SHM - Alicia Gobus pdf

SHM - Amanda Riley.pdf

SHM - Anne-Marie Smith_pdf
SHM - Ashisigh Cummings pdt
SHM - Carolyn Hitchin pdf
SHM - Debma Abdalia pdf

SHM - Elyse Waliwork pdf
SHM - Grace Yoon.pdf

SHM - Hayley Joyce pd!

SHM - Jeein Yang pdf

SHM - Jassie Dunstan pdf
SHM - Joan Vincin pdf

SHM - Lisa Pettigrew pdt

SHM - Lorrae Godlfrey pdt
SHM - Lowana Fagan pdf
SHM - Lucica-Viorica Devine pdf

SHM - Monique Van Der Knapp._pdf

SHM - Nasnn Akther pdf
SHM - Nicole Deloryn pdf
SHM - Olivia Kaniry pdf

39149995_21.docx

page 80



Share sale agreement o PiperAlderman

SHM - Rachael Mayson.pdf

SHM - Reynelda Homig pdf

SHM - Satomi Anderson pdf

SHM - Shantel Thom pdf

SHM - Sky Bolton pdf

SHM - Sofia Forzano.pdf

SHM - Sophie Day pdf

SHM - Taya Coleman. pdf

SHM - Veerpal Dhillon . pdf

SHM - Yumiko Coleman. pdf

Wulguru Contracts

WUL - Amanda-Leigh Johnson pdf

WUL - Courtney-Lee Cassidy pdf

WUL - Dannielle Ross pdf

WUL - Eloise Crosby pdf

WUL - Emily Teleni-Frost pdf

WUL - Evie Clayton pdf

WUL - ingnd Grant pdf

WUL - Jamie-Lee Sard pdi

WLUL - Kelli-Maree Skelton pdf

WUL - Kim Lovedl pdf

WUL - Linda Blows pdf

WUL - Lisa Thomas pdf

WUL - Louise Lyons.pdf

WUL - Malinda Seymour.pdf

WUL - Neha Dhir pdf

WUL - Perline Jaromay pdf

WUL - Riho Uchikata.pdf

WUL - Sally Burgaess pdf

WUL - Stephanie Schwarlz pdf

WUL - Teana Newman_pdf

WUL - Tineal Shanahan pdf

Employees Information Genius - Oclober FN 22 10 21 xisx
FWC

Moorocibark

Cheree File note for Melanie Pumpkin intolerance pdf
Cheree slalf file pdf

Chearee Terminatrion for Cooper Soy tofu. pdf

Cherie verbal waming for harvey FPIES pdf

POF - UDT Listing - conciliation - Daren Misquitta,_Genius Leaming Pty Lid Trading
AS Genius Childcare - Level 1, 60 Toorak Road, SOUTH YARRA VIC 3141 pdf
Termsnation Leller - Moorooiberk pdf

Seaford

F2_Emma_Smith-Davidson__ 864348 pdf

PDF - UDT Listing - conciliation - Ms Maddy Coad, _Genis Leaming Pty Ltd - 5-7
Sunderiand Court, SEAFORD VIC 3198.pdi
Statement RE Emma Smith POF pdf

Temination Letter - Mooroolbark pdf

Non standard contracts (above award)

ALL - Cutts Lee pdf
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ALL - Marshall Linda pdf

BRI - Calverl John.pdf

BRI - Hansen Nicole_pdf

BRI - Roxanne Townsend pdf

CHL - Woodward Natarsha. pdf

CL! - Jansz Jessamyn pdf

CLI - Nebeauer Kerry pdf

CLI - Robinson Jessica pdf

CLY - Dhalwal Sahira pdf

CLY - Gamage Kasun. pdf

CLY - Mita Lo pdf

CLY - Raid Knisty.pdf

CLY - Wright Sandra.pdf

MCO - Ellen Kollosche pdt

MOO - Sarab Cartell pdf

MOQ- Goulter Racheal padf

NOR - Amold Kem pdf

NOR - Morgan Phoobe pdf

NOR - Weston Tegan_pdf

OAK - Leister Hayley pdf

RAIl - Rebecce Schulz. pdf

RAI -Schitterova Zuzana pdf

SEA - Jillian Boyde.pdf

SEA - vellin Shelty_pdi

SHG- Curtis Jessica pdf

SHM - Deloryn Nicole pdf

WUL - Cassidy Courtney - Lee pdf

WUL - Dhir Neha pdf

OAK EBA

2021 09 03 - Notice of Representabonal Rights(4700705.2) (1).pdf
Determination by FWC re Oakbank EA pdf

Genius Leaming Oakbank - United Workers Union Log of Claims re Bargaining for
an Enterprise Agreeamant jpg

Parenial leave nfo

Peaid Parental Leave Obligations xsx

Standard contracts (templates)

Genius Leaming - Casual Award Contract - Template docx
Genius Leaming Pty Lid - Template - Full-Time docx
Genius Leaming Pty Lid - Template - Part time docx
Warkcover

MAD - Alexander Chillingworth

20210127 Scan 162536 pdf

AC Capcity cerdificate 1.2.2021 pdf

AC Incident Form (2) pdf

AC Incident Form pdf

AC Medical pdf

Certificate of Capcity AC pdf
ISBN-Workers-injury-claim-form-2020-06 pdf
Workcover Claim - Sepltember 2021 pdf

MAD- Christine Dumble

39149995_21.docx page 82



Share sale agreement 0 PiperAlderman

C D work cover incident report 18 11.2020 pdf

CD-Claim Reimbursement Remittance Advice March_pdf
Christine D - Reduction (1)_pdf
Electronic-Funds-Transfer-Application-Form-Employers-May-2013 pdf
Employer natice - CD pdf

PIAWE form (2) pdf

RTW Plan updated Apeil 2021 _pd!

Sprint Capital Mail - Fwd_ Ms Christine Dumbile - 09200040873 - Retum to Work
Status pdf

work capacity 16th sept 21 C D pdf

workcare cert 2 pdf

workcare cert 4 pdf

workcare cert 6 pdf

workcare cert 7 pdf

Workcare cert 8 pdf

WaorkCover CoC 02 06 2021 - 30.06.2021 CD pdf
WORKER'S COMPENSATION CLAIM LODGEMENT SYSTEM pdf
worker's injury ctaim form (1).pdf

WorkSafe-Entry Report-V01049000028L pdf

NOR - Miranda Evans

Work capacity Cort until 10 05.2021 jpg

work cover pdf

WorkersWagesSubmittedOnhne (2).pdf
WorkerswagesSubmittedOnhne pdf

RAI - Sarah Miine

OnlineClaimForm_177504 pdf

Sarah Miine Workers Comp Paperwork (1).pdf
WorkersWagesSubmittedOnlineAtachmentSubmitOnly pdi
WC Status xisx

Financing

IER - PKF

2. Forecasts

Acquisition Analysis - Genius ALL adjusted xisx
Acquistion Anatysis - Genws BRI adjusted xisx
Acquisition Analysis - Genius CHL adjusted xisx
Acquisition Analysis - Genius CL1 adjusted xisx
Acquisition Analysis - Genius CLY adjusted xisx
Acquisition Analysis - Genius MAD adjusted xisx
Acquisition Analysis - Genius MOO adjpusted xisx
Acquisition Analysis - Genius NOR adjustad xtsx
Aoquisition Analysis - Genius OAK adjusted xisx
Acquisition Analysis - Genius RA| adjusted dsx
Acquisition Analysis - Gendus SEA adjusted xlsx
Acquisition Analysis - Genius SHG adjusted xisx
Acquisition Analysis - Genius SHM adjusted xisx
Acquisition Analysis - Genius SUMMARY edited xlsx
Acquisition Analysis - Genius WUL adjusted xisx

Genius CentresCo adpusted xisx

Intellectual Property

Leases and Agreemants
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1. Allenstown

3446-3743-1830-v2 - Genws Childcare Lease - Allensiown pdf
885218_1-Rockhampton Regional Counci Rates Notice FY21 pdf
Poriugal - QLD LandTax - 1 RP881585. pdf

2. Brinsmead

2020-2021 Land Tax Brinsmead pdf

RatesNolice - BRI pdf

Renl Invoice - BRI pdt

Signed Lease Agreement with Genius Leaming - Commeancing 19 Sapt 2020 pdf
3. Cheltenham

2021 VIC Land Tax Assessment Notice - CHL,MOO SEA pdf
Cheltenham - Lease (fully signed) (1) PDF

Rates &Taxes FY21 - 1A BERNARD ST POF

Rent Invoice - CHL .pdf

4. Clifton Beach

3477-4534-5046-v2 - Genius Childcare Lease - Clifton Beach.pdi
210715 - Land Tex Clearence Certificate Request Notice pdf
834507 _1-Caims Regional Council Statement - Rales FY22 pdf

6. Clyde North

Genius - Executed Lease pdf

Renl Invoice - CLY pdf

6. Maddingley

2020-2021 Land Tax Maddingley pdf

4009 - Deed of Assignment and Varation 2014 - Maddingley pdf
55759110_1 - Lease ransier, Maddingley - Compiled - Executed PDF
BMLP Properties Pty Ltd - Deed of Variation - SIGN AND RETURN (2).pdf
DRAFT Genius Childcare Lease - Maddingley pdf

DRAFT Sumrender and new lease dead (Maddingley). pdf
Maddingley Childcare cenfre - Lease pdf

Rates & Taxes FY21 PDF

Rent Invoice - MAD .PDF

7. Mooroolbark

2021 VIC Land Tax Assessment Notice - CHL MOO, SEA pdf
COMMPAC INVOICE - Mooroolbark Genius rates 05.10 20 pdf
Mooroolbark - Lease (fully executed) (1).PDF

Rent Invoice - MOO pdf

8. Norman Gardens

ARE{T Inv 5014095 - April 2021 - 653 - 661 Norman Rd.pdf
Norman Gardens - Leasa (23 March 2020) pdf

Rates & Taxes FY21 pdt

Rent Invoice - NOR pdf

9. Oakbank

887332013_1_Oakbank lease dated 15 10 2021 (CD 1 10.2021) PDF
Adelaide Hills Council Rate Notice 2021-22 - OAK pdf

Rent Invoice - OAK pdf

10. Rainforest {Cannonvale)

3477-2804-3542-v2 - Genws Childcare Laase - Cannonvale pdf
Misquitta Childcare Property Pty Lid as TTE Rates Notice FY21 pdf
Portugal - QLD LandTax - 132 SP176333 pdf

11. Seaford
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2021 VIC Land Tax Assessment Notice - CHL MOO SEA pdl
Rates & Taxes FY21.ipg

Rent Invoice - SEA pdf

Seaford - Lease FULLY EXECUTED PDF

12. Sheridan Gardens

3445.4246-9654-v2 - Genius Childcare Lease - White Rock pdf
201027 - QLD Land Tax Clearance Certificate pdf
Assassment Rates FY21 pdf

Poriugal - QLD LandTax - 11 CPC198140 pdf

13. 8heridan Meadows

2017LeaseShendanMeadows pdf

Deed of Assignment - Sheridan Maadows pdf

Deed of Consent and Assignment of Leasa - Shendan Meadows pdf
Invoice Rates & Taxes FY22 pdf

Portugal - QLD LandTax - 11 SP172555 pdf

Rent Invoice - SHM pdf

14. Wulguru

3446-5912-3734-v4 - Genius Childcare Leasa - Wulguru pdf
Portugal - QLD LandTax - 120 SP172385 pdf

Rates and Taxes FY21 pdf

Bank Guarantee List xlsx

DD Leases Matrix xisx

Landlord Information adsx

Podl 1 Lease Summary Schedule - 31.8.21 xisx

Regulatory

1a Bernard Street, Cheltenham (PL&P!) pdt

2 Evergrean Streat, Clifton Beach (PL & P1).pdf

3.5 Bathurst Street, Mooroolbark (PL & Pl).pdf

4.6 Frelwell Road, White Rock (PL & Pl) pdf

5.7 Sunderand Court, Seaford (PL&P1) pdf

9 Brose Streel, White Rock (PL & PI).pdf

16-18 Hany Vallence Dr Maddingley (PL&P POF

20 319468 Senvice Approval Cortificate Genius Leaming - 121 Rainforest Centro
update pdf

27 Ross St Allenstown (PL&PI) pdf

83 Londan Dnve, Brinsmead (Pt & PL).pdf

121 Shute Harbour Rd, Cannonvale (PL & Pl) pdf

205 Onkaparinga Valley Road, Oakbank (PL & P1) pdf

353 Stuart Drive, Wulguru (PL&P). pdf

653-661 Norman Road, Rockhampton (PL & P1) pdf
CertificateServiceApproval OAKBANK padf

Genius Brinsmaad - Initial Service Approval Certificate PDF
Genius Leaming - Allenstown - Re-issued Service Approval Cerlificate. pdf
ISR - 1a Bemard Street Cheltenham pdf

ISR - 2 Evergreen Street Clifton Beach pd!

ISR - 3-5 Bathurst Streel Mooroolbark pdf

ISR - 4.6 Frotwell Road White Rock pdf

ISR - 5-7 Sunderiand Court Seaford pdf

ISR - 9 Brose Street White Rock_pdf

ISR - 16-18 Harry Vallence Dr Maddingley pdt
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ISR - 27 Ross St Allenstown pdf

ISR - 83 Londan Dnve Brinsmead pdf

1SR - 121 Shute Harbour Rd Cannonvale pdf

ISR - 205 Onkapannga Valley Road Oakbank pdf

ISR - 353 Stuart Drive Wulguru pdf

ISR - 853-661 Norman Road Rockhamplon_pdf

ISR - Lv1 800 Berwick-Cranboume Rd Clyde North pdf

Lv1 800 Berwick Cranboume Rd, Clyde North (PL&PI) pdf

P795009 ca88304004ae4abbB87682d4768c859001b 1 - Insurance - ISR pidf
P795162 2266167490694776ae25e 1b0dde42fc3 1 - Insurance - PL pdf
Provider_approval_Genius Leaming PTY LTD_Sep2015 (1) (1).pdf
Service Approval Certificate - Genius Wulguru (75 spaces) pdt

Service Approval Certificate Chifton Beach.pdf

Servica Approval Certificate Ganius Leaming - Norman Garden pdf
Sarvice Approval certificate_Genius Childcare - Cheltenham pdf

service approval certificate_Genius Leaming Maddingley (SE-40002764) (1).pdf
Service approval Genius Leaming - Clyde Nosth pdf

Service Approval shendan gardens pdi

Servica Approval Sharnidan Meadows pdf
Service_approval_lettar_and_certificate_Genius Leamning Mooroobark pdf
Service_approval-Genius Childcare - Seaford-SE-40015262 pdf

RFis from MFD

Cartificate of Name Change - Genws (Clyde) Pty Ltd. pdf

Consfitution - Ganius IP Pty Ltd pdf

DK, ANDARAS PTY LTD - Register of Members.pdf

DK Andaras Pty Lid Constitution (Signed).pdf

Email from Glen pdf

Email response to Glenn re employees pdf

Email Response to MFD DD Quastions - (Glenn Raines) 1.9.21 pdf
Email Response to MFD DD Questions - 1.9.21 pdf

Email Response to MFD DD Questions - 2.9.21 pdf

Email Response o MFD DD Questions - employees pdl

Email Response to MFD DD Questions pdf

Email Rasponsa to MFD Employment Entittements Questions pdf

Email RFls from MFD - 31.8.21 pdf

Email to Glenn re DD questions.pdi

Emails to MFD re DO pdf

GENIUS _CLYDE_ PTY LTD _ Register of Members pdf

GENIUS _COLLINS_ PTY LTD _ Register of Members pdf

Genius {Canndaie) Pty Ltd Constitution pdf

Genius (Collins) Pty Ltd Constitution - Preivously named Genius Estates Pty Ltd pdf
Genius Centres List - 31.8 21 xlsx

GENIUS CHILDCARE PTY LTD _ Register of Members pdf

Genius Childcare Pty Ltd Constitution (Signed) pdf

GENIUS IP PTY LTD _ Register of Members pdf

Misquitta Family Trust Deed (Signed & Certified)_Ref886487_1.pdf
Misquitta Family Trust Deed (Signed & Certified) pdf
Provider_approval_Genius Leaming PTY LTD_Sep2015 (1) (1) pdf
RFIs from MFD pdf
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‘This agreement s made on

naeit dida

between: 'Genius Learning Pty Ltd ABN 66 603 512 604 (Genius Learning)

‘Address: 1 Balmain Street, Cremaome. Vicloria. 3121

‘Email:  damen@@sprintcaphialpartners com

‘Attention: Crarten Michasl Misquitta

‘Mayfield Childcare Limited ABN 53 604 970 390 (Mayfield)

‘Address:  Sulte 2, 207 Waverley Road, Matvem East, Victorla, 2145
Emall: ddarke@mayBeldchildcare. com au '

Attention: Dean Clarke

Operative provisions

1

11

Definitions and interpretation
Definitions
in this agreement, unless the conid olherwite requires

Annualised EBITDA means, with respect o a Childcare Centre al a date, the eamings
befare interes!, tax, deprecialion and amorisation of the operator of the Childcare Cantre Vo
Iheeadanlrdaﬁtgmmamuﬂonufmaid:arac“mfmuwfioduwwmm
ondngonmdthudaunindlntccm!mumh-EHTDASM.WM
Childcare Business Accounting GAAP mudtiplied by 4,

Authorisation maans a certificate. licence, approval, permit, authority or exemption of, by or
with 8 Government Agency.

Business Doy means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday bank holiday or public hollday:

(a) Iutmapuposeofsemlngotmoehhgemﬂm,hthedtywhemmemlcels
received; and

{b) for alt other purposes, in the dity of Melbourne. Australia;

Childcare Business Accounting GAAP masns Australian generilly sccapled accounting
principles axchading Accounting Standards AASB 16 Leases and AASB 117 Leasas,

Childcare Centre means premises used, or proposad 1o be used, wholly of predeminalely as
aplmtopwvidauhcaﬁonund*otmsuﬁmslwcﬂ:ﬁmmuhmd. leased or
uoansadbyoronbehllfolaGuiusLauﬂngEMly(aagmedlobemﬂmd leased or
licensed by or on behalf of a Genius Leaming Endity) at the locations specified In Schedule 1
at the Commencement Data or at any odher location specified in the Childcare Centre
Davelopment Plan for the time being or the childcare centre business operated. or proposed
to be operated. by or on behalf of a Genlug Leaming Entity a1 such a Jocation, as the context

requires, subject to clause $2(d) and 42(e)

E0IV207TE_ Ak wage §
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Childcare Centre Developmant Plan means a plan for the identification and development of
Childcare Centres (inchuding any Chidcare Canties under developenant) end their sale 1o

Mayfield, including general and desired lease parameters (including in relation to the fype of
premises the type of landiord. the duration of the term and further lerms, the rent and

increases or markel raviews. the outgoings. and the guarantees or other security) and
potential sale dates,

Commencement Date means the date of Comgletion as defined in the Share Sale
Agraement,

Corporations Act mesns the Corporatons Act 2001 (C3h).

EBITDA Schedule meany schedule 3,

Education and Care Services National Law means

(a) Education and Care Services National Law (Victoria) as that term ls dedined under the
Educabon and Care Sevvices Natronal Law Act 2010 (Vic).

(b} Education and Care Services National Law (Queensiand) as that term I8 defined
undes the Educeton ard Cere Senices Nebona! Lew (Queensiand) Act 2011 ((d).

(c  Education and Care Senvices National Law (South Australia) as that term is defined
under the Education and Esrly Chridhood Services (Regisiration and Standards) Ad
2011 (SA),

{d) Children [Education and Care Services) National Lave (NS'W) a8 that term is defined
in the Chvidren (Educahon and Care Sennces National Law Applicaton) Act 2010
(NSW),

(®) Education and Care Services National Law (Westem Australia) as that term is dened
in the Educatron and Care Senvces Nabonal Law (WA) Adt 2012 (WA},

[\}] Education and Care Services National Law (ACT) as that term s defined in the
Education and Care Services Natonal Law (ACT) Act 2011 (ACT).

(9) Education and Care Services National Law (NT) as that term ls defined in the Ecucabon
and Care Services (Nahonal Undorm Leguaiabon) Act 2011 (NT)

M Education and Care Services Naliona! Law (Tasmania) as that term s defined in the
Educaton and Care Services Natonal Law (Apolcation) Acd 2011 (Tan)

as the context requires,

Genlus Leamning Entity means Genius Leaming or a related body corporate of Genlus
Leaming othes than Mayfield or a related body corposate of Mayfield

Government Agency means a govesnment, gavernment agency administrative, fiscal
judicial or non-governmental regulatory body | department, commission, authority tribunal of
agency In any Australian jurisdiction whether federal, state o local,

chmﬂmmmlon&mmmwmtmmu
performance metrics set out in clause &1 have been met,

AT Moy sage #
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Pro Forma Sale Agreement means the pro forma sale agreement set out in Schedule 2,

Share Sale Agreesnent means the share sale agreement between Gendus Education
Holdings Pty Ltd snd Mayfield dated [insert date]

12 Interpratation

In this agreement headings and bold typing are included for convenience only and do not
afect nterpratation and, unless te context otherwisse requires:

(a)
)
{ch

(d)

(e)

ih

(9l

(hy

i

)

(k)

0

(m)

(n)

8 reference to a word Includes the aingular and the phral of the word and vice versa;
8 raference 1o 8 gendet includes vy gendar,

il a word or plwase is defined, then other parts of speach and grammatical forms of
that word or plwase have a corresponding mearing;

» tenm which refers o B person includes a parson in sny capacity, a body corporate.
an unincorporated body (Sor example a sockety of assaciation), a bust, a partnership
& soversign stale a govemnment of 4 gavernment depariment or agency.

2 refarence to a document includes a reference to that document as amended,
novated, supplemented. varied or replaced;

a reflarence to a recital. clause, paragraph, echeduls, annexma or other part is a
reference to an lbem of that type in this agreement;

8 reforance to a party is a reference 10 a party 10 this agreement and inchudes a
referance m that party's successors and parmitted assigns,

a reference ta a statute or regulation or a provision of a statute of regulation Is a
refierance to that stakte. regulation or provision as amended or a statute, reqgulation
or provision replacing ¥, and a reference 1o a statute includes afl requiations,
proclamations, ordinances and by-laws made os issued under that statute;

& referance to 8 documem s a referenca v a document of any kind induding but not
limited %o an sgresment in wriling. a certiScate. & nolice. or an insfrument,

no provision of this agreement will be construed adversely 1o a party solaly on the
ground that the party was responsible for the preparation of this agreement or that

provision;

a ralerence to a Ume Is a reference to thal time in tive city of Melbourne, Australia

2 monutary reference is & reference 1O Aushalian cufrency.

a reference to an entity, other than a party Yo this agreement. which ceases to exist or
whose powers of funclions are ransferred (o ancther entity, is a reference 1o the
entity which replaces it or which substantially succeeds o Rs powers or functions.

the tamm ‘Including’. ‘e .. 'such as’, ‘particularty’ or any similar expression ia nof used
23 nor |8 intended 10 be inlespreded s, » Yemm of Emitation,

age 4
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1.3

1.4

(o)

P

a word or torm defined in the Corporations Act has the same meaning in this
agreement. and

2 word of tesmn defined in A New Tax Systern (Goods and Services Tex) Act 1999
(Chh) has the same meaning In this agreemant where used in connection with the
GST imposed under thet Ad

Acquiring and disposal referances

In this agreement, uniess the conlext otherwise requires. a reference (o owning, scquiring or
disposing of a childcars centre incydes owning. acquiring or dispasing of

(@)

(®)

the freshold tithe 10, a leasehald inferest in or other right to occupy or ancther interest
in the childcans cenire premises andlos ttie %0 or a right 10 use the humiture, plant
equipment and other assets for the operafion of the childcare centre. or

an interest in an entity that owna the childcare centre.

and, lot the avoidance of doubt, acquiring includes buying and dispasing indudes selling

Conditional on Completion

(@)

(b)

This agraement (other than this cause 1.4 and dause 7) is conditional on Completion
as defined in the Share Sale Agreement occuring I that does not happen. this
agreement will terminate upon termination of the Share Sale Agreement

On tarmination of this agreemant under this clause 14, the parties will be under no
further obligation o each other and will have no further rights against each other
under this agreement excepl in respect of any breach of this agreement which
acourred before termination

Term

This agreament commences on the Commencement Date and continues In force until
terminated in accordance with clause 8

31

Chiidcare Centre Development Plan

Childcare Centre Development Plan

(@)

(b)

Genius Learning mwust provide to Mayfield for approval a Childcare Centre
Devatopment Plan for each calendar yeas one month before The commencement of
the calendar year except that the first Childcare Cantre Development Plan must cover
the period from the Commancement Date 10 31 December 2022 and must be
provided within 6 weeks from the Commencement Date  Genius Leaming may
provide 1o Mayfield for approval a Childcare Centre Development Plan for a calendar
year or the remaining period of a calendar year al any other ime if Genius Leamning
{acting reasonably) considers the existing Childcare Centre Development Plan for the
cabendar ks or Is ikely (0 be unproductive

Mayfield must not unreasonably withhold or delay its appeoval of a Childcare Centre

Devalopment Plan provided by Genius Leaming that satisfies Mayliekd's requirements
as set out in clause 3.9{d)

Iy ‘
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32

{c) Genius Learning must use its reasonable endeavours to (whether by itself or by
procuring ancther Genius Learning Entity to do so) identify develop and trade-up
Childcare Contres for sale to Mayfield in accordance with the Childcare Centre
Development Plan last approved by MaySeld and Genlus Leamning must keep
Mayfield reguiarly informed in writing of such endeavours and of progress made in
achieving the objectives set out in this clause 31(g)

(d) Mayfindd must keep Genlus Leaming regularly informed in wilting of Mayfield s
capacity to operate prefemed locations and other reasonable requirements for new
ehildcare contres and details of childcare centres thet Mayfield acquires or develops,
agrees of proposes to acquire of develop o Is offered to acquire or develop. and
Genius Learming must take this information into account in preparing a Childcare
Centre Development Plan

Performance standards

Each party must in exerciging its powers and perfonming its functions. duties and other
obligations under this dlause 3

(a) exercise reasonable care and skill, and due diligence and attention,
d) operate in a reasonable, safe and businessiike manoer

(c)  act faithiully and diligently.

(d)  ectin atimely way, and

(o) comply with all applicable Authorisations (including sy heid by any Genius Leaming
Entity). laws and industry standards

Incubator arrangements
Performance metrics
"

(@) the Annualised EBITDA for a Chidcare Centre at the end of a catendar month is at
leant $150 000,

(b) the daily average number of children enrollad al the Childeare Centre for that
calendar month and the previous two calendar months (1 the aggregate of the
numbes of children enrolled o the Chiidcare Centre each Business Day during those
three calendar months divided by the total number of those Business Days) is at least
75% of the maximum number of children approved 1o receive educalion andior care
at the Childcare Centre undes the service approval issued under section 48 of the
Education and Cary Services National Law for the Childcare Centre. and

{c) in the case of a Childcare Centre acquired after the Commencement Date. the
maxdmuem number of children approved 10 teceive education andior care ol the
Childcare Centre under the service approval issued undes section 48 of the Education
and Care Services National Law for the Childcare Centre at the end ol the calendar

month i at least 60

.-.l,)ri
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4.2

Genius Leamning may give Mayfied notice in writing that the Childcare Centre has satisfied
the above pedormance metrics at the end of that month provided that it does so as soon as
reasonably practicable after the end of the calendar month, together with reasonable details
of how the performance metrics have been satisfied together with any othes information
reasonably required by Mayfield relating fo such satisfaction (GL PM Notice) Mayfield must,
within 30 days of recedpt of the GL PM Notice. notify Genius Leaming In writing whether or not
it is satisfied (acting reasonably) that the above performance metrics have bean mat
(Mayfield PM Notice) If Mayfleld does not provide a Mayfleid PM Notice within the 30 day
period referred 1o in this clause 41 then Mayfield is deemed 1o have provided a Mayfield P
Confirmation

Sale agreament

(@) Genius Learning must ensure that before giving notice under dause 44 in celation to
a Childcare Centre or as soon as reasonably practicable after giving the notice, the
Childcare Centre premises are owned. leased or icensed, and the Childcare Centre
business s operated, by a wholly-owned subsidiary of Genius Leaming (Childcare
Centre Subsidiary) tha has not canied on any ofher business of operalions

(b)  Subject to this dlause #2. as soon as reasonably practicable after giving notice undar
clause 81 in relation to a Childcare Centre that has satisfied the perdormance metrics
sol out i dause 81 at the end of a calendar month and a Mayfield PM Confirmation
has been provided to Genius Learning (or deemed provided):

{1 Genius Leatning must prepare & drofl sale agreement undes which o of the
shases in the Chidcare Centre Subsidiary that operates the Childcare Centre
we agreed 1o be sold 1o Mayfield, and Mayfield agrees fo buy those shares in
the Childeare Centre Subaidiary, for consideration equal to 4 25 x the
Asirusslised EBITOA lor the Childcare Cerdra o the end of thel calendar
month and otherwise on the terms that are consistent with and in the form, or
subsiantially in the form of 10 the eflect. of the Pro Fotma Sale Agreemen.

(2) Genius Learming must provide the draft sale agreement to Mayfield and the
parties must work 1ogethar in good faith bo negotiate, amend and finalise the
sale agreement.

{3) Mayfieki must defiver to Genius Leaming a counterpart of the final sale
agreamant execuded by Mayfield, and

4) Ganss Laarning must defiver to Mayield a courterpart of the final sale
sqreement execified by each other party

(¢)  Inpreparing a draft sale agreement under clause S2(BT) for the sale of shares in a
Childcare Centre Subsidiary, Genlus Leaming must ensure that

(1] # any assets required for the operation of the Childcare Cantre Subsidiary's
Childcare Centre are owned by a Genius Learming Entity. provision Is made
for he assets bo be kransened o licensed (o, or otherwise able (0 be used
by, the Childcare Centre Subsidiary at completion of the sale. free from all

encumbrances or secuiily inberests; and

(2 il the Childcare Cenre Subsidiary has any material Babiitles refating 1o the
operation of another Childcare Centre or any olher business conducted by

m‘-h woge @

0 PiperAlderman
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(d)

(0]

another Genlus Leaming Entity, provision is made for the liabilities to be
satlsfied or otherwise discharged at or belare complotion of the sale of shares
under the sale agreement and otherwise excluded from the sals to Mayfield.

If after Genlus Leaming gives to Mayfield a notice under clause #1 in relation to a
Childcare Centre that has satisfied the performance metrics set out in clause §1 at
the end of a calendar month, Mayfield provides to Genius Learning a Mayfield PM
Notice that does not state Mayfield is satisfied the performance metrics have been
met of If Gendus Leamning and Mayheld are unable to agree on the tenma of a final
sale agreement for the shares in the Childcare Centre Subsiciary that oparates the
Childcare Centre within 20 Business Days from Genius Leaming praviding a draft of
the sabe agreament 1o MaySieid under this clause 42

{1 Mayfield will be deemed to have declined to soquire the Childcare Centre
Subsidiary {and the Childcare Cenire),

2 Garius Learning will be free (0 sail the Childcars Centre Subsiciary {or the
Childcare Centre) 1o aryons else; and

3 MCIigmreCenwawlﬂmselobeimdadhmaMolmmtmh
clause 14 and this agreement (Including clause §) will othersise cease to
apply V0 the Childcare Centre

If a sabe agresment entesed info by Gendus Learning and Mayfield in respect of 8
Childcare Centre Subsidiary that operates a Childcare Centre is subsequently
temminated bedore completion af the sale

{1) Geariss Leaming wil ba free 1o sefl the Childcare Cenlre Subsidiary (ov the
Chikdcare Centra) to arvyone else; and

2 the Childcare Contre will cease 1o be included in the definiSon of that lerm in
clause 171 and this agreement (Including clause §) will othenwise cease to
spply o the Childcae Centre

6. Right of first refusal

Genius

Learning agrees that it will not sell or agree 1o sell a childcare centre (whether of not

identified developed and traded-up for sale 1o Mayfield in accordance with an approved
Childcare Centre Davelopment Plan) 1o o third party (i ¢ a person other than Mayfield or a
related body corporate of Mayfleld or a Genbus Learning Entity) without first offerng to sell the
Childcare Contre 1o Mayficld

6. Co-oparation

The parties must work logether in good faith and provide reasonable assistance and
Information 1o each other as necessary for each party to carry out and comply with their

obligations under this agreemaent

:-\wt-i
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1. Confidentiality
1.1 Prohibition

1.2

Each party undertakes that it and its officers, employees and advisers and others to whom it
discloses the tarms of this agreemant. any transaction contemplated undes it oc any
information about the other party that it obtains from the other party or as a consequence of
the activilies under this agreement that is not in the public domain_ will nol disciose any of that
information except as permitted of otherwise provided undes this agreemend

Exceptions
information rmay be dscdosed

{a) 1o a person provided that knowledge of the information disclosed to the person ls
necessary for the purpose of negotiating. preparing, executing. perfonming,
undertaking, completing or enfercing this agreement or any Fansaction contemplated
undes this agreement and the person agrees nol to discloss the information except as
permitted or otherwise provided under This agreement,

b) uhnmwfmapuﬁhmwﬁﬁhawwpﬁcabhhwwmqﬁemeﬁofa
securities exchange or ko exercise o enforce its rights, perform s obligations or
defend any claim or proceading, under of in connection with this agreement provided
that aHl reasonabie skeps have been taken 1o Bmit, as far &3 reasonably possible. the
axtend of the disclosure; or

{c) by a party o the extent permitted in writing by the other party

81

a2

Terminatdon
Temmination date

(a) This agreement will terrinate on 31 December 2026 unless Genius | earning and
Mayfiedd agree in wiiting that the agreement continues aftes that date for another 5

years

(b) if the agreement continues. thereafler Genius Leaming o Mayfield may terminate this
agreement without reason by giving 1o the other at least 3 months written notice of
termination expiring on 31 Decembar 2031 o a later 31 December, in which case the
agreement will terminate on the expiration of the peried of notice.

Termination die to default of insolvency
W

(@) a party commits @ material beeach of this agreement and falls to remedy the breach
within 20 Business Days from receipt of a written notice of default from the other

party.
(B & party or any of s aficers is found guilly of haud or any indictable oflence,

(c) a court makes a disqualiication onder against a party due fo an act or omission by a
party of any of its officers under of in connection with this agreement.

. .
TS Mdoan sage 4
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BA

(d) a party goes into liquidation except for the purpose of solvent reconstruction or
amalgamation of the party, oc

(@) # controller is appointed in respect of any properly of a party pursuant to the
Corporations Act and the party does not issue a proceedng to discharge the
appointmant within 20 Business Days from the appointment or the party does issue
such a proceeding but the appointment is not subsequently discharged as a
CONSEQUENCE,

ummmmmaumhmmmamﬂmdwmm
mmmuwmumsa-asmumbcmammmdma
tesrnination  Tha parties agree that failure to perform an obligation by a particular time may
be remediad by performing the abligation aller that time

Effect of ermination

Termination of this agreement will not prefudice or otherwize affect any rights and obiigations
of the paries exprassed i this agreement lo survive termination of this agreerment. nor will i

prejudice or otherwize affect any right or remedy one party has against anather party in
respect of any breach of this agreemant before tesmination. but will terminate all other rights
and obligations of the parties under this agreement

Survival

This clause 8 and dauses ¥ and 8§ (except clause $42) survive termination of this agreemen

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

95

General
Governing law and jurisdiction

This agreement is govemned by the laws of Viclorda, Australia  The parties submit to the non-
excusive jurisdiction of the counts exercising jurisdiction there

Amendment
Thbmmmutayowbomwdudbymg\mm“omdbyumpmy
Waiver

A provision of this agreement or a right created under it may nol be waived excepl in wiiting
signed by the party granting the walver

Exercise of a right

A party may exercise a right at its discreion and separately or together with another right #a
party exercises a singhe right or only partially exercises a right then that party may sfil
exercise that right or any other right later  If a party fails to exercise a right or delays in
axercising a right, then that party may still exercise that right lates

Romedies cumulative

ThedghlumdrmthMWaremmommdMammd
the rights and remedies provided by law indapendantly of this agreement

“‘ 3 L “ : e ‘
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96  Nomarger

The rights and obligations of the parties will not merge on completion of any transaction undes
this agreement  They will survive the execution and delivery of any assignment or ather
document entered into for the puspose of implementing any transaction

9.7  Assignment

(a) This agreement is for the benefit of the parties and their successors and assigns The
parties and thelr successors and assigns are bound by this agreement

(d) A party may only assign its rights undes this agreement after & oblains the written
consent of each other party

98 Severance

if any provision of this agreement Is void voidable, uneniorceable. illegal. prohibited or
otherwise invalid in # jurisdiction_ in that jurisdiction the provision must be read down to the
extent # can be 1o save it but if # cannot be saved by reading it down words must be severed
ﬁomth.mﬁnh!h.mfl"wctnbohml!bl.nllulm-!}lmlouvlaih.whﬁl
provision must be severed That wifl not invalidate the remaining provisions of this agreemaent
nor affect the validity or enforceabdity of that provision in any othes jurisdiction where i is not
irvalid

9.9  Counterparts

mmmmﬂdsagmhmormmmnsmddmumm
together constitute one inshrument

9.10 Consent or approval

Subject to an axpress provision in this agreement 8 party may In its absolute discretion give
Iuwmﬁovapwovalomdﬁuuﬂyamconﬁonm,uﬂﬂﬂdhscomulmawm|

9.11  Entire agresment

This agreement constitutes the entite agreement of the parties in respect of the subject matter
of this agreement and supersedes all prior discussions, undertakings and agreements

9.12  Further assurances
Each party must, al ts own expense, do everything reasonably necessary to give effect to this
agreement and the transactions contemplated by it including without lntation the execution
of dacuments

9.1 Relationship
Nothing In this agreement constitutes the redationship of principal and agent or partners as

between any of the parties, and no party has any authority 1o bind the other legally or
equitably except as expreasly staled in thia agreement.

19T M des e W
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9.14 Notices

Apanymwuwammmmdmmmwbyhmmﬂvm‘m-pﬂdm
or email to another party al the recipient party's address details set out at the beginning of this

imﬂmhmm“yuummmyMnhﬂmﬂhdmmM
In wiiting A notics ls deemed o be received

(a) lmmmm.ammdmimaamowuubmsw
pm, otherwise on the next Business Day

() # sant by pre-paid post within the sume country. on the second Business Day after
the date of pesting, or If sent by pre-pald airmad from an address in a country 1o an
address in another couritry on the fifth Business Day after the dale of posting, os

(c} # sent by emall, at the time of sending if on a Business Day at or before 5 30 pm,
offiarwise on the nest Business Dy, provided that the sender does nol receive o

subsequent ‘out of office’ reply or similar response or a system administrator
message stating that the email did not reach its intended recipient
915 Warranties of authority
Each party represents and warams 10 each othes party that
(a)  has the power to enter into and perform this agreement.

(b) this agreement is valid and binding on ¥ and enforceable against X in accordance with
its torms subject Yo the payment ol sny necessary document of ransaction duty. the

svailability of any equitable remedies and 1o lews affecting creditors” rights gencrally.
(c) 2 benefits by executing this agreement, and

(d) it is able to pay Rs debis 83 and when they fall due and no action has been taken
towards winding it up or placing il in bankruptcy

9.16 Costs

Each party must beur s own costs in relation to the negotistion ptoparslion of exacution of
this agresment

Exscuted as an agreement

mWamy'mmammeMwamwmm
aqreement may be executed by hend or by ekeciromc means (e Q by an efectronc copy of a
p«m'augnmumgaﬂmdbywwmhﬂdmowmbwm-cmdm
doamnf)mdapoporaohcmwpydmodoamrsooucuhdmevwdum

Executed by Genlus Learning Pty Lid by

Damren Misquitta
Sole director and sole company secredary

PR M vage 9
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Executed by Mayfield Childcare Limited by

Signature il divector Signature o directar/oompany saecretary
Mame of diractar Mame of drectaricompany secretary
E s oy 0 &rm
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Schedule 1 - Childcare Centres

Childcare Centres with service spprovel

Childcare Centre

' Maximum number of children
| approved to receive educetion andior

care at the Childcare Centre under the

. service approval issued under section
* 48 ol the Education and Care Services
. National Law for the Childcare Centre

35 Walsh Avenue. Castie Hill New South Wales. 2154 94
21 Harris Swreat. Pyrmont, New South Wales, 2009 110
Level 1. 55 Pyomont Briige Road Pyrmonl, New : 68
South Wales, 2009 (North Centre)

Lavel 1, 65 Pyrmont Bridge Road Pyrmont, New 73
South Wales, 2009 (South Centre)

Westheld Chermside Shopping Centre, Lavel 3, Shop | 234
33 Grn Gympie Road and Hamilion Roasd. Chermeside
Queensiand, 4032

206 Tramway Parade, Beaumars, Victorla, 3193 46
Level 1595 Coflins Street. Melboume, Victorie. 3000 171
139 Bay Road, Sandringham. Vicioria, 3191 60
17A Anderson Road, Farrestfield, Wealem Austalla, 196
6058

94 Candigan Sweet Granville, Queensiand, 4650 77
157 Rockingham Road, Hamitton HHll, Westem 99
Australia, 6163

98 Fifteenth Street, Home Hill, Queensland, 4806 &0
B-10 Short Street. Nerang Queensiand, 4211 s
386 Momison Road, Swan View, Western Australla, B4
6056

855 Ruthven Street. Kgamneys Sering, Queensland. | 130

4350

Ly %
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)
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Schedule 2 — Pro Forma Sale Agreement

39149995 21.docx page 103



Share sale agreement o PiperAlderman

Incihanr agrasrmant o PiperAlderman
e L ageesert °~'m
Share sale agreement
This W

A et 5 an
el mesee Genius Learming Poy L ABN 60 313 51 AD4 (Sedler)
Adirean:  reert]
Emas prmart]
Altarion.  froer]
arel Mayteid Childcare Limited ABIN 53 604 SN0 390 (Buyer)

Mebtrens  (wmarl]

£ mad ]

Abevtson. (o]
Recitals

A T fiber hoktn & of B maumd nhares in e Company

8 The Seller has agreed 1 e 15 the Buyer Snd he Buyer ham agrmed 10 buy Fom e Seler
of S Safers Shaes b P Company an he s cortared © Tvs oo

Operative provisions

1. Detintions and interpretation
1.1 Defmstions

1 P agreeren, wiest he corles! ofwrase mQuies
Anewcauy aerend {te moar

(7] £ 7 vansacion condsreiited Dy T agreement s fest arnounced 10 ALK belors
T date Of P agrooment. hat date. and

[ (] Ny aher cate. e date of B agrosenl,

Arsvasined EET0A moane Te eamings betore rierest, G depesCaion i amorisabon
of Bw Chidcare Business Oper ol 15 Te exder! maatiey) 10 P aperation of Pe Chiacae
Faminess T Po pevicd) of ) caende Sordts onding ON e Conssderston Reforence Date B
Soteenwied I gecordance Wit he £BITDA Schedde and the Osidcre Busivess Accounirg
GAAR nuitiphed by 4

Auhorsation reaw i) respec 1) 3 person 2 oot Mok, proval P
athorty or exerngion of Dy of sl 3 Goveswmon] Agorcy hmi] by s DOrson of necestry
% Cary on e persce's bussess s smenily coeraled of 10 Ui OF OO B PRTESES 08
By umed Of occugmed by T peeson,

ASK e Anl SG S0 tes NG Fvesireds Comermon

M Wi cage M
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by U banry B ime =t o 'rperAHervnan

“Are OO0 gt om
ASX magrs AN Lyvted ARN G8 (D) €M 551 or Tw feanoal matet apeesied Gy ASK
Lt ABN 98 008 €24 691, s e contend reque
ASX isting Fides mwars T I8ing ruis maoe Dy ASK B de Wil 33WENG eriftes B
OF rETOVINg erilies o, ASKs ofca iad 0 P activiles o condluct of entities Tt e
IhsN On Pl st
Paminmns Doy mesirn & Sy which & ot 3 Saladay, Sunday. hers holdey O putic holetay

7] i Pe purpose of MrvBng of MOEVNG 3 tiice N Tw Gy atare e obce ©
recebeel

(1] for af ofwr purpenes. & To oy of Mstourme ARDaRa

Basiness Fremimes mears e’ aodreas of teleeart Chicare Contre]

Thmsnerss Mool dn ©er

1) tw Coporae Recon ad

i the agrewrerty, Geesdh dOUUeET LOORL SOCOITE UG QEROEW 2 S0k
- egmieny, DusTein Ceethciten Qocevente Of W spAOyER SCORdR
OFApOTVINNCE, WA TDorts EEfry PecoRs 20vd GOr FiteTatn sy
retatiryg 9 e CPidtare Busress efuch fo (rdas Bunress Opormy martesn
(7 haan 1 A poREsESEON OF COPRUL eGaeBent of B e of med used By Pe
hokfrg Wrage o (orTAre s o Be riormason

Fiayes (roup FReRy T

-] P Bper

[_] & rotute oy corgrrie of tw T or

®wy B erary Cormoied By 8oy of e Bupry ara @ rotate] toaden SRR e

*'-ﬂ““amnunutlictdml

Fhpyer Lo ouigs Mamdey < w @

[y # Bope Goap Erity @

[} & oo OF ervgiyee OF & Baper Civug Erdly

feyw Share moss B odng  sare 0 Pe Bues

Buyer Share VWAP twtans atih reagect ¥ By Buyer s © be amed 1D 5 felor

e s agrvervend e volene sesPlnd seeeage Puarked (re of Gl pad By o

vt B perod of X vadeeg diyt endes) on he Fang dsy belore Pe Arvorcemend Duee

“WMH“G*HMMMIMM

por Thager Share Tt @ 1 be pand o provaied 1 hotders of Buyer Thave afes e B gt

Qe o es erfiiormenty Qibe ket 10 e erSerrert oo sfter T Wart of T pered

2] She recoed date ¥ Fetaton 1D the enoendrt ocoun before he fuyer Shases o ssund D
P Taler O T T T

N v e sour
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WLty ayrmear o Piper Alderman

e WD s o**—

Ehayer Warnsety sseare 8 wertanty sel ol w sefuduie 2

Childcare Puminess Mo Te husiess of prowng (W0 sde @on o Gae servces S
opECang @ CNAGGEY CRFEe gPal redated actelten Bl 8 camed an by Pe Ohiocars Busiress
Cperutcy ot e Busewes Precuses.

b e Dunarwess Accorting AN Swarm Aond dar e gty soepled & Courdey
pevopie acseing Accountng Blandars ALTH (8 ( saser ) AASE 117 (sqees

Childcars Business Operston mears Me oporaicr of Fm (PeoCas faseess I 9o e
g Doy eiltv Deras L aareng o he Company (a8 neevant|

Chilicare Provide: Aggrowal maanm § rowies REIowal nmed unde secion 19 of tw
Facanon arvd Carn Servoss Walordl | s

Chiddcare Servacs ADDIoval eI 3 %ereie Soirosd s e ooy 88 of Te
AR o Cae Servcen Naonal L Se a6 Yansiurie] @F offarsthe gt

Clatm mears 3 Tved congtar] demand FEOsRRg OF 0w S Nowsoeres 3T !
afelw arfer @ ol resest o LASFR OF & haal o conlrgent

Comparry medara [raert 5.8 ramo st ACIATCO! Clcars Cante Tadaesary]
Compemuation Sake Shaves has Tw medrng ghen i e © W
c——“mdunum-umu—mns
( ongleetion (late (reans

w9 Busress Days 38 Pe G of T agverent o

on 1 thasrmns Dy afer P comBtoms set ouf B (et 3 1 Rve Doan st oF safved
hichever o L @ st giter dale an 00 Tale gnd B [haper =y sgron
Consiteration b Tw meareyg given B ciese 2 ).

{ onsither alson Meferonce Dute mears [Faet de of @ Gy of P (derdta ran™ 6
rempwet OF efach Arvussmes (56 T0A 8 deterune]

 orpes e Mec ords e
B rwndon of sweSrgs OF reschiiors of meeten @ e Corgany
T e of meetigs OF eckdorn o dreckn of P Corrgsany

P raguies Of mwrvtsn of T Comgary. and

3 B ® E

P regmter of cBcanciiens o Pe Comgary

rmgerdues of T matera OF Mok el KB Bw oadeg v age o oo st of he
rfcrmater

Comporaons Acl maas Pe Covpomstions Ad J00Y (O

LT e roe B8
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INCULIE Agieme o PiperAlderman

Ly e agreere OM“—

(esCiosre | otier mears To witer m T Sefer 10 Tw Buyes 36id and deversd B T
By Dfere mxpculion of Pes agreemant B copy of which | &0l Gud 1 schedde X

Due Diligence Documment meuns & docsenent Jeoviied by of on befall of the Seler D e
Fasper betamer, e Corsider st fefrerce Duls aned sacution o B ageement in
connecion wEh T Chdicae Busrwss Opesanoe of B sake of Sate Thares o T
agreeyrent. tewry) Tose SoCEmrty Bsted I scheduls 4

Dty mmars any stamg Bamsacion of regelalion Ay, of Mk dhange, sngosed By any
Goweenment Agency OF any rtiwesl, ine perally, e @ Oer SO PEUSHS B fespect
of @y sch ty O il charge

EBTDA Schedhile moas schmkde 3 d Tw houbaor Agresrsert 88 corpietnd B8 Te
{ruicwe Busews

§ ucation and [ are Services National | aw maars ¢ Cheocars Bussess Camet on &
Vetora rment Faucabon and Care Sarvees MNatond Law (VCona) as Pat wem 6 defredcd
wrge e [ducation aret Care Servoss Nabiorsl (sw Act 2010 (Vic), f Chideare Buamess
e on D O prndcion eyt CIrespOndneg egrtaton I il prsdchon]
Encuenirance Means & mongEge, ge. (Redge e condional sae agreerant. e of
e parchane agreemend ODADR FeSINCTON 3 1 Yamin ute of [ORMEANET. eIt
REOrAratee 10 3 NGt of IOl Penon. v O Corpeny Fisres! of aolter person o
ey sesty rleres! OF eNCUOIINCS I reapoct of progeTy Ceated O ST 1D BecEe
pertersarce of a0 chégEion eecept 0 8 o O reservaion of e arming i B crdeary
courve of tasarens

Fairty [escioned) mearn Gscomes P sloee detal ard crfen! 1 endlie 3 rbdsdrale
pernon © ety P rafee and wcoge of the At Tl Ml cwand oF (rOSTERINCE

T inance Docusmesit M [orsirt et

Corvernmment Agency =wam i oveTverl. goveryrert JmCy aimreyaive s
B & ron goverrenertsl reguiatory Dody department comemson ashalty buna of
agenicy @ My ursdchon wheler e s wate, OCE o eriorat

Garsus Education maans Oerdus Educaton Ply L9 ABN 30 853 437 105,

Gursus P meara Corsn 7 My L ABN 59 €36 100 429,

G P Nolice has B Swarary) Jrven 10 Tl tem B Pe INCUDaRs AQraament.

GBY mmarn goods Sr) Services Ui OF il vl 200 e levied of Ipowed N Acsirais
wnter e GST Lw & o0wrwiie R 3 SUgoly

GST Act mun A s Tas Syateen (Goods and Servoes Tax) Act 1589 (08,
GSY Law has e sarw reareng 8 = B 05T A

Inciaton Agreesnent mearn BSOS ayvernert Sed [t Gfiel tetgoen e Seder
v Po T

W Licwnce Agrversed moars a0 Toolocd i prpty kooren gy eenert Detwnen Cernus B
P Cormgary and the Dy prapesed by B lefer wnder ahieh Cecas & gats W he

WV o e sage
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IR tars Ayt ° PtperAldennan

B el OMM

Company 3 kcence D togry @ use rtslochssl progerty of Canks IP o subetandally the
e e g8 Pe rilsiecha Operty hoeres greement butwosn o Seder Cerns
Educaton and Bw Buyer Pl was erlerod 1l © CoNPecion et he Buyers scopusson of
sharss In Coran Educaton escept £ clauss 4 Y oF ha? agroemers.

Leeve Entlements mears Te erilererts Of Pe argiopees of Te Compary @ Comgsdon
10 10 Mrvice ave ) VLS BEvE BN DEOONEFCET SN Indve UNdEr S relevant
ageermerts sles Of SewDs 0 The euierd Ul Trese ordlirenh cdlale D D
arggmend B P Chedcwo fusrwss and @ deterewed an o tass of Te oot
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PO U Y ORIy OF O ename
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P
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brcuhiasne agree=ant o Prper Alderman

s QU s wman o:wm-—

Super i mears 3 perareation W D which Me COompany makem SO arriaton
corartatiorn tor emgioyees of he Compary.

t-mmum.m“mmnmuum
which 0 assessed Mvied Imgomad oF cobacieg by any Covermment Agency and ncudes any
roerest, fine, penaly. charge. fee o Other amourt smposed by Wakse an, o7 1 respect of, any
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Yax Liabeivty mears 2 Sabiity tor Tax
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freoutemr ag et

Nhee Dl sgraasnass °~rl&r—
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Incnatns egrsese o

Sp— °-n-n—-

Sale and purchase of Sale Shares

Saiw and pas o hane
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o trateng B Duysr Shares an ASX & suspersied Som quotsion B more Tan &
ot of S darys ard e mapensEn & &8 W & maeral adverse change » e
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e OMM—

Mty Mabemen ANONC DOSIMON (erirmance profits  DaNes, Duseness
cpmgtons o prospects of e Buyer.

(4] e Duyer & framoved om e ofcial st of ASK o announces 3 Fiention 1o
regues! oV of ASX announces £5 reention 10 remove e Buyer Yo the
offcaai sl

(s 1 2 msover o0 & made under chupter § of B Caporations Ad & & of Pe
st Buyer Shures nol owned by e bidder. B bidders voling powes R
P By InCreases 10 2 Bast S0% and. I Bwe b i syt D Oelesting
oovibcrs &8 Sefleding Condirs are satnfed of The txd B declared e
ror M unaisfed) VReEirg CONOSONS.

) 8 wchome of Erangemend betwoen Te Buyer g s sharshokiers endes part
4 9 of T Corporations Ad for Bw merper of e luyer o anclhet ertlly OF
e scqpisition of o of P Bsued Puye Shares or e whole or 3 subsnSal
ot of e tusenens of progesty of B Buyer by ancther oty 8 aporoves by
o sharshckders of Tw Duyet undes section 6144 KaxK) o Te Caporadions
Ak,

9 P Buyer Guposes. or agrees D dapose. of The whoke o & substantisl pan of
o temirens a0 assety

. P voleg power of 3 person 1 e Buyor (Ofer Pan T Seller or @y
associte of Pw Seler) Poreanos Som 0% o telow o mare han 0%, o

(4] e maue of any Duyer Shares © e Sefler (or &5 nomines) woulll resll 2
contraverhon of e ASX Lising Ruses, e Coporations At Or amy 0fher lbw
offwr than n connischion wilh the Resciomn.

P Seler may slect by willen notice 10 T Buyer 10 B pasd I Money any
Cormiterston oihereise 1D b8 satsfied Dy B naue of Buys' Shares. 0 whech cane
ummnuumu-uﬁdwum“uu
pand n monery Netead of Bsurg Duyer Shares 0 satie?y Dyt of T amourt

m 1 ary Cormeseration & nol pusd s 5 monihe fom Bw Comgeton Date. B Buyer
st pay 1 T Soler on Gears Fisrest on e amourd 1 be pad charged at e
ratw of B% Do @nnum om Te Compietion Date ©© e date The amowt B paed and
acorutng Som day D Gy

(-] WiNca vy ciimae 2 4] T Buyer musl, 1 P exiont apphcabie

m propare of prooae pregarason o Te Aolice of resting espRanatary
staterveryt ardd prosy Ketn Ky e Qeneral reeing of Te Buyer 10 ek e
sarehoidens spoiOvas referred 10 B Cliuse 2 4D) D cormatation o e
Rl

@1 procure @ Pdepenourt expii RGO &8 recomrreeded By ASIC urvier ASIC
Fngdatony Gude 74 ko Te DUIDose Of seesrg T ADDFOVE required unoe!
o 7 of the tabie @ sechion 011 of the Corporaiors Act or hat » egeed ©
ek a0y O SpErOval

m Comvene @ hokd The QEFeral MEUang a5 SO0N &% Meancnatly prachcabees and
Bl B T reetng e esclutiors e 10 alln hone apErovan. and
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rew ue sy e o*m

) evmare Tl ) 3y pubEC FNOUNCAMYENT JD0LE TR TANSACONS Conerpiated
toy thes agronment 3nd i P MEeGngG mulenai 3 prominent atement &
ncuted 1 the affect Tt all drecions of the Buyer ftend 10 vote the Buyer
Sharws Doy o Pwir asscciaies hokd o Seves of @8 resolubons, g
uranemously recorrend thal fuyer shareholtins who e entife 1D vote On
e reschtions, aitso voie O favosr of ham ared Be diwcions do ot make vy
e statmment B Pe conrary ellec!

3. Condsions for Completion
31 Condtom

Tra partes have NO obigabon 10 compiets e wale and purchans of Tw Sale Shares el
Cause 3 uiess each of he Rlioeg condilions is Mt o wisved

Sonduton
@) # Bw Camgany & nol the el under e Proparty Ledse he  Buyer ) Seler
artes 1 T Property Lease and Pa Company ages 0 sting
© w nowalion of assigrve d of P Proparty Lease © P
Company N 3 form S on eems masonably saisfaciony 1
Duyer and Seler

®) € regared I ensure Tt Dere & M0 Mateniyl breach of De sy awd Seler
Froperty Loase P conaend of e andion of Bw Dusress
Prermnes D P change of cor@ubownenng of he Company
@@ 10 T sl and Fanatw of e Sae Shares under e
ywecvert B olXaned

fe) 1 B Comgany & not B leeand grader he Property Lesse dnd  Buyer and Seler
P prormmmes ased Uit T Propeny Lease e mongaged
@] e morigagee s (oneend B requeed © e he
MONgEgE B Riyect 1D the Company's mieres! & tenant. sach
OMGEQES CONMENTS I arBng 10 Te ASset of novaion of
e et s Aghts an Danelits e the Propedty Laase 10 e
Company

————————————————————————————————————————————————————— ———

) § P Company does rot hckd & Childcare Proveser Acomoval & Buyst and Seler
Créacare Service Apgroval 10 provede chid] eCucsbon wd care
yervecss A Mo Dumness Prormees and sih an erovi 8
reqired ©© be held by the Comgany © snsure hare 5 n0
treach of e Educaton ard Care Sarvices Naboral Law. 9w
Chiccare Provaer Apgrows of Chiocam Servee ACoroval &
cttared (INchaing, 0 T case of e Chikicare Senace
Approval, Oy wy of Yansier Som he Seiler © e Company o
e Buryer o tho apgeoval Of P reevant Coverremeed

Agrecy)

©) Al oher matenal COPBENES. SDETONVES W1 wavers @ eiation (D By ared Saler
Pw saie and varster of e Sale Shares o ssue of Buyer
Shares under, Q7 ary 0wy Farsaction conlemplaied Dy, Tus
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Y OM*_
Sondton Rypdtowsvs
treach of @y e Statfory PSiumenl COMMELAON agreRTRet
Mecang Te Company me obtamed
32 Feesonabie seleavouss

7] £ach party Fund ute 0% FsRcnEie encnavours 1 eraure Tt a of e condtions sl
o 1 ciaume ) § @re ewd @8 SO0 28 reasorably (rachoatde vl each paty mual
henp e oy partes viormed of avy crtumstance winch may resd B 3 condion
ol bewyg saSmfen

B} Wi Wmitng Be generaiily of caune 3 230 Wi By QUarEiEe. Cash oF peupernty
Fan been proveded 1 the ndiord of the Busness Premses an 2 bond @F secrlly O
ofwrase 1 voore priormance of T lemard s abigasonns udel e Property Lease.
Tw Buyer must

1)} 0 e come of 8 Quarardse DFOVEOR i PepRBcHrent QL S0 an recuared by
he landord @ SSow he aasing Guaraniee 10 D8 Gncharged

(7] ® the cane of cash oF propexty provided Dy o on balalf of e Coampary. By
o Mo Seler an avout el 10 e cash O vitoe of T propesty. and

o 0 e cane of cash of propenty (eowded Dy of on behall of AOfey person,
provade reglacernend Cash of property a8 fegured by Pe andord 1D Sow De
wuisiivg canh of propety 10 08 nhured D T person

A conamion st Oull ;8 cliane 3 1y D wasved. and My ondy DO waved, b weling by e
party O Pt eniiDed 10 witve the condton @6 wwedhiod n Te second column of Tw Gt
n Gase 3 1 opooste Pt condBon A party el 1D waive & condiion may @O Ivils
ahmokse decrilion Wiver of & condiion Gy 8 Dty That & not met due 10 2 treach of e
Fpvemend. Ao walves @y HP OF romedy T [arty wexad have in resgec] of Tut breach

Termunaton

(7 € e condBons se! ol B clase 3 1 e Aol e O walved In cordance wilh s
311 on o tedore The end of 12D days Fom e dute of s agrearment @ such ol
Aute &t T Seber and Te Buyey Moy syee Ten Po ageorent atomaticaly
ferrnates @GN Nt Late

™ On ormination of hes agreoment under B ciause 3 4. T parties Wil DO under D
wmbmnnamnmmmmw
under B agresrrant excepd B respedt of ey Dreach of By agreement which
cotued Delore lerreralon of unds cause 12

41

Conduct pending Completion
Condhact of Cheidcare Business o the orinary course

The Sefer et ensare Tat rom e Cormederaton Rofsrence Date urfll Competion Te
Chictcary B, Opr aicr
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p—— °-Aﬂ-—

L) e QN P Chitdcare Bosness i 3 rorral propes @) oficient marres and
marages Bnd conduchs the Ohidcars Buasmess 5 e ondnary @0 Wil coune,
conEmient Wil past prachce

[ 1] s 3 roasorutie endedvours 10 esere the gooowi of the Childcam Busness

© marturs he maels § cars @ wses i conNecion with Te Childcars Buseress o
el Wreels

[ ] Cartams Ouf reGATY @d muatderance 1D The assers @ Cwrn OF USES 1 CONTECIOn Wil
Tw (radcare Busress B a0coriance wih Qood COMTTEYCAS (rackos and standards
of musrdenance and 2 requernd o @y Pekevard lease BooeiCe OF Offer agreerment

" does nol I coreecton Wil he Chidosre fRaeress
(L] WDy 3y TN DENSOD [ & SErEY ManageETent poson
(7] erTgAly @y few PEVRon Aol 1 8 senk raanagerend poulon eccepd D

roglace 3N SEEIDYe w0 NS e oF Whoss engioyrsent Pan bee
visle®y terrrundiet
(s} lerrrarate Mw anpioymeod of avy empioms ofes T R Caune.
) mutorady change e Wwimes of erployrent of sy ooy of
(-] PrOovESe aYy Do ) ) egioyee

o agwe 1000 90, Gier T © o ordnary courss of CaTNg an e Chikicars
e,

()] n P case of e Comgaany onfy. does not
(A} nosase, redare OF GEherwise aPar B BSeesd equly OF Dan Capts of
securBes Of o tights Convirttie o eguily OF Dan capsal OF grant @y
ophors B the ssus of seciribey,
(v} Bugy bk anvy O @ seOsme.
R Gectare OF (ury 3 Gviders] OF Offwer Gt RSN

(] ke vy 3teraton 10 T COFRIREION G offwer COPml MRl AocaTent of
the Comgasty

(-] tevabe avy O B seets OF

[ ] ertsy o any EEncengl OB UPusul Tans SOnN efech relates ) OF adversely
afech e Company

& agren 1o 00 W,

) Som Bw date of T agrestwed reguiarty commuln W the (e an P maener of
coratuct of the Chisdcare Busirens. )
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T 00D ag et OMM--

o™ ersures Ml he Jnssty § OaNs O WSS ¥ CONPECHGN with Tw Childcare Business &
) 1 accordancs W pruderd busness praciion:

encept o B purpone of Yarsleng he Chidcare Tusrwss o e Company K any reiited
annetn. RabiBes eonpiyyeess Of OpSraBOn) of saoept for OF a8 3 conmaguence of ety i o
pertoemarce of Tes aeerwnt F 2y TINSAChon Meguired o permiliag urae o
Cortempiaes by Bah agreermnd of @nchpt Y0 e telert otherwss espravaly oproved iy the
Bayer

42  Conct of Buys Group Entity's business in the crdiney course
Thee Buiyer mamt snmse it Bom te date e Buyer fecenvaes e OL PM Nolice unsl
Commploton of it 28 of the Duyer Shares reoured 10 e msued 10 B Soller (07 RS o)
el B apeorment e s, whichever & e esch Buyer Group Eraty
(7] carvem ON i Duneess 0 2 rormal groped and efioent e and mariges ad
coreiacts £ tumaness Iy T oranary and uaal course. cormalont weh ael prachce,
(] s afl regaceuie ancBawours D [reserve i QUoKWE
© mastars e assets il OATH OF UNES © CONNECION Wit 15 nfaness 3 MOOma s
] caves ouf repars @l marderance 10 e amets § onns OF uses I COVecion o
ity Dusdns O Accondance wif Qoo GIMTIRErCial pracice and slandands of
rrardenianty 4 as reguEed Uedon 'y rekreant ane Boenc OF offwr gyPesent
] aoen not
Ll nowase, reduce OF Olferwess afer B s SQuily OF IUN i of
SeCTes OF cihes Aghin convertiie 1D SQulty OF OGN Capit OF grant any
opfions r e maas of seciaes,
(7] Sty bach any Of s seCurTies.
(o )] Geiare O [y 3 Gadend o cfey Salrtulion
) e arvy aleration 1o e Corsitution o offwr constiucnal doourrents of &
Buyer Groag Eray
1Y) revalue a0y of B assetn. O
(1] arier into vy abnorel O Wrususl Maesackon which fekites 1D O adversety
afects & Buyer Ceoug Lottty
o apew O & 00,
(] erares thal Tw sssets £ ours OF uses B coPnacion wilh it unirass e reued N
FCCONTIANCD WP (U0ee Dunrens [Tl e
except 107 OF 38 3 ConaegUence O @iy INlD OF Derfommance of TS agreemient OF ANy
mm-wwamnmmamon
evind Ofwran oy ZCroes] By Tw Seder
NITUN, TR g W
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e OMW

&  Completion
9 v and place

Comgietion must Wle placs af the office of frmert aodrens of Saler & B Geyers] on B
Compietion Diats staring & 11 00 am o sach o place or e 4s T [arles My agres

3  Actioms

At he place and e Aeguired e Crempietion (07 o S0 euarier B

ta}

&

(&)

# recpirnd urador chnate 3 100, B Seler mua! delver 10 e Buryer 3 cogy of he
novaiion of assigreee t of the Property | sy TR han toen sscuted by each party
& o beliore Comgieton,

P Seber mast Golver 1o e Duyer 3 copy of eoch conaenl, AOEFOVE, sEPa oF O
Aocuamont refared 10 1 any of casses 3 W) and (2) a0 (99 Tl Tas been asacutid,
aogted of ottared 3 @ before Completion. Qe afth 3 cerificate dated Te Gate
of Corngston signed try o on babalf of e Selier corifing Pt the conalionm
sebernd 15 in Tome Claine ave been med exong! o any s by T Buyer 8
Wiy

f required under chaase ) 10, Tw Seller must osive 10 e By & copy OF Te
Cradcare Proveier AQproval of Chiidcare Servce Apgroval Tt hun bewsi abitared &
o belore Cornghalaon

e Soler must detver 10 B Buyer & a8 e Buysr may dredt In respect of the Sale
Srares B Buyer has agreed 1D buy Pom Pe Seler under diuse 2 1

4] 3 Covifcate W The fiale Shares logethe e & rdrureed of Farale 0
gt gtk b (ave K S payrd of avy EORCAIe Ody) Of e S
Shares o tovors oF e uyer duly exetufied Dy e rogiered hokde of e

[#4] & rolegne arvd GRChaDe 1 8 KM ard On e reasonatly sassbactony 1 the
manmnanwanunumm
Pe hoide of Pe Encustrance Iclaing. o lmtalion, 3 copy OF & Guly
corrphied s spned ranceng change staterment © resped) @ e dncharge
of ach rogmiered securly Viasesl over of In reapect of any of e Sae
Shares, trom T relevard secred (arty togeTer Wil 2 cecend Bom B
wummmuwdum
charge staeemerd of ofher wrtlen confirmason Thal e finanong change
taberret] han Toon 00 wih Tw Aegerar, and

(0 any sppwovel, consird waver ROBCE OF OB (OCUMENT Which B ReCBYSNy
K the Buyer 1 otdmn good Ble 10 P Sale Sharms and Pee Fanafor © Do
uryer

he Seder rust duver 1 P Buyer 8w Corporate Recoeds and amy e Businens
Fescords rguisied by e Buyer © b0 Gebvered D € and give e Buylr pessesson
@ 2w remareng Busrwss Focords @y Bavng Tern # Te Burnes Fremees )
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R OMM

m P Sefler munt gve Te Buyr posseasion of 30 Aeys, Securlly Cards, Umer Narmes
passcodes andir sccens cooes 0 e Businoss Premmes o any anset o Syalem
owted @ used by e Corspany (y Wavang een af e Buuress Pramaes)

w e Sode must roase

11 P rewgREion of rermovil 38 dvecis of P Compary of sach peracn who &
Feedistety betore Cornpletion a drecky of B Cormpany ascegl r J of
Fome persors D tahe oo enexialedy st Cormpleton

[r] e resgnation of feimovil aa secretary of e Company of each pemon sho
& srmdately before Complelon & secretary of Be Company. ©© ke effect
Frwnedutedy ey Comgseson

[ ] P Seler sual procum & reokmon of T drecions of e Company 1 DO pussed
which provides &y e aporoval of e Taralers of e Sl Shams M Buyer has
agrowd I tuy ander e 7 1 (sutyec! 10 e payeet of ay aggdcatie Auty)
e regatiuton of P ¥aralers 1 e Coreany’'s regests of merten Bw
cancoliation of e exsting cariicates 1 resped of e Sae Stares and Be e of
reew Coriicates 0 Te fame of B Buyer

® Po Seter mus! [rocse 3 reschition of e Greckrs of Pw Comgany 10 5e paweed
whach proveoes for

{1 e apportrmest 2 dveckr of e Company of W 0 ) of B deecion of Pe
Butywr romrased by M Buyer 10 be 8 deector of the Campary, sutyect ©© he
proponed drechy wgreng 3 Corsent I wilng o ! s drector of e
Cosrgany. and

(7] e apportmeet a8 secreiary of Be Conpaey of 3 secretary of B Buyes
scrmanaied Oy B Buyer 10 be B secretary of he Company. mttyect 0 Te
proposed secTelary SignEyg 3 consent I anting 1 <t A secwary of Te
Company. and

(1} e Seder st ey B e Buyer 2 counterpant of the I Licence Agreement and, @
mgared Oy To Doy e Translions Serices Agresmecd. executed Dy sach party
s (han Te Buye

(1] e Buiyer mast

1) Acltver B e Sebor 3 ooy Of sach corment. apgroval WY & offer
Aceyrnend refuered © O cieae 3 10) Pt hao been eseculod, adopied &
cttaned 2 OF bafore Comgietor, gt wiih 3 cariificate dated Tw dte of
Comgieton sigrest by O an behal of 9w Buyer cerifying Tl e condtors
refisrred © 0 hose Causes have been met excepd BY avy waived Dy e
Seller 0 seting

(2] geltvr D T Saer a courderpan of e IP Licence Agressnent arx) € e
Payer regaren e Sl 10 dever a1 estCulied countemant of Pe
Transtionsl Servces Agoenerd. 3 counterpant of the Translional Service
Agesment execubes Oy e Buyes

(0] pay 1o e Sefer P amount refened ©© B ciuse 2 4 on acoourt of Be
Cormuorsdon s
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T AR e v °-m

()] wac 1D he Teder o) B nomInes) seeh of Tw Buyer Bhares rofered 1 ©
s 2 4 a5 may b9 ssued on scoount of e Commduration

83  mterdependency

M“'MIMIUMDN.“MIM
by & party in conailonal on and Mot Liken a8 ore Uil @ Twnge regaed d Completon ae
e

(N ]

Post Compistion

Power of sllormey

(7] The Sofer appoits he Buyer and each agerd of the Buyer Ruhormed in wiling as T
Eomery hom Completion uiil the Saie Shares tought by P Buyer from Bw Sesier
arver P apeerment Fv rogriered O e name of Te oy

[ ] Ths Seder Ay Te ANy wevera®; an tehal of an m e narw of e
Sater © 0 every?yg Tl the Buyer reanonatdy cormdnny shousd be done foflowerg
Coemgieten 10

(L] rarmter Tose Sake SParen

@) ewmwome ary Qi atached 1 ose Sake Shares. and

(s 1 ot 3 ersterment of Te Soller B renpect of hose Sae Shares
®) The Sefer Geclarss Tl

(L] a0 orl of an alorney el P power O alioerey & vald

@ A ges P powss of Moy 07 viksilie corsieration. and

) e power of oy & Erevacabie bom e date of Tus agreemant
W@ The Sster musl iy an 80 TNt 8N Elmey G0es under thes powss of atiomey

[} AR altomey May speciically G0 an S0 undi hes powet of aSomery which resulls i 4
tatnedl 1D Te By

()] The fuayer indervien Pe Selet aganst af LaDites rouned Dy Te Soli i 3 el
of arvy 10 of 30 Sioeney of the Buyss auhonsod under it powes of altcemey

Wt b CapIne! CoTtraation

Ewnedatety st Corgietion Pe Buyer must provde e Compary eth suMced woiig
capital by wry of gf of WEACPon Sx ondnary sharss i T Company 10 enslre e e
Comparsy i stte 1 contrue 10 aperate the Chilscare Busioss and Doy B detis 3 ard
when My fl O

Change of naeve of Company

Upon temenaton of Pe ¥ Licerce Agreernent. the Buyer must do ol ngs necessary
mum“nu—-mmumnﬂmﬂn
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ey GO0 ap e °mau-—

DUsess Aame AP Narme OF Tade mank ey part of e Feslechus jroperty Soermed
e B P Licernce Agroasment OF avy Seviar name and i prowend by e Seflor (whech
st et he unTeRscnatly wilteld of delaged)

AdCoss md s Teon

The Buyer must et of procurs the reterton of Bw Business Recor® elverad 1o Pe
B of o al e Busness Prermes 3t Comglenon in scrordance wilh duuse 5 2 & 7
yoaars om e dale of Compietion. anvd after Completion. T Buyer musl. Sfer redsanatiee
nofice Yo The Setey ahow T Sellet 5 03 representaiives GG NOPME business houn
reasorabie access 3 The Salers expense 1D FEORC 30 obtan copies Of any of Ths material,
except kor arvy prvesged 0GE aos, sokefy & The purpone of ssamiing Te Seller
mmumummnlund-:—-mm
or controied enfibes 18 TequESd by law 1D groduce or fie of kY The puIpose of Imsessing.
VTG, SXErCIing O DG any night or hatiity of Te Seller any of i feiated Dodies
corporaie o confroied eofies ameng Oue © OF B conmaclion wih the conduct of the
Chiocare Pustness Defors Cormgienon styect 10 The Seller and 0 feievart? eprnuriaiives
axpcuting ar detvering 1D e Byl 3 fon ERCIOMET @V NON e Underiakng I eegect of
e rapeciad aF copwed maturid B8 A Meascralie form av] O remonabie teens accegtatie 10
the Huyer

1

12

13

Foreign resident CGT withhoiding and CGT roil-over relief
Henudeny e e o

For e papones of sechion 14-225(1) of Schedie 1 of T 1053 Tas Act, Te Seller Oeciares
il o e panod Som he dite of axecuion of Tin agreenent o B and ncludng
Completon, I and wil 09 an Aualraian ressient (Wt e meaning of T 1057 Tos Act)
Deciarstion that e Sale Shares ate not swlivec! Acstialian resl (woperty mlerests

For e purposes of secion 4-229C0) O Bcheduie 1 of T 1550 Tas Act B Seder deciares
Pt e peniod Som Ne die of evecdion of e ayeement W 1D 20d FCRaing
Comgieton, e Sae Shares

[F ] e memborship Toeresis twilhen Pe meanng of e 1987 T Adt) and

o) e A0l ndired! Ausiratur tedl POEESTy INEvests (withen T meareg Drovaed by
mxciion 85525 of the 1957 Tas ACD

COT rolh-over relind
(7 1] To e eviord hat

(1] P Sofer (hooses D obtam 1o Over st 1o utxvson 124 M of T
Tz Act v retgion 10 &3 dpoaal of Pw Sale Shares, and

[#4) sechon 104-7H2 anphes © he Seller 0 lalion ©© e Tansecions
Cortarngiate] by Tun sl

e Buyer agrees © jondly choose D olitas 106 Over pursaant 1D subdveson 126-M of
e Tax v eleton 0 B accpasiion of e Sae Share
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R OMM

o The Buyss agrees fof 10 Make B SCtion pursuant © section 12¢-THK4) of Te Tae
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N Ut Nas been recowered by Tw Congsay n respect of 11 s sutyec
mafler (net of lustiien Mosrred n making St recovery)

The Buyer may not make & Claim under cause 10 1 10 T exderd B Seller has Ly
comgennated Twe Comgany lor the stsect matier of St Claem

The Seflar i sot Sabie for aryy Tax Clain, and the Buyer must Aot beng sy Tas Clam
L e exterd Bl

m

5]

o

L

he Clasm ares Som, o & nosaned 28 2 result of the Company ey §
conscdaing group ©F Tax purposes On &F afer Complstion,

P T P sutyect of e Clarn woulkd not e artsen bat for amy Shange 0
he accourtng policy o practoe of B Comgury or anolher Buyd Grow
Entity afer Compistion

M Tax B sutyect of e Claen arimes ol of B comsation of alleraion of e
mmm«wwmuammmm
o

e T P wityect of P Clan B 6w © changos 0 Tas Law wilhy
rEtroRgeC Sve 006t 2N

W) Pepment of Tax Lishiites

Whare 2 Clewn under e Tas Indemwly Svolves an Sk payenend of Tax Oy the Comgany

(w e parSen musl procure Tul e Cormgany paye T colevand Tz by the duse on
which P Tas 1 guestion & due 1 be pasd B e relevant Tacalion Aullerty. a0
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JrizntiwTs el ° HpurAHerrnan

Thse WD ageee °mh

[ ] where § & agreed by e parlos OF determened Tl Te Seler & Kl 1 Take &
rgnent under e Tas indomnity 0 resgect of e amourd of Tas referved o 0
s Y0 1, Tw Seler rust pay e avoond agreed of determerad © Pe Buper witen
90 Busiress Days of i agreomend of Geterraration of Te Sellers kaeity

Despite anything dise contaned i T agreeminrt. § Me Buysr 15 D@0 3 IMount undes e
Tas Inceendty and the GITUNTELIRCS ghNG 1 10 Tl endiliement @0 constiigs 3 treach of
Sefer Wartarty, Sy compenaaton uncer Ts agreement ® respect of Pl Dreach of Seler
Warranty due © Bw Buyer wit Oe reduted by that smount

Tax mveshipalsns

o @y reguest Ky piemetion SeesB)aion oF S5t n made by any Government Agency 0
smpoct of Tax of ary Buyer Geowg Enillly relating 10 a period biflore Completion whech may
renlt W kabiity of e Seller udes e Tan Inderndy, T Buyer musl 35 500N & FeasoRatly
prachcatie nolity T Sele I welivy) ad provide T Sefles ol P noics and oopies of any
arfien mtenals recorved B Sy @ e Seler nolifes Tw Buyer Pl De Sefer wechs 1
partcigate B By Such regues! 107 PEETERon. IvEsigaton OF st Te Buyes must

[ ] rmull el he Gefler o af frmes wivhe 2y vestigaton of Jul i being conducied
e ehange wy teevart rdrmation wilh e Seler e

™ ervnavos © gve T Seler Mo noht 5 be rogresErted X #Ty FAreew  meeting o
netio negutiabon tetween sy Ofcet of ampioyee of e Cormmssones of Taxson
W Ot retpvart COneerrrent Agercy) @l d repremrtative of Te fuyer el we
vy mmse @y Nom B PloPTGiOnN egquesied FrvesSzEnon oF suds

Tan returns

The Buyer must srsure Tt overy tite retum o sespect of Tan of any Buyer Qrowp sty
st 1D & panod before Compision which may resull 0 heuity Of B Seller under e Tan
PRy Tt 8 0006 28w Comgieton

(") i Gofvered © M Seler & Tl af e § reasonatile penod tefors Put redun o
aigea

W eCoporaes ary Manraie aTesaITents he Geter regasts pror 1D agement

”n

"

Warranties by Buyer
e Warranties

0 conmsderation of the Seler agreeng 10 sl ther Saie Shares ©© e Buyer B part
corsaderstion X¥ Te s of Buyer Shares 10 The Seller B acC0rdance i T sgreement,
e Buyw regresents and wamanes D Pw Seler Pal cach of Pe Buyer Wamites o e
snrate ard aol misieatng o Pw date of T sgreement #0d il Do Tue. acowrate ara Aot
rdoackng 3 Compledon

St ate TR esertations
Fach d he Bups Warardes & © 00 bodled &8 3 Separale represertation avd saraty 0

respect of each sliternest mate &l the nterpretation of vy statermen made © Aot 10 be
rentncing Oy refesence B OF rdorence o any offar staterment

NOTU 8 v sage 7

IO S8 ey |
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IuTianr agTeeent

e waw Sgreeart

13

"4

The Buys acknowisdpes Tat he Buysr Naranties are rade 0 De Seler Wi e rtecton
of madutg T Sslor 1D order N0 Ten agreemey! o] Tal the Seler has ertered Fin P
agpeemind on e basis ol and 0 rance 08, T Bayer Watartes

1 betors Compivtion e Buyer becomes awary of ary facl, sxalior of coTurmstance whech B,
@ n reymorably Baly 1D be. confrary 1D or consistent with any of T Bunyar Watares of
fum had & hawy O 6 reasonatdy ety 1 Fave, @ maien advrne sfoc on T [ ofBatds,
or viue of e Buysr Oeowp Frilies 38 4 whols wnce e Corsdaraton Relessnce Date. e
By mast a8 so0n a8 teamcnalily praciicatie Al bocomrg ware of hat Lact, mater or
Crrurelardy Qhve nofice 1 Te Seler 0 efling desoing Tl fact =ufter OF (FUPWErTo B
reasoratie Gelal 50 38 10 enulie B Buyer 1 Constey e Naluee and Mpact of I

N hnowsedge of Droach

As @t Tw cule of esscution of s agreerment. Dw Seler had Aot aready formaiated an
Fiardon 1 make § Clam b o A corrmciion wilh & Dresach of Buser Warrarty and T Sefer
Pt (D achad wnomiedge o @vy tacl mather @ crounstance whech woukd consiiute @ beaach
of Dunyer Warranty

12.  Confidentiaiity
129 Prohititon
Each party undefiabes Bl € and s ofcors, smipiDyess and advison ol 0wy B whom ¢
anciomes T lores of T agreament. 30y FINSachon contempiated onae I oF any
riorTaton sbhout T sale of e S Shares Bl & a0l N e pubic doman, wil AL Gacione
vy Of Dhat wiormaion escegt 88 peereSed OF offwrwiss (roveded under e agreement
122 Escoplions
POt My Do A Komed
» © 3 poron provided that oowtedps of T FAXTRESON sconed 10 Po person n
recessary 107 Tw purpose of PeQUBEING. PRpETY. Svscutng, perioreng,
WIErRTY, COMERINNG OF erdr g WS AROTIERT OF any Saaacton conterngiabon
wder the agroement arv) Pe person ayees Aot I daciose T rlormuton paceot o
prrTitiee] OF offeratis RO e T SgRerTir Y
[ ] i B recesasry 1O & party W0 comply with any appicEDio liw of requTement of &
SSOuibes exchange O 1D evertme OF erdiorce @s AgAI. Deion= in CLAQABONS OF
Gefre] arvy ClaEm OF proceedng, IO OF 1 CONNECION with Tis agresrent provided
Tt o reanonatse shoon Pave Loen tlaben 19 Yl et us resmonally possse The
et of e OSCUmAe
[14] Oy & ety 0 8 [ress reloase OF Pubic annoancement Jhout B agreemant O Sy
FEnsachon under § wilh the pproval Of e O Dartens a8 1D T em. contert ared
v of T rvieane OF Evouncement which must ot DR ursascralty wErPes)
o
L Lo R Y age 20
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HoLhem.e myrwemarnt ° P‘-prr Alderman

Thaw iam ag e OMM—.

(L4 iy 2 party 1o e evient portoiied B weling by T s paries

13. Defaun
V1 Termumation

(7] € P Duyer o e Geler (Gefditing party) conenis 3 matenal bresch of Tis
gy merrant belre Comgiobon has octured and

m § P beesch & capabie of remedy Lails © rermesdy T reach v pay b0 the
ot (ron detaiting party) any masonatie costs moured Dy Te ron-
Oofatting party resulling om T Dreech eiie § Busiess Days S0m reces(
of 3 wriltlen nobon of Getaul Bhom B non-Selaulirg party edlying Pe
trnach and any wxch ooats &

(7)) @ P temach m (ol capetie of sy tals W Py 10 B non - detalng party
Fednndi CoMpansatcn iy e non - Sotaung pamy's L oss reauitng from
T Dreach wilte § Busress Dovys om recogt of & wiilien nofice of defmr
o Tae non delading maty 1pech ey he treach and aegensaion

T agpearcwert sy B termunatod errvedutely by Te ron detauling party greng @
ermen notce of eemenaton 1S Te detaitng party

on The partes agree Pull tTalee B perfoem an clgAion Gy & Dariouler e & 2 bresch
caguatin o rermedy

i The partes agres hut
1] 8 treach of Cisse S 2 Dy 8 party 8 & maiersl tesach cameniiad Oy e party,

@ & traach of 3 Sefler Furdenantsl Waranty & & Sutenal braach comesiiedg by
Pw Seler arvd

(4] & brecach o 4 Duyer Funcaemests Waraty s 3 raleral bresch comerited by
" By

132 FMect of Wenmsnation
Temvenaton of P agreaemvent unoes Bes class 1] will 0T pregatics OF ohareme afect any
g and AsGason of Bw partes sdxeoss! I T agivemont 10 v reaton of Te
agreernary. Al wil 8 pregutce OF ofwrame sfect vy NG & remedy ofe purty Nas Sganel
anoer party M respect of sery teeach of ha agroomant Sefore lermnaion, Tl i Seeminagte
al ot NPy aed oligEBons of Me Darbes Wi P ag ey
1) Survivsl
The cuuss 13 srd clauses 0, 12 and 34 (excapt %6 13) mrvive dermanaion of Tis sgreement
194  Dwlerral of Completion
Alwrw

= Compistion doms N0l so0r o0 e Comgioion Date dus 19 8 party conwmiting &
migend treach of e ayvemert

L P v |
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INTUNRETTY A ImeTens ° P&perAldrrn\.ln

ey ae s OMM’I-

() o Setaulyy) party morenes e beesch § @ renedes he treach and pays © he
non-detading (arty #ny reasoratle cosly iNcurTed By Mo ron delimdng pany
remuihng from e trsach of s B P non detauliig party reasonats
commpersation for T non Gefauling (sarty's Loms resaftng bom e (reach) wiltw 5
s Days o recegt o T non ot alies) Darty's srSen notce of dulat
wnder Amae 13 14a) @ sxh onger penod as he non - defasleyg party slows] and

) e remaEns &y OUNTIVIeG ACTors regured D B pertormed by T Dartes @
Cornplsar unow Gauso 9,

Mone JCR0NS Ml DR ORRrTed an ihe ne! Busmesn ODay 3% he defaulirg party
radresses e rsach & Pe e place and Ime of day wpeciied i or ofhereme agreed 0
Stooidance with clause 3 1

14. General
141 Governing lew s parsdiction

Thes agressnant @5 governod by Pus leen o Vickrma, Avsraiia  The partes sutend 1D B fon
eachmve prmdchon of T cout emtOsrg Ariadchon Peee

M2 Ameniment
Thes agreeenant ey ondy be @vwnded Dy written smendment aascuted Dy each party
M3 Wever

A provison o e agreemnt OF 2 nght created undor § may ol 5o waived aatagl in Wi
g by T ety granding e wamver

44  Exercise of a vigw
A party Mgy esorcie 3 il M 8 GaCowion vl SepIvately OF QeTw wih another nght o
ety earCIeS B gl NgN OF Orvy Daritaly exercises & ngPE. Ten Bt party may o8
menerme Tl A OF Mrvy Oer NPT lalsw § & Pty Rale 1D eearCEe 3 AN OF Gelays
esroneng 2 Mght. Ten Tt party may W evercme Bl ngid Lt

145 Remedes cunmulative

The rights and reesedios rowded I8 fus agreerment e Cumulsiive wilf and rof exclusive of
P ity e fermeds (roveled by lew maeperdendly of the g eement

M6 Corlensng indenwstios

Fach naeTnly B TR apremment &

(=] 2 confirueng obAGation desgite any seflermerd of accousrd OF T Ocouroncs of any
oy Thrg 20wl remairs @ Bl foroe and ofiet! ol 3l Money oweng conlifgendly o
ofwrwise el Be ndenyily has been pasd 0 At

) & akionag separate and depordest hom Be dher ctdgatons of e paes, and

[ <] wrveves enraamon of T agroenwet

WETETUE M s e 3

LSRN sre
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INzulenl ayr e ° HpcrAlderman

e mn 0D agvere OMW

wr

"

nwn

“ua

“u

"

R 8 not necessary I0F & party 1D INOY @Dane & Maks Piyment Defors wrirming a ngie of
oty corferrod Dy P agreerert

NO e ger
The nghts and cligaions of Pe partes will Aol meepe ON Cormpieton of any WEESSCTON W

s apworrect  Thery will survive P eeecuion #d debvery of any asssgvrent o oPes
docLeerd erdered 1o M0 T arpose of Ergeementing Ay I arsacton

Arssygranerd

(> Thes agrearmert 5 &y Tw ewefl of T partes rd] Per SUCCEsson o) asugs  The
parten and thet suctessars @d assgm @e hound by T agreene s

[ 1] A party may Qrly ansagn By g unoss e agresment after § obtave P attfien
coreit of each offer party

Sevranco

¥ vy proveson oF Ty agreenen i voi! voulatie urerdorcoatie Begal, rohiisied or
ciferwtss evald 1 3 frsscion. ” Tl JEnECon Te IToson M be fad down 9 Te
axiend 8 can b 1o v § bt 8 8 carnot Do saved Oy ieadng 8 down, words et be aevesed
from B peovision 1D (e extend Mey G DE 10 sive £ Ol € Tt s Talle B sive & e ahole
Oroviescn maat b wnered  Tha wl Aol et e remareng provmiorn O e Sgreesmers
A3 afied! B vakaly &r enforcsatelily of Tl Drovesion I ey ool junsdction ahere O B 6ol
v

1 urrtetparts

Thee aartees mary erecuts Mo ayeemen! I S0 OF MOre COUPSSMNS and a8 counteparty
together corathuse one nstmuTent

Comsent or apewowal

Sutgect © an exgren (sovecn B T agreererd. 3 DETy May N G 0ackuls NCTROR Jve
& consert OF apeeoval condiorally OF unconaBonally. OF wtNToAd i Coroent OF appROva

£ 1ty agroesment

Thes agrows=el cormilutes e eritre agreemiond G e Dares B neaced? of Bw wlpec? ol
OF Pes Jreemrt and upersedes M Dred SSOUSSIONS SRINGE ] areeTenis

Furthan assurances
Each party susd. o 3 oan sxpense. 0 sverylling rasonady necessary B give efiec! © e

avement avd B aresctons condenpiited Dy 1 rckadng sihou tston Pe gssculion
ol Gocirveeds

Meiatwambag

NG i Pan ageemend cormdfutes e cotorai of poncpal s sgend of parrens as
tetwon any of B partes. and A party has any auhanty 1 bind e o egully OF
ity Erterd a8 espreay stated © Py agreerreny

MCTTH_ 8 e e B

LR P csae M
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Thas sem s om

M1 Notes

A party muay send & H0Bcs © COnMECion wilh e sgreamend Dy hand Osbvery, pre-gusd pont
ar ==l © arofMe= party 3 e recpeen! Dy 5 203ess et 30! OF 2 Te Degrvng of P
At OF B Such ofw wary an The Mopent [Ty Mgy have Gt noSed e seraling party
naing A nobite i Seemed 10 be recetved

n

o

s Dy hivrwd Qelivery. o B S OF delbvary # on @ Bumrvess Doy of o before 5 20
P, ofwrwee G e ren? Busewss Oy

I serd by pre-gad Dost wllen he aavw courlry, ON The secored anirsss Day ofte
Tw date OF posiing. o § sentd Dy (re-paed armad Nom an address I & coudy 1D an
axidress I anoften country OR P B Pusirmen Dy 38 T Aate of posaing oF

€ sort by sl ot e it of sendeyg € on 2 Business Day 2 or before § 30 pmy
oifverasse ON Te nex! fusneas Day, provided il Pe sendes doos Bt ieceie 2
atmeguent ‘ouf of ofce Tegly 0F S MESOERSO OF 3 Syntern eiearesty ator
PreTEEON KNG P the ermad e ot reach B nfeneied opesnt

41 Winrantion of suthorty

Each pary regresents and wamanss 1D each offwr party That

m
o)

Q

]

417 Cosm

i ham e pOwe (D arfier 1D Bnd perionm B soreeTnent.

P ayesevert 5 vl @0 badeyg on § andd erdorcedties agarel @ ) aoordance wSh
% terms Sutyect 10 e paymed of avy NeosRsary JOCUvend OF Tarsacton duly, Te

avatatiity of avy eqatatse rormedes and 1 e Sflectry) Crediony agPs genes aly

1 barofiy by exacuting Pes agreerveed and

8 s alse 10 pay I dobis 28 arvd whon Tey Sl due. 70 MO action has been Gaken
wards windeyg & up of o @ i barkrupicy

Each party must bear @3 own (osds 8 relaton 10 P Regoaton (FaparESon OF esscuter of
the agwormert

S48 Daaty

The e rast pary

(]

any dooumesd OF Tansaciion Uy That & pandiie I\ Pespect of

(1)] vy Egnrved OF warnien of anets OF msurngiion of kabites Of O releieg
B fw Chiicare Buseess (10 O By the Company pnor 10 OF B conmechion wilh
wsacLton o his agreersrt OF anry tarsacton under O conterypiated By Pu
agreomenct, @y agrenmort relating 15 any such assgrevert OF Tarader OF ary
cffes SArsaChon W I Conmechion ath O cortaerpiated by such an
HFvertent

@ e agycemet &

me i
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Insuteata sgrew=ment

e wan ag e

O Piper Alderman

o Prper Alderman

M any Yarsscton unoer of conterplaned by B agreement. and

vy ieresl. e Denalty of ol amound Impossd dos B e fEkse © Day arry Such
docurmert Of Yarsaction (fy on Sme o o

In s e 14 S, docurment of Iarsacion dully means duly, e, vy @ oPer Caege
rnposed ty 4 Covernement Agency i resgect of 3 dooumen] O ransaction dreclly o
ndivectly afecting ownershp of @y propecdty O Ceating o dechargny Nghts I respect of
a0y property & @ & Samsier ledsd, Mrigage, CUNDS OF O SECLITy Nlerest acduinilion of
an immeest 1 an endity Pt owes propeity. dacharge of 8 lease of morigags, OF regisiration of
a Tarwier leame securty nieresl or dacharge

wn a8t

A arvenats pagabia 10 & 0ty under s agresmend (o Pan an amourd e GS 1
payatse B e Gty o B ciane 34 19) fave been caouiaten Wit regard ©
Os7

W e whose oF army part of Sy wuch aound B B conssder aion §F 4 teadde wEply
o atech the ROpHAY party 5 katse B pay GET, e wgphry party may Owge e
paarty bt 0 pary by e tasabie WOty Weter T apwererd ard Nl party mast
DAy B WECHW) DTy ConOaTerily W e Syt of Tl STUt an 30atona
anourt egual 19 e GRT payable 0 nesped of Pe Lacalie wppy cacusted o he
s Tusl T viaue of Te tavale SUEEEy B T MOt (ayatie b the Seatie weofy
exchating any GS1

The recowery o corscsration 0 &7y Saabis swipely made Under T ageemen &

ftyec! D he wEgiyig Darty wang B Pw party Satde 1 (ay 100 e Unatie sy &
e ewoice B reagec of e wpphy

Arvy reference 1 8 COS OF Sxpenne Noured DY 3 Pty ) WS Sgreenment emchaie
@y ot of 5T formeng part o Tw retevart cost O espenae when BT Dy Be
Pty 107 which B Darty Ca0 Cln 2 e e craoe

© roerasineman

——

‘-‘NG.

39149995_21.docx

page 137



Share sale agreement ° PiperAlderman

incubet mgsservent ° Piper Alkderman
— OMM
£ ascutend #n a0 agreeTent

ayvernect o ary Faument ameadng o lermeating e agesmont o referned B) = s
agreoment may be svecided By Aand or Dy slectone means (0 g by an eector copy o @
PErSOn § Sprafse ey wlaed by or on Decal of e person & an eecrone (OPy o e
SociaTenl) el 4 Dagey @ secione. copy OF P SD0UTER Y 80 Aeecuded el Do 80 vk a2 a0

Signature of Greciesoie Jewcly @) ok Sagranure o SFeCIITONETY MO

Nare of WecEr ule NecsT avd sole Narne of Grecion'company wocetan”

Sigrustue o deechor Sagnatise of drecioscormpany secrelary”

Name of arecis Narme of recionconmparnry tecetary”

‘et wfechover B PUOOSCaDe

W0 amee e ¥

T race
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Imalismn wgimeeent o WPBFAHQ'T“A“

IRay OED ageestenc OMM

Schedule | - Seller Warranties

1"

12

1)

22

(Tithe) The Seler & Tw aschde B and benelice owess of, 3nd has T powes and
capacity B el arel banaler (arvd o Corgleton wil e seliey and Eansfening) 1 e Buyer
il leal arvt bereficist Mo W0, @nd a) Gl AgAE. B0 and nderesl 0 e 1D, e Sale Shares §
Fam agrewisd 10 v 10 T Buyer LUrder e agresment Yee of any EACuUmirarce sutyect anly
2 e apgrovil and megetiation of e rarafer by ihe Comgany, ard e siie 0 Yarsdor of
Pama Sate SPares urder T agreermont il fol violate OF WIQON & Cre eegiive ngit of &
sharshoider of Tw Cornpary oF treach: any G datuiory Peiramert, (oPsstion oF
et spobcabie 1D O UNaAng OR Me Commpary ard does ool /eQue T 00FOVE
oot O wisivex of vy pEson. vy D\an e Doaro of descion of Pe Conysany

Shuwe capital) Al Compietion. B orfy tued shares. opiians 10 sutwcrte &Y vhires o
oty searBes of Te Corpary will be Te S Shares heid by Pe Sater. Pose shavs Wil
e em Do o Encurrances aa ARy D

(N ot exssies) THars s ND ST (F COMMYTEn ) EombCs Wk Whseh e
Company han agread D Bsus of grart oy shares, aporn & ol Aeturiies of ihe Compuany
& 10 Duay DaCh. redenm) OF CANCol Ay sand securties of Pe Conguny G oihveratse Ncsase
faduce of abec By moued Share Capty OF Agts convenilie I share capitsl oF 1D credte By
Ernestrance over Do uraasued share capitsl of e Cavgany

(aoag srurhare

(Status) The Comgany

& B sctur ety GesCrileed O T s

®) 5Oy rgalenad o Krtmed under B lees of P pace of 5 gRiEion O farmaton
e orod e 1D e Seregaleed

) hae Gl coporate power

® B Quaified o own s RODety @S ssets

- B Quaified 10 CaTy OR B husress an § now does. and

()] s Qonib very@s) necessary 10 3D bunewns efldly 0 aach Leadcion I afech §
T ON Dusinesa

(N oltwr entition ) TP Company

o has Mo SOsSNes o coniioied enffies

[ ] B ol & eiviter OF OF e Noither ©F Derwefices owrer o sy Shares OF O capRa I
By toxly cOpCr e (whereves POOrTer sted|

[ ] s ACk & reevier of o B holoer oF herafics cener of Uity OF OV PRROSES D
Tust parven i ot virtae syrchosle cougesaien socety | amsocatan. sCheite
whevslry pocgle OFetute Toney o Moty s e D xgare Aghts 10 henets

WOTEN VD e page W

AT 18 s soge
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Imciatieni a)secwrd o P’eperAldernun

Thar e agewes ° Pipar Aisderman

rokiced by e scheme (ahether Te NGNTE @ SONE (FosDechve OF Coremgen! @
whaer Twy are enfiorcoatie or of) oF ofher eniity O urencorporatod body

[ = Aot 3 party 10 a0y Agreement under which & & bound B pay & share of profls o
G v

(™) m R Te respormie endly manages Pusies fagresertative oOF custodien of vy
Dody corgoraie Vsl partneraiip jord venhae pyndciie ooopeealive. SOty
HAOOMOON e whisesty Deopie coniitate MOfey OF Maneys worh 1B SO
Mghis I Denefts peoduced By e schame (wPuhied e ngiils e achal (oapective
o contngent and wheiher Pwy o enforoaatie of noll) & ofher efmity oF
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Schedule 7 — Material Contracts

The information contained in this schedule reflect facts and circumstances current or existing at the
date of this agreement which may change after that date.

1.

Finance Documents

At the date of this agreement, Genius Learning is party to number of finance documents, none
which have agreed to be assigned to or assumed by the Company apart from the contracts
referred to in schedule 3 of the Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement

Finance Leases

At the date of this agreement, there are finance leases to which Genius Learning is a party
including those noted in schedule 4 of the Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement, none
which have agreed to be assigned to or assumed by the Company apart from the contracts
referred to in schedule 3 of the Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement

Intellectual Property Licences

IP Licence Agreement to be entered into at or before Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale
Completion

Property Leases?

Lease dated 27 October 2021 between Misquitta Childcare Property Pty Ltd as trustee for the
Misquitta Childcare Property Trust, Genius Learning and Darren Misquitta in respect of 27
Ross Street, Allenstown, Queensland, 4700

Lease between Cracker Holdings Pty Ltd as trustee for the Pritchard Family Trust and Genius
Learning in respect of 83 Loridan Drive, Brinsmead, Queensland, 4870

Lease dated 20 November 2020 between Sandhurst Trustees Limited as custodian for the
Arena REIT No. 1, Genius Learning, DK Andaras Pty Ltd and Darren Misquitta in respect of
1A Bernard Street, Cheltenham, Victoria, 3192

Lease dated 27 October 2021 between Misquitta Childcare Property Pty Ltd as trustee for the
Misquitta Childcare Property Trust, Genius Learning and Darren Misquitta in respect of 2-4
Evergreen Street, Clifton Beach, Queensland, 4879

Lease dated 6 November 2019 between S & N Super Fund Pty Ltd, Genius (Clyde) Pty Ltd
and DK Andaras Pty Ltd in respect of Level 1, 800 Berwick Cranbourne Road, Clyde North,
Victoria, 3978

Lease dated 15 May 2014 between Sandhurst Trustees Limited as custodian for the Arena
REIT No. 1 and Maddingley Corporation Pty Ltd as trustee for the Maddingley Unit Trust in
respect of 16-18 Harry Vallence Drive, Maddingley, Victoria, 3340, as assigned and/or varied
by deed of assignment and variation of lease dated 24 September 2014 and deeds of

3 |t is intended that the rights and benefits under the leases will be assigned to the Company at Pool 1 Childcare
Business Sale Completion
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variation of lease dated 6 December 2019 and 1 October 2020 and as proposed to be
replaced by surrender and new lease deed between Misquitta Childcare Property Pty Ltd as
trustee for the Misquitta Childcare Property Trust, Genius Learning, the Company and Asia
Property AU 1 Pty Ltd in the form of the draft surrender and new lease deed provided as a
Due Diligence Document

Lease dated 2 November 2020 between Sandhurst Trustees Limited as custodian for the
Arena REIT No. 1, Genius Learning, DK Andaras Pty Ltd and Darren Misquitta in respect of 3-
5 Bathurst Street, Mooroolbark, Victoria, 3138

Lease between Sandhurst Trustees Limited as custodian for the Arena REIT No. 1, Genius
Leaning, DK Andaras Pty Ltd and Darren Misquitta in respect of 653-661 Norman Road,
Rockhampton, Queensland, 4701

Lease dated 15 October 2021 between The Trust Company Limited as custodian of Charter
Hall Social Infrastructure REIT, Charter Social Infrastructure Limited as responsible entity of
Charter Hall Social Infrastructure REIT, Genius Learning and Darren Misquitta in respect of
205 Onkaparinga Valley Road, Oakbank, South Australia, 5243

Lease dated 27 October 2021 between Misquitta Childcare Property Pty Ltd as trustee for the
Misquitta Childcare Property Trust, Genius Learning and Darren Misquitta in respect of 115-
119 Shute Harbour Road, Cannonvale, Queensland, 4802

Lease dated 2 November 2020 between Sandhurst Trustees Limited as custodian for the
Arena REIT No. 1, Genius Learning, DK Andaras Pty Ltd and Darren Misquitta in respect of 5-
7 Sunderland Court, Seaford, Victoria, 3198

Lease dated 27 October 2021 between Misquitta Childcare Property Pty Ltd as trustee for the
Misquitta Childcare Property Trust, Genius Learning and Darren Misquitta in respect of 9
Brose Street, White Rock, Queensland, 4868

Lease between Norris Road Holdings Pty Ltd and Whiz Kids Child Care Pty Ltd in respect of
2-6 Fretwell Road, White Rock, Queensland, 4686 as assigned and/or varied by assignment
of lease between Whiz Kids Child Care Pty Ltd and Genius Learning and deed of consent and
assignment of lease between Whiz Kids Childcare Pty Ltd, Genius Learning, MD Investments
(NQ) Pty Ltd and Darren Misquitta

Lease dated 27 October 2021 between Misquitta Childcare Property Pty Ltd as trustee for the
Misquitta Childcare Property Trust, Genius Learning and Darren Misquitta in respect of 353
Stuart Drive, Wulguru, Queensland, 4811

5. Other Material Contacts

Pool 1 Childcare Business Sale Agreement

Transitional Services Agreement to be entered into at or before Pool 1 Childcare Business
Sale Completion
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Schedule 8 — Buyer Warranties

1. Share capital

1.1 (Existing share capital) Apart from the Buyer Shares issued under the Capital Raising, the
only issued shares, options to subscribe for shares or other securities of the Buyer are
32,418,965 fully paid Buyer Shares.

1.2 (Capital Raising) No more than 9,500,000 Buyer Shares have been or will be issued under
the Capital Raising.

1.3 (Valid issue) Each Buyer Share to be issued under this agreement will be validly issued and
on issue will be fully paid and free from all Encumbrances other than any created by the
holder of the Buyer Share.

1.4 (No breach) The execution, delivery or performance of this agreement or the Incubator
Agreement or the issue of any Buyer Shares under, or any other transaction contemplated by,
this agreement or the Incubator Agreement or under or in consequence of the Capital Raising
will not result in a breach of any law, statutory instrument, constitution, agreement or rule or
other requirement of a securities exchange applicable to or binding on the Buyer or another
Buyer Group Entity.

1.6 (No other issues) There is no agreement or commitment in existence under which the Buyer
has agreed to issue or grant any shares, options to subscribe for shares or other securities of
the Buyer or to buy-back, redeem or cancel any issued securities of the Buyer or otherwise
increase, reduce or alter its issued equity or loan capital or securities or other rights
convertible into equity or loan capital or to create any encumbrance over the unissued share
capital of the Buyer, except:

(a) under this agreement or the Incubator Agreement;
(b) under the terms of the existing issued securities of the Buyer; or
(c) under or in consequence of the Capital Raising.

2. Group structure

21 (Status) The Buyer:
(a) is accurately described in this agreement;

(b) is duly registered or formed under the laws of the place of its registration or formation
and is not liable to be deregistered;

(c) has full corporate power;

(d) is qualified to own its property and assets;

(e) is qualified to carry on its business as it now does; and

f) has done everything necessary to do business lawfully in each jurisdiction in which it

carries on business.
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22 (No other entities) The Buyer:

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

has no subsidiaries or controlled entities;

is not a member of or the holder or beneficial owner of any shares or other capital in
any body corporate (wherever incorporated);

is not a member of or the holder or beneficial owner of units or other interests in a
trust, partnership, joint venture, syndicate, cooperative, society, association, scheme
whereby people contribute money or money’s worth to acquire rights to benefits
produced by the scheme (whether the rights are actual, prospective or contingent and
whether they are enforceable or not) or other entity or unincorporated body;

is not a party to any agreement under which it is bound to pay a share of profits or
expenses;

is not the responsible entity, manager, trustee, representative or custodian of any
body corporate, trust, partnership, joint venture, syndicate, cooperative, society,
association, scheme whereby people contribute money or money’s worth to acquire
rights to benefits produced by the scheme (whether the rights are actual, prospective
or contingent and whether they are enforceable or not) or other entity or
unincorporated body or holds or manages any assets on behalf of any person; or

does not carry on any business or have any permanent establishment (as that
expression is defined in the relevant double taxation agreement) outside the country
in which it is incorporated,;

or has not agreed to become one or to do so.

23 (Constitution) The constitution of the Buyer together with all modifications (if any):

(a)

(b)

is valid, binding and enforceable in accordance with its terms as between the Buyer
and its members and directors; and

complies with the ASX Listing Rules, the Corporations Act and all other applicable
law;

and the copy located at https://www.asx.com.au/asxpdf/20161128/pdf/43d8n99ffékdg2.pdf
and announced to ASX on 28 November 2016 is complete and accurate.

3. Solvency

None of the following has occurred and is subsisting, or is threatened, in relation to the Buyer:

(a)

(b)

An application or order made, proceeding commenced, resolution passed or
proposed in a notice of meeting, petition presented, meeting convened or other step
taken for:

(1) the winding up, dissolution, bankruptcy or administration of the Buyer; or

(2) the Buyer entering into an arrangement, compromise or composition with or
assignment for the benefit of its creditors or a class of them.

The Buyer:
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4.1

4.2

4.3

1) being (or being taken to be under applicable legislation) unable to pay its
debts as and when they fall due; or

(2) stopping or suspending, or threatening to stop or suspend, payment of all or a
class of its debts.

(c) The appointment of an administrator, receiver, receiver and manager, administrative
receiver, liquidator, provisional liquidator or similar officer to any of the assets and
undertakings of the Buyer.

(d) The levying of any distress, execution or other similar order or process on any of the

property or assets of the Buyer.
Accounts

(True and fair) The Buyer Accounts present a true and fair view of the financial position and
performance of the Buyer:

(a) as at the Balance Date; and

(b) for the relevant period ended on that date.

(Comply with law) The Buyer Accounts comply with:

(a) the requirements of the Corporations Act and any other applicable laws; and
(b) the Buyer Accounting Standards.

(Preparation) The Buyer Accounts were prepared:

(a) in the manner described in the notes to them and the accompanying auditor's opinion
and on a consistent basis with the audited accounts for the prior financial year; and

(b) without recording any appreciation in an asset during the period covered by the Buyer
Accounts.

Changes since the Balance Date

Since the Balance Date:

(a) the Buyer’s business has been carried on in a normal, proper and efficient manner
and managed and conducted in the ordinary and usual course, consistent with past
practice;

(b) to the date of this agreement there has been no material adverse change in the

assets, liabilities, financial position, performance, profits, losses, business, operations
or prospects of the Buyer;

(c) the Buyer has not acquired or disposed of any assets except in the ordinary course of
ordinary business, on arm’s length terms and for fair market value, or agreed to do so;

(d) there has been no material change to the remuneration and other benefits (including
any bonus scheme) payable to or conferred on an officer or employee of the Buyer
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6.1

6.2

6.3

71

nor any proposal or agreement to do so, except as required under any contract,
legislation or award,

(e) there has not been any new accounting or valuation method implemented for the
business or any assets, property or rights of the Buyer;

{j)] the Buyer has not:

(1) increased, reduced or otherwise altered its issued share or loan capital or
securities or other rights convertible into share or loan capital or granted any
options for the issue of shares or other securities;

(2) declared or paid a dividend or other distribution;

(3) bought back any of its shares;

(4) made any alteration to its constitution or other constitutional documents;

(5) revalued any assets; or

(6) entered into any abnormal or unusual transaction;

or agreed to do so;

except for or as a consequence of entry into or performance of this agreement or the
Incubator Agreement or any transaction required or permitted under or contemplated by such
agreement or except to the extent otherwise expressly approved by the Seller.

Comply with law

(No contravention of law) The Buyer is materially complying with all laws applying to the
conduct by it of its business and no contravention or allegation of any contravention of any
applicable law is known to the Buyer.

(Authorisations) So far as the Buyer is aware, all Authorisations necessary to carry on the
Buyer's business are held by and in the name of the Buyer, and a copy of each Authorisation
was provided to the Seller before the date of this agreement and each copy is complete and

accurate.

(Validity) So far as the Buyer is aware, the Authorisations held by the Buyer:

(a) are valid and effective;
(b) have been complied with;
(c) are not breached or otherwise adversely affected by the execution or performance of

this agreement; and
(d) are not subject to a right of appeal by any person.
Litigation

(No litigation) Neither the Buyer, nor a person for whom it may be vicariously liable, is
involved at the date of this agreement in any litigation, arbitration, administrative or
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governmental investigation or criminal prosecution and so far as the Buyer is aware there are
no facts likely to give rise to a proceeding of this type.

7.2 (No unsatisfied judgments) There are no unsatisfied judgments, orders, awards or
decisions against the Buyer.

8. ASX rules and requirements

8.1 (Compliance) The Buyer is in compliance with all listing, operating or settlement rules and
requirements of ASX, ASX Operations Pty Ltd or ASX Settlement Pty Ltd binding on or
applicable to it and no contravention or allegation of any contravention of any applicable rule
or requirement is known to the Buyer.

8.2 (Continuous disclosure) The Buyer is in compliance with rule 3.1 of the ASX Listing Rules.

8.3 (No excluded information) Since at least 10 trading days before the Announcement Date or
the date of execution of this agreement, whichever is earlier, no information has been
withheld from disclosure to ASX in reliance on the exception under rule 3.1A of the ASX
Listing Rules, other than information about the transactions contemplated by this agreement.

9. Buyer due diligence documents

So far as the Buyer is aware, the documents contained in the electronic on-line data room as
at 11:11 am on 31 October 2021 accessed at
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/aetskdf30kgmbwa/AADvWbunl4q8yGQIJWLQOopla?d|=0 to
which the Seller has had access, the complete contents of which were copied in electronic
form onto a USB provided by or on behalf of the Buyer to the Seller or to a director, employee,
agent or adviser of the Seller before execution of this agreement being:

(a) letters, agreements, deeds, certificates and other documents of title with respect to a
Buyer Group Entity which are copies, are true copies of the relevant documents held
by the Buyer Group Entity;

(b) historical accounting information and other historical business information with
respect to a Buyer Group Entity which are extracts from the records of a Buyer Group
Entity, are accurate extracts of the records concerned; and

(c) responses to requests for information made by or on behalf of the Seller with respect
to a Buyer Group Entity were, when provided, accurate except for any information
which is prospective or forecast or otherwise as to the future, any information supplied
by a person other than by or on behalf of a Buyer Group Entity or any information
which is subsequently corrected or contradicted by the Buyer before the date of this
agreement.
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Schedule 9 — Buyer Accounts

CHILOCARE LIMITED

‘* MAYFIELD

ASX Half-year Report
Period ended 30 June 2021

Lodged with the ASX under Listing Rule 4.2A.3

Company details
Name of reporting entity: Mayfield Childcare Limited ("Mayfield", “Company”)

ABN: 53 604 970 390
Reporting perod: Half-year ended 30 June 2021
Previous cormesponding
reporting period (pcp): Half-year ended 30 June 2020
Contents Page
Resuits for announcement to the market 2
Net tangible assets 3
Control over other entities 3
Associates and joint venture entities k}
Compliance statement 3
Interim Report
Directors' Report 5
Auditor's independence declaration 8

Interim financial report

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 10
Statement of financial position 11
Statement of changes in equity 12
Statement of cash flows 13
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 14
Independent auditor’s review report to members 20
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CHILOCARE LINITED

A AYFIELD
) MAYF

Results for announcement to the market

Movemem % $
Revenue from ordinary activities Up 6.1 fo 17,484,032
Profit from ordinary activities
after tax attributable to members Up 1264 to 1,256,161
Net Profit for the period attributahle to members Up 1204 fo 1,256,161
Dividend type Amoum Franked
per amount per
security security
{cents) {cents)
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 2.00 2.00
Interim dividend for the half-year ended 30 June 2021 247 247
The Company has a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP), shareholder participation in which
is optional.

On 26 March 2021 the Company paid a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 of
$642,060. Cash dividend payments totalled $510,716 and 145,938 ordinary shares were
issued under the DRP at $0.90 per share.

On 6 August 2021 the company was pleased {0 declare its inaugural inferim dividend for the
half-year ended 30 June 2021 of 2.47 cents per ordinary share, fully franked, with a record
date of 13 August 2021. The dividend will be paid on 24 September 2021, the total cost of
which is estimated to be $796,491, which is expected to be satisfied by a combination of
cash payments and the issue of DRP shares which rank equaily with ali other fully paid up
ordinary shares of the Company. The DRP is offered by the Company to all its shareholders.

Brief explanation of Revenue

Revenues of $17.5m were up 6.1% on pcp primarily due to the first half of CY 2020 having
heen adversely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.

Brief explanation of Profit (and Net Profit)

Net Profit After Tax (NPAT) of $1.3m was up 129.4% on pcp pnmarily due to the adverse
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in pcp and the closure of a centre in Q4 of CY 2020 which

was loss-making in pcp.

Please refer to the Review of Operations in the Directors’ Report on pages 5 to 6 for further
commentary, including a reconcikation of the above statutory resuit to the undertying, non-
IFRS NPAT result of $1,591k, which is 139.5% up on pcp.
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Net tangible assets

30 Jun 30 Jun

2021 2020

(cents) {cents)

Net tangible asset backing per ordinary share {109.38) {125.37)

Control over other entities
No control was gained or lost aver any entity during the reporting period.

Associates and joint venture entities

The Company has no associates, nor has it formed any joint ventures with any other entities
during the reporting perod.

Compliance statement

This report is based on accounts which were subject to review by the auditor, whose review
report is attached to, and forms part of, the Interim Report.
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Mayfield Childcare Limited (ABN: 53 804 970 300)
Iterim Report — 30 June 2021

Directors’ Report

Your directors present their report on Mayfield Childcare Limited ("Mayfield”, “Company”) for the haif-
year ended 30 June 2021.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company in office during the half-year, and at the date of this report, are:

Peter Lowe, Chairman
Dean Clarke
Michelle Clarke

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the half-year the principal activity of the Company consisted of operating long day childcare
centres located in Victoria.

DIVIDENDS

On 26 March 2021 the Company paid a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 of 2.0 cents
per ordinary share, fully franked. Cash dividend payments totalled $510,716 and 145,938 ordinary
shares were issued under the Dividend Reinvestment Ptan (DRP) at $0.90 per share.

On 6 August 2021 the Company was pleased lo declare its inaugural interim dividend for the half-year
ended 30 June 2021 of 247 cents per ordinary share, fully franked, with a record date of
13 August 2021. The dividend will be paid on 24 September 2021, the total cost of which is estimated
to be $796,491, which is expected to be satisfied by a combination of cash payments and the issue
of DRP shares which rank equally with all other fully paid up ordinary shares of the Company. The
DRP is offered by the Company to all its shareholders.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the half-year demand for childcare slowly picked up as the Victorian economy recovered from
the COVID-19 induced difficulties of 2020. Despite the federal govemment's Relief Package having
ceased at the end of January, and its budgeted improved child care package not being implemented
before July 2022, the Company performed well.

Management maintained effective staff rostering and tight cost control throughout the period, with the
Company continuing to benefit from the teamwork and co-operation of its dedicated empioyees.

The Company’s annhual cenfre improvement programme recommenced, incorporating capital
expenditure on both intemal and extemnal cenire upgrades, having been delayed due to the ongoing
economic and operational impact of the pandemic.

Statutory net profit after tax (NPAT) for the half-year ended 30 June 2021 of $1,256,161.

39149995_21.docx page 167



Share sale agreement 0 PiperAlderman

Mayfield Chitdcare Lirmited (ABN: 53 604 970 300)
interim Report — 30 June 2021

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Non-IFRS Financial information’
After reversing the impact of AASB 16 Leases?, 'undertying’ NPAT was as follows:

Underlying NPAT
Stafutory Reversing | Underlying  Underlying
Half-year  AASB 16 Half-year Half-year
2021 Impact 2021 2020
$'000 $000 $000 $000
Revenue 17,484 - 17,484 16,115
Labour costs (10,411) - (10,411) (10,219)
Centre operating expenses (809) - (809) (854)
Facilities 543) (1,999 {2,502) (2,402)
Centre EBITDA 5,721 (1.959) 3,762 2,640
Head Office staff & related costs (732) - (732) {830}
Other corporate overheads (314) (67) (381) {460)
EBITDA 4,675 (2.026) 2,649 1,350
Depreciation (2,313) 1,984 (329) (249)
EBIT 2,362 (42) 2,320 1,101
Finance costs (635) 489 (146) (236)
Profit Before Tax 1,727 447 2,174 865
Tax 471) (112) (583) (201)
NPAT from Continuing Operations 1,256 335 1,591 664
b mmmu%ram%%WMImm“mm m?ﬁm
it EBIT and EBITOA refiect the core g of fhe enity, ¢ with inlemal reposing.

2 For an expanaton of AASD 16meeseuetbmﬁ1 Summary of SIgAICanT ScToUNting PaRcles ofy page 26 of the Arrasal Report for the year
ended 31 Decamber 2020

After reversing the impact of AASB 16 Leases?, 'undenyng’ Eamings Per Share (EPS) was as follows:

Undertying EPS

Statutory Reversing | Underfying Underlying
Half-year AASB 16 Half-year Half-year
2021 impact 2021 2020
Cents Cents Cents Cents
Basic and diluted eamings per share 3.90 1.05 495 209
$ 3 $ L

Earnings used in calculating EPS
NPAT from Continuing Operations 1,256,161 335,197 1,591,358 664,317
Number Number Number Number
Weighted average number of shares 32178872 32,178,872 | 32,178,872 31,833,763

The financial position of the Company, as detailed in the Statement of Financial Position in the
financial statements, is sound and is in line with management’s expectations.
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Mayfieid Childcare Limited (ABN: 53 604 070 380)
Interim Repart — 30 June 2021
SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company that occummed during the half-
year not otherwise disclosed in this report or in the accompanying financial statements.

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE HALF-YEAR
The acquisition of a Victorian-based, purpose-built, 70 place centre was completed on 16 July 2021.

The Company has agreed to acquire a Victorian-based, purpose-built, 111 place centre. The
purchase will be debt funded, with timing subject to standard licensing approvals and transfers.

No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2021 which has significantly affected, or
may significantly affect:

(a) the Company’s operations in future financial years, or

(b) the results of those operations in future financial years, or

(c) the Company’s state of affairs in future financial years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company expeds to continue 1o execute is business plan, in line with its strategic objectives, as
outlined in its 2020 Annual Report. Future growth is expected to come through the continued
improvement of existing centres and the acquisition of new, long day childcare centres.

AUDITOR'’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor's independence declaration, as required under section 307C of the
Corporations Act 2001, is set out on page 8.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.
Peter Lowe

Chairman

Meiboume
6 August 2021
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PKF Melbourne PKF

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of Mayfield Childcare Limited

hrelatlonmourrevlewoftheﬁlancnlreportofMayﬁeidO\ldﬂlemedformehdfvearendediO)une2021to
the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor independence reg s of
the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional conduct in refation to the review.

R G s

PXF Kenneth Weldin
Mebourne, 06 August 2021 Partner

PKF Meboume Audit & Assurance Pty Lid ABN 75 800 749 184

Leved 12, 440 Colins Street, Melbourme, Victaria 3000

T: 481 30070 2222 F: +01 3 8670 2288 www.pkf com.au

Liabifity imaed by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
mmemumsmwmuwmduwmmmumummmmmmn
responsiiity or fabiity for he atons or Inactiors of any U METIDer OF COMesD
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Mayfield Chidcare Limited (ABN: 53 604 970 300)
Irterim Repaort — 30 June 2021

Interim Financial Report
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Contents
Page
Financial Report
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 10
Statement of financial position 1
Statement of changes in equity 12
Statement of cash flows 13
Notes to the financial statements 14
Directors' declaration 19
Independent auditor’s review report to the members 20

This interim financial report is for Mayfield Childcare Limited (“Mayfield", “Company”).
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Mayfield Childcare Limited is a public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in
Australia, and fisted on the Australian Securities Exchange since 30 November 2016. Its registered
office and principal place of business is:

Suite 2, Ground Floor

207-213 Waverley Road

Malvem East VIC 3145

A description of the nature of the Company's operations and its principal activities is included in the
directors’ report, which is not part of this inancial report.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on 6 August 2021. The directors have
the power to amend and to reissue the interim financial report.

A copy of this financial report may be obtained from the ASX website (www.asx.com_au).
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Mayfield Childcare Limited (ABN: 53 604 670 300)
Intesim Report - 30 June 2021

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Note Half-year Haif-year

20 2020
$ $
Revenue 3 17,484,032 16,471,720
Employees (11,084,370) (11,047,762)
Cenfre operations (609,688) (853,779)
Facilifies (545,635) (600,624)
Administration (370,106) (417,9623)
Depreciation and amortisation of plant and equipment 4 (321,245) (240,897)
Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets 7 (1,991,845) (1,919,243)
Finance costs (635,115) (683,371)
Prufit before income tax 1,727,028 708,081
Income tax expense (470,867) (160,389)
Profit after income tax for the half-year entirely attributable to the owners
of Mayfield Childcare Limited 1,256,161 547 692
Other comprehensive income for the half-year, net of tax . -
Total comprehensive income for the half-year entirely attributable to the
owners of Mayfield Childcare Limited 1,256,161 547,692
Note Cents Cents
Basic and diluted eamings per share 10 3.90 172

The above staternent of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the
accampanying notes.
10
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Mayfield Childcare Limited (ABN: 53 604 970 300)
Inferim Report — 30 June 2021

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2021
Note 30 Jun 31Dec
2021 2020
s 3
ASSETS
Cuirent assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,655,299 1,569,464
Trade and other receivables 532,735 1,034 217
Prepayments 219,018 268,568
Other 237,500 -
Total cument assets 2,644,552 2872269
Non-cumrent assets
Plant and equipment 4 2,729,225 2,558,724
Intangibles 5 39,638,275 39,638,275
Right-of-use assets 7 25,509,594 25,409,674
Deferred tax 974,070 923,941
Total non-curent assets 68,848,164 68,530 614
Total assets 71.492,716 71,402,833
LIABILITIES
Current kabilities
Trade and other payables 1,531,379 1,323,465
Confract liabilities 970,946 907,917
Bommowings 6 1,057,200 1,599,000
Leases 7 3,466,370 3,441,626
Curent tax liabikties (7,084) 781,933
Provisions 1,678,391 1,682,373
Total cument liabilties 8,697,202 9,736,314
Non-curent liabilities
Bomowings 6 8,170,600 8,297,400
Leasss 7 23,671,422 23,159,028
Provsions 106,206 106,206
Total non-curvent liabdities 31,948,228 31,562,6M4
Total Kabilities 40,645,430 41,298,948
Net agsets 30,847,286 30,103,935
EQuUITY
Contributed equity 24,229,970 24 100,720
Retained eamings 6,617,316 6,003 215
Total Equity 30,947,286 30,103,935

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
1"
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Mayfield Chilicare Limited (ABN: 53 804 970 300)
Inlerim Report — 30 June 2021

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Share Refained Total
Capitaf Earnings
H $ s
Balance as at 1 January 2020 23,839,313 4,718,878 28,558,191
Profit after income tax expenze for the half-year - 547,692 547,692
Other comprehensive income for the haif-year, net of tax - - -
Total comprehensive income for the half-year - 547,652 547,692
Transactions with owners in their capacily as owners
Corttributions of equity (via DRP), net of transaction costs - - -
Dividend payable (2454382)  (2,454,382)
Balance as at 30 June 2020 23,839,313 2,812,188 26,651,501
Balance as at 1 January 2021 24,100,720 6,003,215 30,103,935
Profit after income tax expenze for the half-year - 1,256,161 1,256,161
Other comprehensive income for the haif-year, net of tax . - 2
Total comprehensive income for the half-year - 1,256,161 1,256,161
Transactions with owners in their capacity s owners
Contributions of equity (via DRP), net of transaction costs 129,250 - 129,250
Dividend paid (642,060) (642,060)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 24,229,970 6,617,316 30,847,286

The above stalement of changes in equity should be reed in conjunction with the accompanying noles.
12
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Mayfield Chilicare Limited (ABN: 53 004 070 300)
Interim Report — 30 Jure 2021

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the half-year ended 30 June 2029

Haff-year Half-year

20 2020
Y $

Cash flows from operating activities
Recempts from customers, including government funding 18,077,809 16,405,316
Payments to suppliers and employses (12,543,640) (11,883,596)
5,634,169 4,521,720
Other receipts 9,271 3,706
Interest paid on lease liabilites (385,601) (391,066)
Net interest paid on bomowings (143,374) {235,209}
Net income tax paid {1,307,013) (491 544)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 3,706,952 3407802

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for plant and equipment (499,342) (650,419)
Payments for purchases of businesses plus associated costs (237,500} -
Cenfre closure costs (44,403) -
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment - 455
Net cash outflow from investing activities (781,245) (649,964)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of lease liabilitias (1,659,462} {1,646,185)
Repayment of borrowings (668,600)  (1,599,208)
Dividend paid (510,716) -
Share issue costs (2,094) -
Net cash outflow from financing activities 2,839,872) (2,245 393)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 85,835 (487,755}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the half-year 1,569,464 B4E8 2960
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the half.year 1.655,299 161,205

meovestdmdcasthsmwbemdmmmnmﬂweaccmpmﬁmm
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Mayfield Chikicare Limited (ABN: 53 804 970 300)
Interim Report — 30 June 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies

These general purpose financial statements for the interim hatf-year reporting period ended 30 June 2021 have
been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 134 Intedm Financial Reporfing and
the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate for ‘for profit’ entiies. Compliance with AASB 134 ensures
compliance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) IAS 134 Interim Financial Reporting.

This interim financial report does not include all the notes of the type normaily included in an annual financial
report  Accordingly, this report is to be read in conjunction with the annual report for the year ended
31 Becember 2020 and all public announcements made by the Company dunng the interim reporting period in
accordance with the continuous disclosure requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concem basis and under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of current financial information, and the presentation of any prior reporting period comparatives,
is consistent from one reporting period to the next

Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Inferpretations that are not yet mandatory have not
been adopted early.

Going concem

Current liabilities excesd current assets at reporting date by $6.1 miflion. The ongoing application of AASB 16
Leases has required the recognition within the statement of financial position of a current lease liability of
$3.5 million as at reporting date without a concomitant cumrent asset (the right-of-use leased asset being
mandated as non-current), however this continues to have no impact upon the economic position of the
Company. Despite the ‘underlying’ (pre-AASB 16) net shortfall in current assets of $2.6 million, the Company
continues to generate positive operational cash flows and continues to be profitable. The Company had up to
$5.2 million (at reporting date) available to be drawn down from its lending facility for working capital
requirements and its cash resources are closely monitored.

In considering the pandemic and its expected impact upon the future cash flows of the Company, the directors
have assumed that funding will continue to be received from both the federal (CCS) and state (Kindergarten)
govermments in a timely manner, and in accordance with currently legislated funding models and that occupancy
will continue its gradual recavery. Whilst uncertainties in forecasting do and always will exist (and remain greater
than would normally be the case), they do not constitute material uncertainty in relation to going concem.
Therefore, having regard to all of the above, the directors believe it appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concem basia.

Amendments to Accounting Standards and new Interpretations that are mandatory, effective from the
current reporting period

The Company has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (the AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current reporting

period.

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations published but not yet adopted

There have been no new standards pubfished but not yet adopted that would have a material impact upon either
the Company’s reported financial performance or its financial position.

14
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Mayfield Chikicare Limited (ABN: 53 604 070 300)
Interim Report — 30 June 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Note 2. Operating segments

Identification of reportable segments
The Company continues to operate in ene operaling segment, as a childcare services provider. The Company
operates in one geographical region, being Australia and, more specifically, Victoria.

Major custormers
The Company did not have any major customers during the half-year ended 30 June 2021, as it eams the
majority of its revenue from childcare provided to individual families.

Hatf-year Hall-year
2021 2020
$ $

Note 3. Revenue
Childcare services 17,482,355 12,844,711
Other income 1,677 3,168
JobKeeper wages subsidy - 3,267,000
Property rent reductions - 310,634
Early termination of property leases - 46,207

17,484,032 16,471,720

30 Jun 2021
$

Note 4. Non-cuirent assets — Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment — at cost 4,090,777
Less: Accumutated depreciation (1,364,552)
Net book amount 2,729,225
Reconciliation
Opening net book amount at beginning of half-year 2,558,724
Additions 499,341
Disposais (7,595)
Depraciation expense (321,245)
Closing net book amount at end of half-year 2,729,225

15
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Mayfield Chikicare Limited (ABN: 53 604 §70 300)
Interim Report — 30 June 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

30 Jun 2021
$
Note 5. Non-current assets — Intangibles
Goodwill - at cost 39,638,275
Reconcifiation
Balance at beginning of half-year 39,638,275
Adjustrents during the haif-year =
Balance at end of half-year 39,638,275
The Company did not acquire any centres during the reporting period.
No centres were sold or closed during the reporting pesiod.
Goodwill impairment testing
The Board is not aware of any indicalors of potential impairment, determining that no
mpaiment is required 1o the carrying amount of goodwil at 30 June 2021.
Note 6. Current & Non-current liabilities — Borrowings
Current 1,057,200
Non-current 8,170,600
9,227,800
Bank Loans
Balance at beginning of half-year 9,896,400
Net repayments (668,600)
Batance at end of half-year 9,227,800
Financing arrangements
Bank loans
The bank loans are secured an the assets and undertakings of the Company.
Facility at end of ha¥-year
Total bank loan facility 17,965,400
Less amount used (9,227.800)
Unused facility 8,737,600

Of the $8.7 mifion unused, $3.5 million is only avaiiable for future acquisitions and there are
specific chiteria which need fo be met prior to any draw-down. There have been no events of
default on the financing amangements of the Company during the half-year.

16
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Mayfield Childcare Limited (ABN: 53 604 970 300)
Interim Report — 30 June 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Half-year Half-year

2021 2020
s $
Note 7. Leases
(a) Expenses
Expenses from transactions not recognised as leases:
Rental expense relating to leases of low-value assats 26,646 26,031
(b) Cash flows
Total cash outflow for leases 2,044,063 2,037,251
{c) Right-of-use assets
Property Mator Total
Vehicles
$ $ $
Right-of-use assets 34,124,889 101,006 34,225,895
Less: Accumulated depreciation (8,644,798) (71,503) (8,716,301)
Net book amount at end of half-year 25,480,091 29,503 25,509,594
Reconciliation
Opening net book amount at beginning of half-year 25,371,823 37,851 25,409,674
Increase due to addition of next further term upon cument
term remaining being less than three years 1,701,623 - 1,701,623
Increase due to rent reviews and further terms exercised 345,950 - 345,950
Increase due to re-measurement of lease liabites upon
increase of variable lease payments 44,192 5 44,192
Depreciation charge (1,982,497) (8,348) (1,991,845}
Closing net book amount at end of half-year 25,480,091 29,503 25,509,594
{d) Lease liabilities
Current 3,466,370
Non-curent 23,671,422
27,137,792

Maturity of Leases

The following table analyses the Company’s leases by relevant maturity groupings, based on their contractual
maturities — they are not expected to occur significantly earlier than as contracted at reporting date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted caah flows.

J0 June 2021 Within Between Between Over Total Carrying

1 year 1and 2 2and 5 Syears | contractual | amount of

years years cash fiows kabilities
Leases — Property 4,140,753 | 4,251,882 | 11,979,716 | 9,723,196 | 30,085547 | 27,122,632
Leases — Motor Vehicles 15,164 - = - 15,164 15,160
Total Leases 4,155,917 | 4251,882 | 11,979,716 | 9,723,196 | 30,110,711 | 27.137.792

17
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Mayfield Childcare Limited (ABN: 53 04 070 300)
Imierim Report — 30 June 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the haif-year ended 30 June 2021

Note 7. Leases (continued)

Additional information

Unavoidable future payments

For the purpose of calculating unavoidable future lease payments, only the current term of each property lease
haz been considered, unless the option to exercise the next further term falls within 3 years of reporting date,
in which case exercise of the next further term is considered o be reasonably certain, thus both the cumrent
and subseguent further term lease payments are considered tc be unavoidable.

Weighted average properly lease term
The average unavoidable property lease term, weighted for the number of licensed places, is 6.6 years.
Including all further terms, the weighted average term increases to 22.0 years.

Motor vehicle leases
Motor vehicles are leased over 4 years and the liability includes contracted end-of-lease residual payments.

Note 8. Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties
Management sefvices agreements

No new related party service agreements were entered into during the half-year. No related party revenue has
been recognized during the half-year.

Note 9. Events occurring after the reporting period

The acquisition of a Victorian-based, purpose-built, 70 piace centre was completed on 16 July 2021.

The Company has agreed to acqure a Victorian-based, purpose-built, 111 place cenire. The purchase will be
debt funded, with timing subject to standard licensing approvals and transfers.

No other matter or circumstance has arisen sinee 30 June 2021 that has significantly affected, or may significantly
affect, the Company's operations, the results of those operations or the Company’s state of affairs in future years.

Note 10. Earnings per share
Half-year HaW-year
2020

2021
Cents Cents
Basic and diluted eamings per share 3.90 1.72
Number Number
Weighted average number of shares
Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator in calculating
basic and diluted eamings per share 32,178,872 31,833,763
s $

Earnings used in calcutating basic and dikited earnings per share®
Profit after tax attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company 1,256,161 947,692

1. Eamings have been reduced by the ongring application of AASB 168 Leases (refer 'underiying’ EPS in the Review of Operations,
within the Directors” Report, on page 8).

18
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Mayfield Chideare Limited (ABN: 53 604 970 300)
Irlerim Report — 30 June 2021

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
In the directors’ opinion:
@) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 10 to 18 are in accordance with the

Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements; and

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 30 June 2021 and
of its performance for the haif-year ended on that date: and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as
and when they become due and payable

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

=

Peter Lowe
Chairman

Melboume
6 August 2021

19
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PKF Melboumne PKr

Independent Auditor's Review Report to the Members of Mayfield Childcare Limited

Report on the Half-Year Financial Report

Conclusion

We have revi d the accompanying half-year financial report of Mayfield Childcare Limited {the Company) which

comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the half-year ended on that

date, a statement of accounting policies, other selected explanatory notes, and the directors’ dedlaration.

Based on our review, which is not an audit, we have not become aware of any matter that makes us believe that the

half-year financial report of Mayfield Childcare Limited is not in accordance with the Corparations Act 2001 induding:

{a) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s finandal position as at 30 June 2021 and of its performance for the
half-year ended on that date; and

{b) complying with the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and the Corporations
Regutations 2001

Independence

In conducting our review, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. In

accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, we have given the directors of the Company a written Auditor’s

mdependence Dedaration.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Haif-Year Financiol Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the half-year finandial report that gives a true and

fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001 and for such

internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the half-year financial report
that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Review of the Half-Year Financial Report

Our responsibility is to express a condusion on the half-year financial report based on our review. We conducted our
review in accordance with Auditing Standard on Review Engagements ASRE 2410 Review of o Financial Report
Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity, in order to state whether, on the basis of the procedures described,
we have become aware of any matter that causes us to believe that the financial report is not in accordance with the
Corparations Act 2001 induding: giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 30 June 2021 and
its performance for the half-year ended on that date; and complying with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 134
intesim Financial Reporting and the Carporutions Regulations 2001. As the auditor of Mayfield Childcare Limited, ASRE
2410 requires that we comply with the ethical requirements relevant to the audit of the annual finandal report.

A review of a half-year finandal report consists of making enquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and
accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than
an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards and consequently does not enable us to obtain
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we
do not express an audit opmion.

(TD‘( |E LVATEN

PKF Kenneth Weldin
Melboume 06 August 2021 PKF

PKF Medboume Audit & Assurance Pty Lid ABN 75 800 740 184

Level 12, 440 Collns Street. Melbourne, Victoria 3000

T: 481396782222 F: +81 3 0673 2288 www pki comay

Liability imited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards |_egislation

PEF Melboums Audit & Assurance Pty Lit & 3 member firrn of the PYF intemationa Limited family of legally Independert fsme and does nal accept any
responsiDily o labiity v he adions o Inaclions of any Ndividua member o aomrespondent Mem or fimes
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Mayfield Chidcare Limited (ABN: 53 604 870 200)
Inmerim Report — 30 June 2021

Interim Financial Report
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Contents
Page
Financial Report
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 10
Statement of financial position 11
Statement of changes in equity 12
Statement of cash flows 13
Notes to the financial statements 14
Directors’ declaration 19
Independent auditor's review report {o the members 20

This interim financial report is for Mayfield Childcare Limited (“Mayfield”, “*Company”).
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Mayfield Childcare Limited is a public company imited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in
Australia, and listed on the Australian Securities Exchange since 30 November 2016. Its registered
office and principal place of business is:

Suite 2, Ground Floor

207-213 Waveriey Road

Malvem East VIC 3145

A description of the nature of the Company’s operations and its principal activities is included in the
directors' report, which is not part of this financial report.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on 6 August 2021. The directors have
the power to amend and to reissue the interim financial repont.

A copy of this financial report may be obtained from the ASX website (www._asx.com.au).
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Mayfield Chidcare Limited (ABN: 53 804 970 30)
Interim Report — 30 June 2021

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Revenue

Empioyees

Centre operations

Faciliies
——

Depraciation and amortization of plant and equipment
Depreciation charge on nght-of-use assets

Finance cosis

Proft before income tax

income tax expense

Profit after income tax for the half-year entirely atiributabie to the owners
of Mayfield Chiddcare Limited

Other comprehensive income for the half-year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the half-year entirely attnbutable to the
owners of Mayfield Childcare Limited

Basic and diluted eamings per share

Note Half-year Half-year
2021 2020

s $

3 17484032 16471,720
(11,084,370}  (11,047,762)
(608,688) (853,779)

(545,635) (600,624)

(370,406) {417,963}

4 (324,245) (240,897)
7 (1,991,845}  (1,919,243)
(635,115) (683,371)
1,727,028 708,081
(470,867) (160,389

1,256,161 547 692
1,256,161 547,692

Note Cents Cents
10 3.90 172

The above statement of proft or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the

accampenying notes.

10
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Mayfield Childcare Limited (ABN: 53 604 970 300)
Interim Report — 30 June 2021

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2021
Note 30 Jun 31 Dec
201 2020
s $
ASSETS
Cuirent assets
Cash and cash equivaients 1,655,299 1,569,464
Trade and other receivables 532,736 1,034,217
Prepayments 219,018 268,568
Other 237,500 -
Total curent assets 2,644,552 2,872,269
Non-cuirent assets
Ptant and equipment 4 2,729,225 2,558,724
intangibles 3 39,638,275 39,638,275
Right-of-use assets 7 25,509,594 25,409,674
Deferred tax 971,070 923,941
Total non-curent assets 68,848,164 658,530,614
Total assets 71,492,716 71,402,683
LIABILITIES
Curent Eabilities
Trade and other payables 1,531,379 1,323 465
Confract liabfities 970,946 907,917
Bomowings 6 1,057,200 1,599,000
Leases 7 3,466,370 3,441,626
Currert tax fiabiiities {7,084) 781,933
Provisions 1,678,391 1,682,373
Total cumrent fiabiiities 8,697,202 9,736,314
Non-current liabifities
Bomowings 6 8,170,600 8,297 400
Leases 7 23,671,422 23,159,028
Provisions 106,206 106,206
Total non-current liabilities 34,948,228 31,562,634
Total liabihties 40,645,430 41,298,948
Net assets 30,847,266 30,103,935
EQUITY
Contributed equity 24,229,970 24,100,720
Retained eamings 6,617,316 6,003,215
Total Equity 30,847,286 30,103,935

The above staternent of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
11
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Mayfield Childcare Limited (ABN: 53 804 970 360)
Interim Report — 30 June 2021

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Share Retained Total
Capital Eamings
s s s
Balance as at 1 January 2020 23,839,313 4,718,878 28,556,191
Profit after income tax expense for the half-year - 547,692 547,692
Other comprehensive income for the haif-year, net of tex - = -
Total comprehensive income for the half-year - 547,692 547,692
Transactions with owners in their capacily as owners
Contributions of equity (via DRP), net of transaction costs - - -
Dividend payable (2454,382)  (2,454,382)
Balance as at 30 June 2020 23,839,313 2,812,188 26,651,501
Balance as at 1 January 2021 24,100,720 6,003,215 30,103,935
Profit after income tax expense for the half-year = 1,256,161 1,256,161
Other comprehensive income for the half-year, net of tax - - =
Total comprehensive income for the half-year - 1,256,161 1,256,161
Transactions with owners in their capacily as owners
Contributions of equity (via DRP}, net of transaction costs 129,250 - 129,230
Dividend paid (642,060) (642,060)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 24,229,970 6,617,316 30,847,286

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accormpanying noles.
12

39149995 21.docx page 187



Share sale agreement o PiperAlderman

Mayfield Chidcare Limited (ABN: 53 804 970 300)
Interim Report — 30 June 2021

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Half-yoar Half-year

2021 2020
s $

Cash flows from operating activities
Recepts from cusiomers, including govemment funding 48,077,809 16,405,316
Payments to suppliers and employeses (12,543,640) (11,883,596)
5,634,169 4,521,720
Other receipts 9,271 3,706
interest paid on lease babiliies (385,601) (391,066)
Net interest paid on borrowings (143,874) {235,209)
Netincome tax paid {1,307.012) (491,549)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 3,706,952 3407802

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for plant and equipment (499,342) (650,419)
Payments for purchases of businesses plus associated costs (237,500) -
Cenire closure costs (44,403) -
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment - 455
Net cazh outflow from investing activities {781,246} (649,964)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of lease liabdities (1,658,462) (1,646,185)
Repayment of bomowings {668,600) (1,599,208)
Dividend paid {510,716) -
Share issue costs (2,094) -
Net cash outflow from financing activities (2,839,672) (2245 393)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 85,835 (487,755)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the half.year 1,569,464 548,960
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the half-year 1,655,299 161,205

mmwmwwmmmmmmmnmmmmmm
13
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Mayfield Childcare Limited (ABN: 53 504 870 300)
interim Report — 30 June 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies

These general purpose financial statements for the interim half-year reporting period ended 30 June 2021 have
been prepared in accordance with Ausiralian Accounting Standard AASB 134 interim Financial Reporting and
the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate for ‘for profit entiies. Compliance with AASB 134 ensures
compliance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 1AS 134 Inferim Financial Reporting.

This interim financial report does not include all the notes of the type normally included in an annual financial
report. Accordingly, this report is to be read in conjunction with the annual report for the year ended
31 December 2020 and all public announcements made by the Company during the interim reporting period in
accordance with the continuous disclosure nequirements of the Corporafions Act 2001.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concem basis and under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of current financial information, and the presantation of any prior reporting period comparatives,
is consistent from one reporting period to the next.

Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not
been adopted early.

Going concern

Current Rabilites exceed curment assets at reporting date by $6.1 miflion. The ongoing application of AASB 16
Leases has required the recognition within the statement of financial position of a current lease liability of
$3.5 million as at reporting date without a concomitant current asset (the right-of-use leased asset being
mandated as non-current), however this continues to have no impact upon the economic position of the
Company. Despite the 'underlying’ (pre-AASB 16) net shortfall in cument assets of $2.6 million, the Company
continues to generate positive operational cash flows and contmues to be profitable. The Company had up to
$5.2 milion (at reporting date) available to be drawn down from its lending facility for working capital
requirements and its cash resources are closely monitored.

In considering the pandemic and its expected impact upon the future cash flows of the Company, the directors
have assumed that funding will continue to be received from koth the federal (CCS) and state (Kindergarten)
govemnments in a timely manner, and in accordance with currently legisiated funding models and that occupancy
will continue its gradual recovery. Whilst uncertainties in forecasting do and aiways will exist (and remain greater
than would normally be the case), they do not constitute material uncertainty in relation to going concem.
Therefore, having regard to all of the above, the directors believe it appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concem basis.

Amendments to Accounting Standards and new Interpretations that are mandatory, effective from the
current reporting period

The Company has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (the AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the cuarent reporting
period.

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations published but not yet adopted

There have been no new standards published but not yet adopted that would have a material impact upon either
the Company’s reported financial performance or its financial position.
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Mayfield Childcare Limited (ABN: 53 804 970 300)
Inierim Report — 30 June 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Note 2. Operating segments

ldentification of reportable segments
The Company continues to operate in one operating segment, as a childcare services provider. The Company
operates in one geographical region, being Australia and, more specifically, Victoria.

Major customers
The Company did not have any major customers during the half-year ended 30 June 2021, as it eams the
majority of its revenue from childcare provided to individual famifies.

Half-yeer Half-year
201 2020
s $
Note 3. Revenue
Chidcare services 17,482,355 12,844,711
Other mcome 1,677 3,168
JobKeeper wages subsidy - 3,267,000
Property rent reductions - 310,634
Early termination of property leases - 46,207
17,484,032 16,471,720
30 Jun 2021
$
Note 4. Non-current assets — Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment — at cost 4,090,777
Less: Accumulated depreciation {1,361,552)
Net book amount 2,729,225
Reconciiation
Opening net book amount at beginning of half-year 2,558,724
Additions 499,341
Disposals {7,595)
Depreciation expense (321,245)
Closing net book amount at end of half-year 2,729,225

15
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Mayheld Chidcare Lamited (ABN: 53 504 970 300)
Interim Report — 30 June 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

30 Jun 2021
$
Note 5. Non-current assets — Intangibles
Goodwill - at cost 39,638,275
Reconcifiation
Balance at beginning of half-year 39,638,275
Adjustments during the haif-year .
Balance at end of haff-year 39,638,275
The Company did not acquire any centres during the reporting period.
No centres were sold or closed during the reporting period.
Goodwill impairment testing
The Board is not aware of any indicators of potential impairment, determining that no
impairment is required fo the carrying amount of goodwill at 30 June 2021.
Note 6. Cumrent & Noncuirent liabilities — Borrowings
Cumrent 1,057,200
Non-current 8,170,600
9,227,800
Bank Loans
Balance at beginning of half-year 9,896,400
Net repaymenis (666,600)
Balance at end of half-year 9,227,600
Financing arrangements
Bank loans
The bank loans are secured on the assets and undertakings of the Company.
Facility at end of half-year
Total bank loan facility 17,965,400
Less amount used (9,227,800)
Unused facility 8,737,600

Of the $8.7 million unused, $3.5 million is only available for future acquisitions and there are
specific criteria which need to be met prior to any draw-down. There have been no events of
default on the financing arrangements of the Company during the half-year.
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Mayheld Childcare Limited (ABN: 53 604 970 380)
interim Report — 30 June 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Half-yoar Half-year
2021 2020
$ $
Note 7. Leases
{a} Expenses
Expenses from transactions not recognised as leases:
Rental expensa refating to leasas of low-value assets 26,646 26,031
{b} Cash flows
Total cash outflow for leases 2,044,063 2,037,254
{c) Right-of-use assets
Property Motor Total
Vehicles
$ $ $
Right-of-use assets 34,124,889 101,006 34,225,895
Less: Accumulated depreciation {8,644,798) (71.503) (8,716,301)
Net book amount at end of half-year 25,480,091 29,503 25,509,594
Reconciliation
Opening net book amount at beginning of half-year 25,371,823 37,851 25,409,674
Increase due to addition of next further term upon eurrent
term remaining being less than three years 1,701,623 = 1,701,623
Increase due to rent reviews and further terms exercised 345,950 - 345,950
Increase due to re-measurement of lease liabilities upon
increase of variabie lease payments 44,192 - 44,192
Depreciation change (1.983,437) {8,348) (1,991,845)
Closing net book amount at end of half-year 26,480,091 29,503 25,509,594
(d) Lease labiliies
Cumrent 3,466,370
Non-current 23,671,422

27,137,792

Maturity of Leases

The foliowing table analyses the Company’s leases by relevant maturity groupings, based on their contractual
maturities — they are not expected to occur significantly earfier than as contracted at reporting date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

30 June 2021 Within Between Between Over Total Carrying
1 year 1and 2 2and 5 Syears |contractual | amount of
years years cash flows liabilities
Leases — Property 4,140,753 | 4,251,882 | 11,979,716 | 9,723,196 | 30,095,547 | 27,122,632
Leases — Motor Vehicles 15,164 2 - - 15,164 15,160
Total Leases 4,155,917 | 4251,882 | 11,979,716 | 9,723,196 | 30,110,711 | 27,137,792

17
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Mayfield Chidcare Limied (ABN: 53 804 970 300)
Interim Report — 30 June 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the half-year ended 30 June 2021

Note 7. Leases (continued)

Additional information

Unavoidablz future payments

For the purpose of calculating unavoidable future lease payments, only the current term of each property lease
has been considered, unless the option to exercise the next further term falis within 3 years of reporting date,
in which case exercise of the next further term is considered to be reasonably certain, thus both the current
and subsequent further term lease payments are considerad to be unavoidable.

Weighted average properly fease term
The average unavoidable property lease term, weighted for the number of Ecensed places, i3 6.6 years.
Including all further tarms, the weighted average term increases to 22.0 years.

Motor vehicle leases
Motor vehicles are leased over 4 years and the liabifity includes contracted end-of-lease residual payments.

Note 8. Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties
Management services agreements

Nomre%ateapartymteagemmtsweentewdinmdtﬂngmehdf-yem No related party revenue has
been recognized dunng the half-year.

Note 9. Events occurring after the reporting period

The acquisition of a Victorian-based, purpose-built, 70 place centre was completed on 16 July 2021.

The Company has agreed to acquire a Victorian-based, purpesa-buit, 111 place centre. The purchase will be
debt funded, with timing subject to standard licensing approvals and transfers.

Na other matter or circumstance has arigen since 30 June 2021 that has significantly affected, or may significantly
sffect, the Company’s cperations, mmdmmumcmysmedaﬂmmmwm.

Note 10. Eamings per share
Hall-yoar Hak-year

2021 2020
Cents Cents
Basic and diluted eamings per share 3.90 172
Number Number
Weighted average number of shares
Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator in calculating
basic and diluted earmnings per share 32,178,872 31,833,763
s $
Earnings used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share
Profit after tax atinbutable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company 1,256,161 547,692
1 Eami haubmradwedhymempanqappﬁcaiondMSBlBLeases(rEfer'mdeﬂyig’EPSinbeReviewofOpem,
m'ﬁ Directors’ Repet, on page 6}
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Mayfield Chidcare Limited (ABN: 53 804 970 300)
Interim Report — 30 June 2021

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
In the directors' opinion:
(a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 10 to 18 are in accordance with the

Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regutations 2001 and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements; and

(ii) giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 30 June 2021 and
of its performance for the haif-year ended on that date; and

() there are reasonable grounds te believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as
and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

=

Peter Lowe
Chairman

Mehboume
6 August 2021

19
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PKF Melboume PKF

Independent Auditor's Review Report to the Members of Mayfield Childcare Limited

Report on the Half-Year Financial Report

Conclusion

We have reviewed the accompanying half-year financial report of Mayfield Childcare Limited {the Company) which

comprises the statement of fnancial position as at 30 June 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the hatf-year ended on that

date, a statement of accounting policies, other selected explanatory notes, and the directors’ dedaration.

Based on our review, which is not an audit, we have not become aware of any matter that makes us believe that the

half-year financial report of Mayfield Childcare Limited is not in accordance with the Corporutions Act 2001 induding:

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial pasition as at 30 lune 2021 and of its performance for the
half-year ended on that date; and

{b) comptying with the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 134 interim Financial Reporting and the Corporations
Reguiations 2001.

Independence

In conducting owr review, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. In

accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, we have given the directors of the Company a written Auditor's
Independence Dedaration.

Directors” Responsibility for the Half-Year Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the haif-year financial report that gives a true and
fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001 and for such
intemal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the half-year financial report
that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Review of the Holf-Yeor Financiol Report

Dur responsibility is to express a condusion on the half-year financial report based on our review. We conducted our
review in accordance with Auditing Standard on Review Engagements ASRE 2410 Review of @ Financidd Report
Performed by the independent Auditor of the Entity, in order to state whether, on the basis of the procedures described,
we have become aware of any matter that causes us to believe that the financial report is not in accordance with the
Corporgtions Act 2001 incduding: giving 3 true and fair view of the Company’s fmancial position as at 30 June 2021 and
its performance for the half-year ended on that date; and complying with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 134
intenm Financial Reporting and the Corporations Reguiations 2001. As the auditor of Mayfield Childcare Limited, ASRE
2410 requives that we comply with the ethical requirements relevant to the audit of the annual finandal report.

A review of a half-year finandal report consists of making enquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and
accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than
an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards and consequently does not enable us to obtain
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we

do not express an audit opinion.

i f IQ \Wets =
PKF Kenneth Weldin
Melbourne 06 August 2021 PKF

PKF Meboume Audit & Assurance Pty Lid ABN 75 600 740 184

Level 12, 440 Calins Street, Medbourne, Victaria 3000

T: +813 8670 2222 F: +61 3 0679 2288 wew ki comay

Liability imaed by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

PKF Meiboums Aucil & Ascurance Pty L3 £ 3 mempar Am of Ihe PKF inlemancras Limited family of legaty ndependent fims and doee not accept aTy
rasponsiniity of 1abiy %or he actions of Inadicns of any INdividUal member of comespondent fim of fnns
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Schedule 10 — Escrow Deed

THOMSON GEER

Escrow Deed
between

Genius Education Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN 653 363 636
(Shareholder)

and

Mayfield Childcare Limited
ACN 604 970 390
(Company)
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This Deed is made on

Parties

1

Genius Education Heldings Pty Lid ACN 653 363 636 of 1 Balmain Street, Cremome, Victoria,
3121 (Shareholder).

Mayfield Childcare Limited ACN 604 970 390 of Suite 2, 207 Waverley Road, Malverm East,
Victoria, 3145 (Company).

Recitals

A

B

&

The Company is admitted to the official list of ASX and its Shares are quoted on ASX.
The Shareholder will be issued the Escrow Shares under the Sale Agreement.

In order to help promote a stable market for Shares on ASX, the Shareholder undertakes to the
Company to be bound by the terms and conditions of thizs Deed.

It is agreed as follows.

1
11

Definitions and Interpretation

Definitions

The following definitions apply unless the context requires otherwise.
ASIC means Australian Securities and Investments Commission;

ASX means ASX Limited ABN 98 008 624 691 cor the financial market operated by ASX Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691, as the context requires.

Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday in Melboumne,
Victoria.

Completion means the completion of the sale and purchase of all the shares in the Sale
Company under the Sale Agreement.

Completion Date which the date on which Completion occurs.
Corporations Act means the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).
Dispose has the meaning given fo 'dispose’ in the Listing Rules.

Eam Out Consideration means the amount of eamn out consideration payable to the
Shareholder under the Sale Agreement.

Eam Out EBITDA means the eamings before interest, tax, depreciation and amaortisation of the
Sale Company for the Eam Out Year, as more particularty defined in the Sale Agreement.

Eam Out Statement means the statement to be prepared under the Sale Agreement setting out
the Eam Qut EBITDA.

Eam Out Year means the penod of 12 months starting on 1 January 2022.
Escrow Period means the period commencing on the Completion Date and ending on:

(a) n respect of 50% of the Escrow Shares issued under paragraph (a) of the definition of
Escrow Shares in this clause 1.1, if the Eam Out EBITDA as set out in the final Eam Out
Statement is at least $8,000,000, the later of the date on which the Eam Qut Statement
becomes final and at the end of 10 Business Days from the date the Company gives to
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ASX financial statements of the Company for the year ending on the last day of the Eam
Out Year, or

(b} in respect of all other Escrow Shares, the Escrow End Date.
Escrow End Date means the second anniversary of the Compiletion Date.
Escrow Shares means:

(a) all of the Shares to be issued ta the Shareholder at Completion in accordance with the
Sale Agreement; and

(b) 50% of any Shares issued to the Shareholder after Completion under the Sale
Agreement that form part of the Eam Out Consideration in accordance with the Sale

Agreement.
Holding Lock has the meaning given to heiding lock' in the Listing Rules.

Issuer Sponsored Subregister has the meaning given to 'issuer sponsored subregister in the
Listing Rules.

Listing Rules means the Listing Rules of ASX (including the ASX Settlement Operating Rules).
Restricted Action has the meaning given ta it in clause 2.1.

Sale Agreement means the share sale agreement dated [insert] between the Company and the
Shareholder in relation to the 3ale and purchase of all the shares in the Sale Company.

Sale Company means Genius Education Pty Ltd ACN 653 437 935.
Shares means fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of the Company.

1.2 Interpretation
The foliowing rules apply unless the context requires otherwise.
(a) Headings are for convenience only and do not affect interpretation.
(b) The singular includes the plural and conversely.
(c) A gender includes all genders.
(d} Where a word or phrase is defined, its other grammatical forms have a comesponding
meaning.
(e} A reference to a clause is a reference to a clause of this Deed.

(f) A reference to an agreement or document (including a reference to this Deed) is to the
agreement or document as amended, varied, supplemented, novated or replaced, except
to the extent prohibited by this Deed or that other agreement or document.

(9) Specifying anything im this Deed after the words ‘including’, ‘includes’ or for example’ or
similar expressions does not fimit what eise is included.

(h) A reference (o a party to this Deed or another agreement or document includes the
party’s successors, permitted substitutes and permitted assigns (and, where applicable,
the party's legal personal representatives).

(i} A reference fo legisiation or to a provision of legislation includes a modification or re-
enactment of it, a legislative provision substituted for it and a regulation or statutory
instrument issued under it.

[{}] A word or term defined in the Corporations Act has the same meaning in this Deed.
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1.3 Conditienal on ASIC relief
(a} This Deed (other than this clause 1.3) is conditional on:

@i the Company obtaining relief from ASIC to modify section 809 of the Corporations
Act to enable the Company to disregard a rélevant interest in the Escrow Shares
resulting from the arrangements under this Deed for the purposes of section 506
of the Corporations Act; and

(ii) the Company providing a copy of the relief to the Shareholder.

(b} If the conditions set out in clause 1.3(a) are not satisfied by the Completion Date or such
other date as the parties may agree, then this Deed will terminate on that date.

(c) On termination of this Deed under this clause 1.3, the parties will be under no further
obligation to each other and will have no further rights against each other under this Deed
except in respect of any breach of this Deed which occurred before termination.

2 Escrow Restrictions

21 Shareholder restrictions
During the Escrow Period, the Shareholder must not:
(a) Dispoze of, or agree or offer to Dispose of, any or all of the Escrow Shares;

(b} create, or agree or offer to create, any security interest in any or ali of the Escrow Shares;
or

(c) do or omit to do any act which may have the effect of transferring effective ownership or
control of any or all of the Escrow Shares,

(each a Restricted Action), other than in accordance with clause 2 3.

2.2 Issuer Sponsored Subregister
(a) The Shareholder agrees that the Escrow Shares will be:
(i) kept on an efectronic CHESS subregister; or

(ii) held on the Company’s Issuer Sponsored Subregister {as that term is defined in
the ASX Listing Rules),

and agrees to the application of a Holding Lock to the Escrow Shares for the Escrow
Period or, in respect of any Escrow Shares, until they may be Disposed of or the subject
of another Restricted Action permitted by this Deed.

{b) The Company agrees to do all things necessary to ensure that the Holding Lock is
released:

[ (0] to the extent necessary to permit Disposals of Escrow Shares and other
Restricted Actions permitted by this Deed; and

(ii) in full at the conclusion of the Escrow Period.
2.3 Permitted Transfers
During the Escrow Period, the Shareholder may only undertake a Restricted Action if:
{a) the Restricted Action is required by law (including an order of a court of competent
jurisdiction);
(b) the Shareholder obtains the prior written consent of the Company (which may be withheld
by the Company at its absolute discretion);
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(©)

(d)

(e)

U]

(a}

the Restricted Action is the acceptance of:

i a bona fide takeover bid under Chapter 6 of the Corporations Act for all of the
Shares in the Company, or

(in) a proportonal takeover bid under Chapter 6 of the Corporations Act,
provided that:

(i) such acceptance occurs following a public announcement by the Company that
the board of directors of the Company recommends a takeover bid; or

(v} the holders of at least 50% of the bid class securities that are not subject to
escrow, and to which the offers under the bid relate, have accepted and the
Escrow Shares continue to be held on the terms of this Deed if the relevant bid
does not become unconditional or does not otherwise proceed;

the Restricted Action is the transfer or cancellation of the Shares in the Company as part
of a scheme of amangement under Part 5.1 of the Corporations Act, provided that
scheme of amangement takes effect;

the Restricted Action is in connection with exercising any voting rights attached to the
Escrow Shares or a transfer or sale of securities in the Sharsholder,

the Restricted Action is in connection with Shares being bought back under a buy-back
that is an equal access scheme or cancelled under an equal capital reduction provided
that if any Escrow Shares are not bought back under the equal access scheme or
cancelled under the equal capital reduction (as relevant) the Escrow Shares continue to
be held on the terms of this Deed; or

the Restricted Action is in connection with providing a security interest in any Escrow
Shares to a bona fide third party financial institution as a security for a loan or other
financial accommodation provided that:

i the Escrow Shares are not fransferred to the financial institution during the
Escrow Period; and

{ii} the financial institution agrees that the Escrow Shares will continue to be held on
the terms of this Deed.

Shareholder to notify Company

If the Shareholder becomes aware:

that a dealing in any Escrow Shares has occumred, or is likely to occur, during the Escrow
Period in breach of this Deed; or

of any other matter which is fikely to give rise to a dealing in any Escrow Shares during
the Escrow Period in breach of this Deed,

the Shareholder must notify the Company as soon as practicable after becoming aware of the
dealing or those matters giving rise the dealing, and provide full details.

Providing a security interest under clause 2.3(g)

If at any ime prior to the first anniversary of the Completion Date, the Shareholder provides a
security interest in any Escrow Shares to a bona fide third party financial institution as a security
for a loan or other financial accommodation on the terms of clause 2.3(g), the Shareholder
undertakes to use its best endeavours to cause and procure the release of any such security
interest over all the Escrow Shares by ne later than the first anniversary of the Completion Date.

24

(a)

(b}
2.5
39280154_4.docx

page {5)

39149995 21.docx

page 201



Share sale agreement O Piper Alderman

31

3.2

4.2

4.3

Breach

Prevention of anticipated breach

The parties acknowledge and agree that if it appears to the Company that the Shareholder may
breach this Deed, the Company:

(a) may take the steps necessary to prevent the breaeh or to enforce this Deed, as soon as
the Company becomes aware of the potential breach: and

(b) subject to the Listing Rules, may refuse to acknowiedoe, deal with, accept or register any
sale, assignment, transfer or conversion of any of the Escrow Shares (in addition o the
other rights and remedies of the Company).

Damages insufficient remedy

The parties agree that damages would be an insufficient remedy for breach of this Deed and the
Shareholder agrees that the Company is entitied to seek and obtain an injunction or specific
performance as a remady for any actual or threatened breach of this Deed, in addition to any
other remedies available to the Company at law or in equity under or independently of this Deed.

Representations and Warranties

Shareholder representations and warranties
The Shareholder represents and warmants that:

(a) (power) it has power to enter into and comply with all of the terms and conditions of this
Deed applicable to it;

(b) {authority) it has taken all necessary corporate actions and autharisations o permit it to
enter into this Deed and to observe all of its terms and no such corporate action or
authorisation has since been rescinded or varied;

(c) {deed effective) this Deed constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation on it and is
enforceable against it in accordance with its terms:

(d) (Escrow Shares) upon the issue of the Escrow Shares, it will be the legal and beneficial
holder of the Escrow Shares; and

(e) (no encumbrances) upon the issue of the Escrow Shares, the Escrow Shares are free
from all encumbrances, security interests and other third party interests or rights.

Reliance on representations and warranties

The Shareholder acknowledges that the Company has executed this Deed in reliance on the
representations and warranties that are made in this clause.

No representations by the Company

The Sharsholder acknowledges that It has not relied and will not rely on any representation
statement or promise made by or on behalf of the Company in deciding to enter into this Deed.
Notices

Any notice, demand, consent or other communication (Notice) given or made under this Deed:
(a) must be in writing and signed by a person duly authorised by the sender;

(b) must be delivered to the intended recipient by prepaid post (if posted to an address in
another country, by registered airmail) or by hand or email to the address or email
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(c)

address below or the address or email address fast notified by the intended recipient to
the sender:

{ to the Company: Suite 2, 207 Waverley Road, Malvem East, Victoria,
3145

Attention: Dean Clarke
Email: delarke@mayfieidchildcare com au

(il to the Shareholder: 1 Balmain Street, Cremome, Victoria, 3121
Attention: Damren Michael Misquitta
Email: darren@sprinteapitaloariners. com

will be taken to be duly given or made:

(] in the case of delivery in person, when delivered:

(ii} in the case of delivery by post, two Business Days after the date of posting (if
posted to an address in the same country) or seven Business Days after the date
of posting (if posted to an address in another country); and

(i) in the case of email, on the day of transmission, provided that the sender does
nct receive an automated notice generated by the sender's or the recipient's
email server that the email was not delivered,

but if the result is that a Notice would be taken to be given or made on a day that is not a
business day in the place to which the Notice is sent or is later than 4pm (local ime) it will
be taken to have been duly given or made at the commencement of business on the next
business day in that place.

Governing law

This Deed is govemed by the laws of Victoria. Each party imevocably accepts the non-exclusive
jurisdiction of courts with jurisdiction there and waives any right to object to the venue on any

Further agssurances

Each party agrees to do all things and execute all deeds, instruments, transiers or other
documents as may be necessary or desirable to give full effect to the provisions of this Deed and
the transactions contemplated by it.

Waiver and exercise of rights

No failure to exercise nor any delay in exercising any right, power or remedy by a party
operates as a waiver. A single or partial exercise of any right, power or remedy does not
preclude any other or further exercise of that or any other right, power or remedy. A
waiver is not valid or binding on the party granting that waiver unless made in writing.

A party may exercise a right or remedy or give or refuse its consent in any way it
considers appropriate (including by imposing conditions), unless this Deed expressty
states otherwise.

6 General
6.1

ground.
6.2
6.3

(a)

(b)
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64 Entire agreement
This Deed contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to its subject matter. It sets
out the only conduct on relied on by the parties and supsrsedes all eariier conduct by the parties
with respect to its subject matter.

6.5 Amendment
This Deed may be amended only by another deed executed by all the parties.

6.6 Severability

Any provision of this Deed which is unenforceable or partly unenforceable is, where possible, o
be severed to the extent necessary to make this Deed enforceable, unless this would materially
change the intended effect of this Deed.

6.7 Counterparis

This Deed may be executed in any number of counterparts. All counterparts together will be
taken to constitute one instrument.

6.8 Costs
Each party must pay its own costs of negotiating, preparing and executing this Deed.

Executed and delivered as a Deed

Executed as a deed by Genius Education
Holdings Pty Ltd ACN 653 363 636 in
accordance with seclion 127(1) of the

Covporations Act 2001 (Cth):
Director *Director/*Company Secretary
Name of Direcior Name of *Director!"Company Secretary
BLOCK LETTERS BLOCK LETTERS

“please stke aut as appropriate
Executed as a deed by Mayfield Chiidcare
Limited ACN 604 970 390 in accordance with
section 127(1) of the Corporations Act 2001
{Cth):
Director *Director/*Company Secretary
Name of Director Name of *Director/*Company Secretary
BLOCK LETTERS BLOCK LETTERS

“please sirke out as apprapriate
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Schedule 11 — EBITDA Schedule

CY22 EBITDA Template

Sales
Sales
Other revenue
Before School fees
After School fees
School Holiday fees
Discounts

CONSOL

Total Sales

Cost of Goods Sold
Food
Nappies
Other COGS

Total Cost of Goods Sold

Employee Costs
Salary and wages
Superannuation
Payroli tax
Workcover

Total Employee Costs

Total Direct Costs

Gross Profit

Other Overhead
Cleaning
Power, heating, water
Entertainment
General
insurance
Office costs
Vehicle costs
Plant rental
Rent
Repairs & maintenance
Telephone & Internet
Technology hire
Travel
Rates and taxes

Total Other Overhead

Total EBITDA
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